# NASA Contractor Report 181638

# Application of Hybrid Laminar Flow Control to Global Range Military Transport Aircraft

1 1/2 3

# Roy H. Lange

Lockheed Aeronautical Systems Company A Division of Lockheed Corporation Marietta, Georgia 30063

# Contract NAS1-18036 April 1988



National Aeronautics and Space Administration

Langley Research Center Hampton, Virginia 23665-5225

#### FOREWORD

The technical work herein was accomplished under Task 2 of Contract NAS1-18036 sponsored by NASA-Langley, Langley Research Center, Hampton, Virginia 23665-5225 and the Air Force Flight Dynamics Laboratory, WPAFB, Ohio. Task 2 go-ahead was initiated in September 1986. Mr. Richard D. Wagner, Manager, Laminar Flow Control Project Office, NASA-Langley, was the Task Manager, Mr. D. V. Maddalon was the Technical Representative of the Contracting Office, and Mr. Russ Osborn was the Technical Representative from the Air Force Wright Aeronautical Laboratories, AFWAL/FIMM, WPAFB, Ohio.

Mr. Roy H. Lange, Lockheed Program manager, LFC Projects, is responsible for the overall guidance and technical direction of the Laminar Flow Enabling Technology Development Contract, NAS1-18036 and also served as Task 2 Study Manager. The technical work for Task 2 was performed under the direction of the Preliminary Design Division (D/72-90) of the Lockheed Aeronautical Systems Company in Marietta, Georgia. The key technical people working during this reporting period include:

R. H. Lange	Program and Study Manager
J. A. Bennett	Aerodynamics Department
B. J. Hagemann	Propulsion & Acoustics Department
J. F. Honrath	Aeronautical Systems Development Dept.
R. W. Patterson	Advanced Structures Department
T. K. Randall	Aeronautical Systems Development Dept.
A. S. Woolf	Aeronautical Systems Development Dept.
J. B. Clayton	Engineering Technical Contracts Dept.

This report has been given the Lockheed designation LG87ER0145.

ii

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section	Title	Page
	FOREWORD	ii
	LIST OF FIGURES	v
	LIST OF TABLES	viii
1.0	SUMMARY	1
2.0	INTRODUCTION	4
3.0	SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS	6
4.0	STUDY APPROACH	8
	4.1 Study Objectives	8
	4.2 Study Plan	9
	4.3 Reference Technology Level	13
	4.3.1 Aerodynamics	13
	4.3.2 Flight Controls	15
	4.3.3 Propulsion Systems	16
	4.3.4 Structures and Materials	18
	4.3.5 HLFC Systems	20
	4.3.6 Aircraft Systems	38
5.0	BASELINE CONFIGURATION DEVELOPMENT	40
	5.1 Turbulent Flow Aircraft Selection	40
	5.2 HLFC Groundrules	42
	5.3 HLFC Aircraft Selection	43
	5.4 Comparison of Turbulent and HLFC Aircraft	46

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D)

Ì

ĺ

i Į

Section	Title	Page
	5.5 HLFC Aircraft Definition	49
	5.5.1 Configuration Design	49
	5.5.2 HLFC Wing Aerodynamics Design	58
6.0	CONFIGURATION SENSITIVITY STUDIES	67
	6.1 HLFC Aircraft Sensitivity Studies	67
	6.1.1 Increase of Cruise Speed or Altitude	67
	6.1.2 Elimination of HLFC on Empennage	67
	6.1.3 Elimination of HLFC on Lower Wing Surface	68
	6.1.4 Reduction of Aspect Ratio to 10	69
	6.1.5 High Wing HLFC Configuration	72
	6.2 Turbulent Flow Aircraft Sensitivity Studies	76
	6.2.1 Increase of Altitude to 36,000 Feet	76
	6.2.2 Increase of Payload to 212,000 Pounds	77
	6.2.3 Reduction of Aspect Ratio to 10	79
7.0	ASSESSMENT OF HLFC BENEFITS AND SELECTED CONFIGURATIONS	80
8.0	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	83
REFERENCES		85
APPENDIX A	GENERAL AIRCRAFT SIZING PROGRAM	88

# LIST OF FIGURES

# Figure

4

Page

1	Hybrid Laminar Flow Control Concept	9
2	Study Plan	10
3A	Mission Characteristics	11
3B	Mission Profile	12
4	Wing Section Design Curves	14
5	Example of Secondary Active Trailing Edge Flaps	14
6	Specific Fuel Consumption (P&W STF 686)	17
7	Bare Engine Weight (P&W STF686)	17
8	Advanced Material Technology for Hybrid LFC Study	18
9	Advanced Material Utilization	19
10 <b>A</b>	Hybrid LFC Design	21
1 0B	Hybrid LFC Design	21
11	Wing Leading Edge Slot Locations	22
12	Slot and Ducting Cross Section	25
13	Suction System Schematic	26
14	Suction Pump	30
15	Wing Suction System Schematic	33
16	Cleaning/Anti-icing System	36
17	Purge System Schematic	38
18	Nitrogen Pressurization System	39
1 9A	Turbulent Baseline Parametric Data; M = 0.77	41
1 9B	Concluded	41
20	Turbulent Flow Baseline Design Concept	42
21A	HLFC Aircraft Ground Rules	43

# LIST OF FIGURES (CONT'D)

\_

}

. |

|

Figure	Title	Page
21B	Concluded	43
22A	Parametric Sizing Data for HLFC Aircraft; M = 0.77, Initial Concepts	44
22B	Concluded	45
2 3A	Parametric Sizing Data for HLFC Aircraft; Speed and Altitude Changes	46
23B	Concluded	47
24	HLFC Baseline Concept	47
25	Horizontal Tail Sizing Chart	48
26	Typical HLFC Concept Payload-Range Curve	50
27	HLFC Concept Cargo Pallets Arrangement	50
28	HLFC Concept Arrangement of Vehicles	51
29	Suction Pump/System General Arrangement	51
30A	HLFC Concept Suction Systems Arrangement	52
30B	Concluded	52
31	Leading Edge Design Concept	53
32	Fuel Tank Arrangement	54
33	Empennage General Arrangement	55
34	Main Landing Gear	56
35	Wing Trailing Edge Design	57
36	Generalized Aircraft Sizing Program, LFC Subroutine	58
37	Areas of HLFC and Wing Laminarization	60
38	Aerodynamic Design Procedure for LFC and TF Wings	61
39	Typical Airfoil Section on Baseline HLFC Wing	62
40	Representative Wing C Distribution From Wing Station $\eta$ = 0.488	63

# LIST OF FIGURES (CONT'D)

l

Figure	Title	Page
41	Mass Flow Suction Level	64
42	Total Suction Flow Across One Wing of HLFC Baseline	64
43	Crossflow Disturbance N Factor, Wing Station $\eta$ = 0.488	65
4 4 <u>A</u>	Sensitivity Data	68
44B	Concluded	69
4 5A	Sizing Data for Aspect Ratio 10 Aircraft	70
45B	Concluded	71
46	Comparison of HLFC Baseline and HLFC Aspect Ratio 10 Aircraft	71
47	Plan View of Laminar Flow Area Loss for Wing Mounted Engine Configuration; Lower Wing Surface	72
48A	Sizing Data for High Wing Turbulent Flow and HLFC Aircraft; Sweepback 20 <sup>0</sup>	73
48B	Concluded	74
49	General Arrangement Drawing of High Wing HLFC Aircraft	75
50A	Turbulent Flow Aircraft Sizing Data	76
50B	Concluded	77
51	General Arrangement of 212,000 lb Payload Turbulent Flow Aircraft	78
52	Comparison of Turbulent Flow 212,000 lb Payload Aircraft With C-5	78
53	Comparison of Turbulent Flow Baseline and Aspect Ratio 10 Aircraft	79
54	Summary of HLFC Aircraft Results Relative to Turbulent Flow Baseline	81

i i

### LIST OF TABLES

Table	Title	Page
1	Upper Surface Design Data	23
2	Lower Surface Design Data	24
3	Leading Edge Metering System	27

#### 1.0 SUMMARY

This report summarizes the results of a study conducted by Lockheed under NASA Contract NAS1-18036 to evaluate the application of hybrid laminar flow control (HLFC) to global range military transport aircraft.

By mutual agreement among NASA, the Air Force, and Lockheed the global mission of the aircraft in this study included the capability to transport 132,500 pounds of payload 6,500 nautical miles, land and deliver the payload and without refueling return 6,500 nautical miles to a friendly airbase. The design cruise Mach number for the mission is M = 0.77. Both turbulent flow and hybrid laminar flow control aircraft were sized to perform the global mission. A baseline turbulent flow aircraft was used as the reference aircraft for comparison with the HLFC aircraft concepts. The hybrid LFC concept restricts the active suction system to the region ahead of the front spar, i.e., 15 percent wing chord and the remainder of the airfoil is tailored aerodynamically to achieve the maximum extent of laminar flow, which is expected to extend to about 50 percent chord.

Originally intended as a six month study, the scope was expanded as initial results were obtained to include additional comparisons and sensitivity runs. This expansion in scope has provided for a better understanding of the results and for a more complete data base of aircraft design and performance parameters. Thus, the preliminary aircraft design study has generated a considerable amount of sizing data for both turbulent flow and hybrid LFC aircraft concepts.

Preliminary design system studies of the application of hybrid laminar flow control to military transports sized to perform global range mission characteristics show significant performance benefits obtained for the hybrid LFC aircraft as compared to counterpart turbulent flow aircraft. The study results at M = 0.77 show that the largest benefits of HLFC are obtained with a high wing with engines on the wing configuration. As compared to the turbulent flow baseline aircraft, the high wing HLFC aircraft shows 17 percent reduction in fuel burned, 19.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, an insignificant increase in operating weight, and 7.4 percent reduction in gross

weight. For this high wing configuration, the performance data are based on the assumption that there is no loss in laminar flow on the upper wing surface with engines mounted on the wings. It is felt that this is an optimistic assumption especially for the longer laminar runs for the HLFC conditions of this study and for the multi-engine configurations. The second best HLFC configuration is the low wing, fuselage mounted arrangement with no HLFC on the empennage. This configuration shows 13.7 percent reduction in fuel burned, 18.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, 5.4 percent increase in operating weight, and 4.2 percent reduction in gross weight as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft.

Sensitivity studies include the determination of the effects on performance of increase in cruise Mach number from 0.77 to 0.80, increase in initial cruise altitude to 36,000 feet, and elimination of HLFC on the lower wing surface. These changes generally resulted in degradation in performance as compared to the baseline aircraft characteristics. As expected, the reduction in aspect ratio from the baseline value of about 13 to a value of 10 reduced the benefits for fuel consumption and lift-to-drag ratio.

In view of the superior performance of the high wing with engines mounted on the wing HLFC configuration, it is recommended that further research and development be conducted to provide the necessary data base for validation of the effects of engine operation on laminar boundary layer transition for flight Reynolds numbers corresponding to large, long range transport aircraft. Operation at higher altitudes of 36,000 feet and above are more favorable to the attainment and preservation of laminar flow. The data in this study show a moderate increase in lift-to-drag ratio for operation at initial cruise altitude of 36,000 feet, but with an attendant large increase in engine thrust for the relatively high by pass ratio engines used in this study. It is recommended that additional studies be made of high altitude operations with lower by pass ratio engines.

All HLFC aircraft in this study have been sized without the use of leading-edge high lift devices on the wings. In view of the favorable effects of leading-edge high lift systems on the airfield performance and the

shielding effects for HLFC operations, it is recommended that additional sizing studies be conducted on the two best HLFC configurations of this study with the addition of leading-edge high lift systems.

#### 2.0 INTRODUCTION

Among the many concepts for aircraft drag reduction, laminar flow control, LFC, has indicated the greatest potential for skin friction drag reduction. A review of early progress since 1939 in analytical and experimental investigations of boundary layer transition and methods for achievement of laminar flow is contained in a paper by Braslow and Muraca (Reference 1).

Lockheed performed the initial feasibility study of advanced technology LFC aircraft beginning in October 1974 (References 2-5). The favorable results of this initial study provided the impetus to additional investigations of LFC, and NASA, in concert with industry, has been sponsoring LFC technology development activities for the past 12 years to achieve LFC technology readiness in the 1990's (References 6-9). Major Lockheed LFC development programs funded in 1980 under the NASA ACEE program include wing surface panel structural development (References 10, 11) and the design, fabrication, and flight test of leading-edge articles (Reference 12).

The Lockheed motivation in LFC activities has been directed to the eventual application to long-range or long-endurance military strategic aircraft systems. During the time period of the intensive system evaluation studies of commercial LFC transport studies under NASA contracts, Lockheed was continuing its preliminary design studies of military LFC airlift aircraft under Independent Research and Development projects.

Encouraged by the progress made in the development and validation of leading-edge cleaning, anti-icing, and suction systems so vital to the success of an LFC transport, Lockheed and Douglas developed flight test articles with NASA funding that were installed and tested on the NASA-Dryden Flight Research Facility JetStar aircraft. The Lockheed activity is reported in Reference 12. An early review of the total NASA program is given by Wagner and Fischer in Reference 9. A review of the above activities since 1974 is given in an AIAA paper by Lange (Reference 13).

Current activities in the NASA/Lockheed Laminar Flow Enabling Technology Development Contract No. NAS1-18036 include the Task 1 development of a slotted surface structural concept using advanced aluminum materials (Reference 14) and the Task 2 preliminary conceptual design study of global range military HLFC transports reported herein.

This report summarizes the results obtained in the Task 2 preliminary conceptual design studies of the benefits derived from the use of hybrid laminar flow control (HLFC) for military transports designed to achieve pavload/range requirements of global range aircraft. The Air Force Project Forecast II effort has identified system PS-03 Multrirole Global Range Aircraft as a subsonic element in global force projection. It is anticipated that this global range aircraft must have exceptional aerodynamic and propulsive efficiency to achieve the mission characteristics. Previous Lockheed preliminary design studies have shown significant increase in aerodynamic efficiency by the application of LFC to military transport These results were obtained in an Air Force contract study of aircraft. Technology Alternatives for Airlift Deployment (TAFAD) (Reference 15). Section 4.0 of the report contains background information on the study objectives, study plan, assumptions basic to all study tasks, and the technology level appropriate for the study. Section 5.0 describes the mission characteristics and the baseline configuration studies of turbulent flow and hybrid LFC aircraft sized to perform the mission requirements of the study. Section 6.0 contains the results of sensitivity studies of several aircraft performance parameters for both hybrid LFC and turbulent flow aircraft. In Sections 5.0 and 6.0 comparisons are made between the turbulent flow and hybrid LFC configurations in order to determine the benefits attributable to hybrid LFC. An overall assessment of hybrid LFC benefits is contained in Section 7.0, along with a preference for the best hybrid LFC configuration. Conclusions and recommendations are provided in Section 8.0.

#### 3.0 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Symbols b wing span, ft с local wing chord, ft CL lift coefficient Ср pressure coefficient Μ Mach number R<sub>N</sub> Reynolds number wing area,  $ft^2$ S thickness, ft t t/c wing thickness-to-chord ratio U potential flow velocity, ft/s ٧<sub>s</sub> area suction velocity, ft/s slot width, in. W Х streamwise coordinate, ft x/c chordwise location angle of attack, deg α cruise power ratio, wing semispan location η density,  $lb/ft^3$ ρ Subscripts free stream  $\infty$ slot s at surface W sucked height of boundary layer z

#### Abbreviations

AR aspect ratio

CFL critical field length, ft

HLFC hybrid laminar flow control

- HP high pressure
- H.P. horsepower

IGV inlet guide vane

L/D lift-to-drag ratio

LP low pressure

MAC mean aerodynamic chord, ft

0/B overboard vent

- RPM revolutions per minute
- SFC specific fuel consumption, lb/hr

1b

SL sea level

STD standard day

TOGW takeoff gross weight, 1b

#### 4.0 STUDY APPROACH

This section outlines the basic assumptions and criteria which are fundamental to all aspects of the study. Included is a definition of study objectives, the overall plan employed to achieve study objectives, design criteria, and the assumed technology level.

#### 4.1 STUDY OBJECTIVES

The objective of this task is to determine by means of preliminary design studies the benefits derived from the use of hybrid laminar flow control for military transports designed to achieve the payload/range requirements of the global range aircraft.

The Air Force Project Forecast II effort has identified system PS-03 Multirole Global Range Aircraft as a subsonic element in its global force projection. Although the system characteristics have not been finalized, it is anticipated that this aircraft will have the capability to carry large payloads for a distance of 10,000 nautical miles unrefueled at high subsonic cruise speeds. The aircraft will land and deliver the payload without support at the destination airfield and fly back either to its base in the continental U.S. or to a friendly airbase unrefueled. The aircraft must have exceptional aerodynamic and propulsive efficiency to achieve these mission characteristics.

Previous Air Force/LASC-Georgia preliminary design studies of 1995 IOC military transports have shown high performance and economic efficiency with capabilities of Mach 0.80 cruise speed, 212,000 pounds payload, and 3500 nautical miles range (Reference 15). The addition of laminar flow control on an alternate configuration provided a range increase to 5800 nautical miles for the same payload and cruise Mach number and a 26 percent higher take off gross weight. The laminar flow control concept utilized active suction slots on the wing and empennage to 70 percent of the chord.

In order to provide for a near-term application of laminar flow control, a more simplified concept referred to as hybrid laminar flow control, HLFC,

has been used for the current study. The HLFC concept, shown in Figure 1 has the active suction system restricted to the region ahead of the front spar of the wing. Aft of the active suction region the airfoil shape is tailored to achieve the maximum extent of laminar flow, and this is expected to extend to 50 percent or more of the wing chord as indicated by HLFC studies by Boeing reported in Reference 16. The HLFC concept avoids a number of concerns by the industry and the airlines, in particular, suction surfaces and ducting are not required in the main wing box areas which also contain the fuel for the aircraft. Thus the weight and complexity of the suction systems is greatly reduced and the possible hazards with the fuel are eliminated. The suction in the leading-edge region can control the cross flow disturbances for swept wings and the airfoil tailoring over the wing box can stabilize twodimensional disturbances.

#### 4.2 STUDY PLAN

The preliminary design study consists of five elements as shown in Figure 2. These elements consist of (1) Basic Data and Assumptions, (2) Mission Characteristics, (3) Configuration Development, (4) Configuration Selection, and (5) Analysis of Laminar Flow Benefits. These elements are briefly described in the sections that follow.



Figure 1. Hybrid Laminar Flow Control Concept

9

ł



Figure 2. Study Plan

#### Element 1

In the basic data and assumption area and from considerations of the scope for this study, the approach taken was to utilize the technology data base in the Lockheed Generalized Aircraft Sizing and Performance (GASP) computer program that was used in the Air Force Technology Alternatives for Airlift Deployment (TAFAD) study mentioned previously (Reference 15). Modification has been made to the data base to account for the change to the hybrid laminar flow control concept and an update of the technology data base incorporated. For this study a technology readiness date of 1994 is assumed along with an initial operational capability IOC, date of 2000.

#### Element 2

Mission characteristics such as payload, range cruise Mach number, airfield performance, other systems operational concepts were established in this study element as they apply to the Multrirole Global Range Aircraft. As noted previously, the mission characteristics for System PS-03 have not been finalized; but as subsonic part of the Air Force Global Force Projection, this aircraft is to provide conventional massive response and tactical presence. In the TAFAD study an in-depth mission analysis of the Congressionally Mandated Mobility Study established an optimum payload of 212,000 pounds for rapid deployment. In the Configuration Integration for Large Multipurpose

Aircraft study (Reference 17) the payloads varied from small 50,000 pounds for AWACS to medium 130,000-150,000 pounds for ICBM launcher and cruise missile carrier and around 200,000 pounds for the aircraft carrier. A space vehicle launcher payload is about 275,000 pounds. Utilizing these results and other information, a set of mission characteristics was mutually agreed upon among NASA, the Air Force and Lockheed. These mission characteristics summarized in Figure 3A include a payload of 132,500 pounds, a cruise speed of M=0.77, and a range capability to fly out 6,500 nautical miles with full payload, land and offload payload and fly back 6,500 nautical miles unrefueled. The typical mission profile is provided in Figure 3B. All aircraft configurations in this study were sized to perform these mission characteristics. It should be noted on the general arrangement drawings shown later, the listed aircraft parameters include an asterisk after "Range 6500 NM." The asterisk directs the reader to the mission characteristics of Figure 3 because the total cruise distance for the mission is not a range or radius distance. Deviations from these mission characteristics were made in the sensitivity studies described in Section 6.0. For this long range mission, fuel reserves include 5 percent of cruise fuel plus one half hour.

#### Element 3

Configuration development using preliminary design studies were made of turbulent flow and hybrid laminar flow control aircraft to satisfy the mission characteristics established in Element 2. The Lockheed Generalized Aircraft Sizing and Performance (GASP) computer program used to size and define the

- PAYLOAD = 132,500 LB @ 2.5G
- CRUISE SPEED = 0.77 MACH
- INITIAL CRUISE ALTITUDE = FALLOUT VALUE
- AIRFIELD (CFL) = 10,000 FT @ S.L. STD, DAY
- FLYOUT 6,500 NM WITH FULL PAYLOAD, LAND AND RETURN 6,500 NM WITH ZERO PAYLOAD UNREFUELED
- FIELD LENGTH @ MIDPOINT  $\leq$  8,000 FT @ S.L. STD, DAY

Figure 3A. Mission Characteristics



Figure 3B. Mission Profile

aircraft is described in Appendix A. The aircraft configurations were limited to conventional arrangements in this study. The output of this preliminary design Element 3 activity has provided the data listed in the following for each configuration:

- o General arrangement drawing
- Weight statement including propulsion systems
- o Geometric characteristics
- o HLFC peculiar structures and cleaning (anti-icing fluid weights)
- o Payload-range curve (some for all aircraft)
- o Inboard profile and cross section

In addition, some sensitivity studies were performed in the development of the baseline turbulent flow and hybrid LFC configurations as described in Section 5.0.

#### Elements 4 and 5

The best turbulent flow and hybrid LFC configurations were selected in these elements of the study plan based on the results of Element 3 and additional sensitivity and configuration studies performed in Element 4 as a result of a meeting of NASA and Air Force technical personnel at the Lockheed Aeronautical Systems Company in Marietta, Georgia, on March 5, 1987. These additional studies extended the overall scope of the study for both turbulent flow and hybrid LFC configurations and are described in Section 6.0. The benefits in performance of hybrid LFC aircraft as compared with turbulent flow aircraft were determined from a direct comparison of the best aircraft in each case.

#### 4.3 REFERENCE TECHNOLOGY LEVEL

As a preliminary to the parametric configuration analyses and subsequent configuration activities leading to the definition of selected aircraft, the level of technology likely to be available for application in the early 1990 period was established. This section summarizes the reference technology level assumed for all configuration development activities.

#### 4.3.1 Aerodynamics

#### 4.3.1.1 Aerodynamics Criteria

The most complete set of criteria for the development of external aerodynamic configurations compatible with LFC systems requirements was developed as a part of the X-21 program and is described in Reference 5. The criteria of this document were updated to include results of pertinent recent investigations. This updating included a critical review of LFC suction requirements and dual use of active trailing-edge control flaps for gust alleviation and minimization of LFC suction flow rates in varying operational conditions. Acoustic effects on suction requirements were addressed by inclusion of an excess suction system capacity similar to the approach used for the X-21. As a result of improvements in aerodynamics design and analysis methods, aerodynamics criteria used in previous studies, as depicted in Figure 3 of Reference 4, were updated appropriately for this study.

#### 4.3.1.2 Airfoil Technology

The aircraft configurations developed in this study incorporate advanced technology supercritical airfoil sections characterized by an extensive region of supercritical flow terminated by a moderate-strength shock located fairly

far aft. Typical wing section design curves, which define the technology level of the airfoil type, are shown in Figure 4. Some variation in airfoil thickness and form were examined to maximize internal volume for fuel and ducting and improve leading-edge boundary layer characteristics.

Advanced technology secondary active trailing-edge flaps of the type shown in Figure 5 were adopted as a means of automatically maintaining desired pressure gradients, controlling shock position, and minimizing LFC suction requirements over a moderate range of operating conditions.



Figure 4. Wing Section Design Curves



Figure 5. Example of Secondary Active Trailing Edge Flaps

#### 4.3.1.3 High-Lift Device Technology

Design and analysis studies performed were compatible with a currenttechnology mechanical flap system which provides the required airport performance with the smallest penalty to direct operating cost. Single- and multiple-slotted flaps were assessed in the study from the standpoint of chordwise and spanwise extent, lift and drag effectiveness, relative weight penalty, and high-lift compatibility with airfoil section shapes desirable for LFC. For this study no leading edge devices are used in order to allow for HLFC on both upper and lower surfaces.

#### 4.3.2 Flight Controls

The flight control system included in the sizing program incorporates the elements of active control technology (ACT) which promise significant improvements in the efficiency of large transport aircraft.

The ACT system encompasses the following modes of control:

- o Relaxed Static Stability
- Stability Augmentation System
- o Maneuver Load Control
- o Gust Load Alleviation
- o Flutter Mode Control
- o Ride Control

The major improvement offered by the above systems are: minimization of airframe weight, incorporation of automatic trouble-shooting, and improved ride characteristics. These systems were employed in previous Lockheed LFC aircraft studies and are described in more detail in Ref. 5.

The four channel fly-by-wire (FBW) system is controlled on each channel by an on-board digital computer. A digital system is mandated by the extensive complex signal processing, the flexibility required to accommodate the multi-mode control logic laws, and the redundancy required by an FBW system.

Geared elevators driven by the stabilizer, a double hinged rudder, and outboard ailerons provide low speed control. Ground-operable-only spoilers are provided for deployment during ground rollout or rejected takeoff. All controls and instrumentation required for the operation of the airplane in the air and on the ground are located in the flight station. The on-board computers provide feedback for two hydro-mechanical units which provide the pilots with artificial feel in all three control axes.

#### 4.3.3 Propulsion Systems

The Pratt & Whitney Aircraft STF-686 study engine was chosen as the primary propulsion unit for the baseline aircraft. This engine is a twinspool, separate flow turbofan engine with 19,350 pounds of takeoff thrust. The preliminary weight of the engine is 3800 lb. The high pressure spool is a scaled version of the STS-686 high pressure spool, made up of an 11 stage high pressure compressor, a low emissions combustor, and a two stage high pressure turbine. The low pressure spool consists of a single stage shroudless fan, a three stage low pressure compressor and a five stage low pressure turbine. An active clearance control system is incorporated which controls the clearances of several components in order to minimize the fuel consumption at cruise. This system is activated at all operating conditions at altitudes above 15,000 feet. The engine has a design fan pressure ratio of 1.66, a bypass ratio of 6.97, and an overall compression system pressure ratio of 37.2.

The performance and weight improvement schedules for the STF-686 are shown in Figures 6 and 7. Figure 6 shows the projected performance improvement for the engine through the year 2005, using the FW2037 engine as a baseline, by which time SFC will have decreased 13.5 percent. Figure 7 shows the projected weight improvement for the engine in the same time frame and using the same baseline, a 13 percent reduction in weight by the year 2005. It is noted that both characteristics assume that aggressive component and engine technology programs will be maintained during this time span.

#### SPECIFIC FUEL CONSUMPTION



Figure 7. Bare Engine Weight (P&W STF686)

#### 4.3.4 Structures and Materials

The aircraft structure contains conventional materials and graphite/peek composite materials to represent a materials technology level of approximately 1994. The percent utilization of the advanced composite material is illustrated in Figure 8. Graphite/peek composite is composed of graphite fibers in a thermoplastic resin and it offers the potential of high strength and stiffness along with resistance to delamination and embrittlement.

Figure 9 presents the weight reduction percentages that have been determined from detailed analytical trade studies. These weight reduction values are included in the weight estimation methods within the vehicle design synthesis process. This synthesis process is performed by MODGASP where further weight decreases will occur in fuel and operating weight because of the advanced material weight reductions.

The weight estimating methods used for aircraft sizing within GASP are those for conventional transports plus allowances for LFC peculiar design variables and consideration of advanced technology.





STRUCTURAL COMPONENT	S GRAPHITE PEEK	& CONVENTIONAL MATERIAL	% WEIGHT REDUCTION
WING	69	31	29.5
HOZ TAIL	59	41	22.4
VERT TAIL	63	37	20.4
FUSELAGE	71	29	19.1
LANDING GEAR	27	73	11.4
NACELLE	31	69	21.0

Figure 9. Advanced	Material	Utilization
--------------------	----------	-------------

The methods for conventional transports have been developed and improved through past design studies. In these studies the sensitivity of the various design parameters have been derived from existing transport design data with extrapolations derived from various analytical studies. One of these design parameters is wing aspect ratio. Wing weight increases as aspect ratio increases while drag decreases. The mission requirements of the vehicle. therefore, influence the size of the optimum aspect ratio. Of course, other factors must be considered in the final selection of wing aspect ratio. Some of these considerations are flutter requirements, wing loading and CLMAX, runway width, fuel capacity, producibility, etc. The present wing weight estimation relationship for transport aircraft is the result of aspect ratio studies conducted during 1984 and it provides higher aspect ratio design synthesis than earlier methods.

The weight estimating methods for LFC peculiar design variables were derived during the Air Force/Lockheed studies (Reference 15, 1982 to 1985). These methods were revised to account for the hybrid LFC concept where LFC is applied to only the wing leading edge. The resulting weight increments are displayed separately in the various weight summaries for ready identification.

Advanced technology weight allowances are programmed in the weight estimation routines in the form of input factors for application to conventional transport weight relationships. The input factors are derived for each study program based upon the advanced design concepts under consideration for the particular vehicle. As previously described, graphite peek composite material is used in this study for basic and secondary structure in the wing, fuselage, tail, landing gear, and nacelle.

Figure 10 illustrates the Group Weight Summary for the Hybrid LFC configuration as produced by the GASP weight logic. On this table, the weight increments for LFC are identified within the Structure, Propulsion, and Fixed This means that the normal weight categories are Equipment categories. estimated from design parameters using conventional transport variations, and then the aircraft weight is modified by the LFC weight increments. The design parameters, however, are influenced by the LFC performance qualities so that LFC benefits must be evaluated from overall aircraft configuration parameters and not from the LFC weight increments alone. The LFC weight increments are derived from aircraft design parameters such as laminarized area, suction coefficients, pressure coefficients, source of air pressure (LFC engines), span of air discharge, and from the surface cleaning provisions and requirements. The fuel requirement of 2578 pounds for the suction pumps is also listed in Section 4.3.5.3 on the suction pump characteristics. The aircraft benefits are derived from lower fuel requirements, due to drag reductions, and its scaling effects on the various weight items are derived from the reduced geometry and gross weight conditions. This type of analysis is handled within GASP through iteration of the aircraft weight quantities as compared with the quantities required for mission performance.

#### 4.3.5 HLFC Systems

#### 4.3.5.1 Surface Design

The suction slot design must provide slots having flow characteristics that are predictable, stable, uniform along the length of the slot, and free from surface flow disturbances. Criteria and limits for slot design were developed to meet these requirements during the X-21 program in the early 1960's by NORAIR and are summarized in Reference 5. Unfortunately, supporting data are not well documented in the literature. When these criteria and limits are applied to the design of slots for the current airfoil requirements, mutually exclusive conflicts exist between the criteria. A strict application of the criteria and limits to define the surface slot configuration results in slot widths and spacings in the leading-edge region that are impractical, if not impossible, to manufacture on a production airplane. For these reasons, it is necessary to accept some compromises in these criteria

ITEM	ITEM WEIGHT (POUNDS)		S)
STRUCTURE WING TAIL CROUP (EMPENNAGE) BODY GROUP (FUSELAGE) ALIGHTING GEAR GROUP NACELLE/PYLON SPECIAL ITEMS LFC WT. INCREMENT - WING LFC WT. INCREMENT - TAIL	563 171	68,888 6,450 42,999 16,815 4,099 734	139,985
PROPULSION PROPULSION GROUP ENGINES FUEL SYSTEM THRUST REVERSERS MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL ITEMS LFC WT. INCREMENT - LFC ENGINES LFC WT. INCREMENT - DUCTING, ETC.	20,282 6,598 3,407 2,000 536 1,234	32,287 1,770	34,057

Figure 10A. Hyb	rid LFC	Design
-----------------	---------	--------

ITEM	WEIGHT (POUNDS)	
SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT SURFACE CONTROLS GROUP AUXILIARY POWER PLANT GROUP INSTRUMENTS & NAV. EQ. GROUP HYDRAULICS AND PNEU. GROUP ELECTRICAL GROUP ELECTRONICS GROUP (AVIONICS) FURNISHING & EQUIPMENT GROUP AIR COND. & ANTI-ICE GROUP AUXILIARY CEAR GROUP SPECIAL ITEMS LFC WT. INCR CLEAN SYS. WEICHT EMPTY OPERATING EQUIPMENT OPERATING WEIGHT CARGO ZERO FUEL WEIGHT MISSION FUEL LFC - L.E. CLEAN & ANTI-ICING FLUID GROSS WEIGHT	4,21 8 9 1,9 3,4 2,3 5,8 2,9 9 959 5,0 132,5 252,2 4,2	23,598 2 2 5 3 1 0 6 9 197,640 6 202,646 0 335,146 6 8 591,620

Figure 10B. Hybrid LFC Design

and limits. However, the lack of sufficient supporting data precludes a sound and confident judgement of these compromises.

For the design criteria discussed in Section 6.3.2.1 of Reference 5 and using Figure 11 in Reference 5, preliminary slot locations for the suction system were achieved. These slot locations are shown in Figure 11 for wing station Y/b=0.832. The chordwise design region for both the upper and lower wing surfaces start at the first slot aft of the leading-edge cleaning/ de-icing system region located around X/C=.01. Since this is an HLFC configuration, active suction ends at the front spar (X/C=.15); natural laminar flow is utilized aft of the front spar. Since this is only a preliminary configuration, more analysis will be required for a final design. In the final design, more slots may have to be added at the inboard wing stations, but these slots will not extend across the entire wing.

The partial airfoil section shown in Figure 11 shows the airfoil as a function of X/C. The suction slots are represented by marks internal to the airfoil outline. The slot width and slot spacing were finalized using the design criteria in Section 6.3.2.1 of Reference 5. For manufacturing reasons,



Figure 11. Wing Leading Edge Slot Locations

the distance between slots was kept to a minimum of 0.65 inch. Table 1 shows the geometry and performance of the upper surface of the wing at wing station Y/b=0.488. These calculations were made for the 0.77 Mach number cruise condition at 37,000 feet. The column headings correspond to a slot number (1 being farthest forward), chordwise (X/C) location, slot width (W) in inches, slot spacing (CN) in inches, slot Reynolds number (RW), the ratio of slot width to boundary layer sucked height (W/Z), the ratio of sucked-height velocity to boundary-layer edge velocity (UZ/UE), slot geometry and flow parameter (BETA), and slot pressure loss coefficient (CPS). Similar data were generated for all of the variations in spanwise location and cruise flight variations. The lower surface geometry and performance are similarly illustrated on Figure 10 and listed for the design cruise conditions on Table 2. As is shown, the performance parameters are all within the limits described in Reference 5 for optimum performance.

#### 4.3.5.2 Suction Ducting System

The suction ducting system is composed of a combination of ducts, lines, and valves to meter, collect, and transport the suction flow from each surface slot to the suction pump. This system will provide a suction distribution compatible with boundary layer laminarization over a range of operating conditions representing cruise, climb and descent with emphasis on cruise.

#### TABLE 1. UPPER SURFACE DESIGN DATA

ALTITUDE = 37,000 FT MACH = 0.77 CHORD = 16.159 FT

SLUT	<u>x / c</u>	<u>¥</u>	CN	<u>W / Z</u>	Uz/Ue	<u>R₩</u>	BETA	CPS
<b>U</b> 1	0.5590E-02	0.3000E-02	0.3000E+01	0.8062E+00	0.8067E+00	0.1660E+03	0.8030E-01	0,9230E+00
<b>U</b> 2	0.8160E-02	0.3000E-02	0.6543E+00	0.1619E+01	0.3608E+00	0.3622E+02	0.3681E+00	0.1438E+00
113	0.1106E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6535E+00	0.1493E+01	0.3343E+00	0.3533E+02	0.3774E+00	0.1536E+00
1 114	0,1413E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6546E+00	0.1369E+01	0.2971E+00	0.3327E+02	0.4008E+00	0.1539E+00
05	0.1730E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6518E+00	0.1286E+01	0.2651E+00	0.3109E+02	0.4288E+00	0.1476E+00
U 6	0.2057E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6525E+00	0.1213E+01	0.2415E+00	0.2998E+02	0.4447E+00	0.1419E+00
u7	0.2385E+01	0.3000E-02	0.6543E+00	0.1122E+01	0.2187E+00	0.2933E+02	0.4546E+00	0.1388E+00
<b>U</b> 8	0.2722E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6535E+00	0.1110E+01	0.2084E+00	0.2827E+02	0.4716E+00	0.1329E+00
0.0	0.3058E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6515E+00	0.1103E+01	0.1970E+00	0.2690E+02	0.4957E+00	0.1255E+00
010	0.3395E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6530E+00	0.1093E+01	0.1862E+00	0.2566E+02	0.5196E+00	0.1189E+00
011	0.3764E-01	0.3000E-02	0.7033E+00	0.1062E+01	0.1836E+00	0.2606E+02	0.5116E+00	0.1208E+00
U12	0.4159E-01	0.3000E-02	0.7529E+00	0.1039E+01	0.1789E+00	0.2597E+02	0.5135E+00	0.1202E+00
U13	0.4581E-01	0.3000E-02	0.8038E+00	0.1019E+01	0.1726E+00	0.2555E+02	0.5218E+00	0.1179E+00
U14	0.5033E-01	0.3000E-02	0.8523E+00	0.99(2E+00	0.1665E+00	0.2523E+02	0.5284E+00	0.1161E+00
U15	0.5512E-01	0.3000E-02	0.9032E+00	0.9635E+00	0.1610E+00	0.2524E+02	0.5283E+00	0.1160E+00
U16	0.6018E-01	0.3000E-02	0.9525E+00	0.9383E+00	0.1545E+00	0.2489E+02	0.5356E+00	0.1141E+00
U17	0.6554E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1004E+01	0.9325E+00	0.1484E+00	0.2408E+02	0.5536E+00	0.1097E+00
U18	0.7143E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1103E+01	0.9149E+00	0.1434E+00	0.2374E+02	0.5617E+00	0.1077E+00
U19	0.7787E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1204E+01	0.8959E+00	0.1375E+00	0.2316E+02	0.5758E+00	0.1045E+00
U 2 0	0.8485E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1304E+01	0.8788E+00	0.1319E+00	0.2277E+02	0.5856E+00	0.1025E+00
U21	0.9263E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1453E+01	0.8409E+00	0.1290E+00	0.23298+02	0.5725E+00	0.1049E+00

OF POOR QUALITY

### TABLE 2. LOWER SURFACE DESIGN DATA

ALTITUDE = 37,000 FT MACH = 0.77 CHORD = 16.159 FT

SLOT	<u>x/c</u>	<u>W</u>	CN	<u>W/Z</u>	Uz/Ue	RW	BETA	CPS
LI	0.1001E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1938E+01	0.9045E+00	0.5776E+00	0.9759E+02	0.1366E+00	0.34472+00
L 2	0.1296E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6515E+00	0.1536E+01	0.3086E+00	0.3182E+02	0.4190E+00	0.8923E-01
L3	0.1614E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6537E+00	0.1478E+01	0.2792E+00	0.3042E+02	0.4383E+00	0.8726E-01
L 4	0.1937E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6549E+00	0.1413E+01	0.2553E+00	0.2942E+02	0.4532E+00	0.8617E-01
L 5	0.2272E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6527E+00	0.1371E+01	0.2372E+00	0.2829E+02	0.4713E+00	0.8334E-01
L6	0.2607E-01	0.30005-02	0.6527E+00	0.1323E+01	0.2197E+00	0.2726E+02	0.4891E+00	0.8083E-01
L7	0.2948E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6528E+00	0.1292E+01	0.2063E+00	0.2623E+02	0.5083E+00	0.7787E-01
L8	0.3290E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6511E+00	0.1269E+01	0.1939E+00	0.2514E+02	0.5304E+00	0.7454E-01
L9	0.3633E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6530E+00	0.1239E+01	0.1820E+00	0.2418E+02	0.5514E+00	0.7167E-01
LIO	0.3980E-01	0.3000E-02	0.6538E+00	0.1236E+01	0.1740E+00	0.2319E+02	0.57492+00	0.6857E-01
L11	0.4354E-01	0.3000E-02	0.7036E+00	0.1192E+01	0.1723E+00	0.2383E+02	0.5595E+00	0.7088E-01
L12	0.4754E-01	0.3000E-02	0.7525E+00	0.1153E+01	0.1692E+00	0.2420E+02	0.5510E+00	0.7230E-01
L13	0.5183E-01	0.3000E-02	0.8018E+00	0.1121E+01	0.1650E+00	0.2431E+02	0.5486E+00	0.72818-01
L14	0.5640E-01	0.3000E-02	0.8532E+00	0.1091E+01	0.1598E+00	0.2417E+02	0.5516E+00	0.7251E-01
L15	0.6124E-01	0.3000E-02	0.9035E+00	0.1067E+01	0.1531E+00	0.2369E+02	0.5629E+00	0.7107E-01
L16	0.6663E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1003E+01	0.1035E+01	0.1504E+00	0.2401E+02	0.55542+00	0.72276-01
L1.7	0.7256E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1103E+01	0.1015E+01	0.1451E+00	0.23638+02	0.5643E+00	0.71162-01
L18	0.7931E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1254E+01	0.9787E+00	0.1413E+00	0.2387E+02	0.5586E+00	0.72128-01
L19	0.8686E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1401E+01	0.9400E+00	0.1366E+00	0.2403E+02	0.5548E+00	0.7279E-01
L20	0.9550E-01	0.3000E-02	0.1604E+01	0.8860E+00	0.1362E+00	0.25438+02	0.5244E+00	0.7771E-01

Individual slot flows will be adjustable from the cockpit, enabling chordwise suction distribution to be varied in flight. This section will only deal with the suction system in the wing; the suction pump will be discussed in Section 6.4.

Ducting Concept - The ducting system for the baseline aircraft evolved over time based on both LFC system requirements and structural considerations. The resulting system concept is compatible with both disciplines and has relatively few compromises to either discipline.

A typical cross-section of an individual slot is shown in Figure 12. The slot design and fabrication are based on the Task 1 development efforts described in Reference 14. Air is drawn through the slot into the slot duct, through the metering holes into the collector duct, through the collector duct orifice into the suction tube, and from the suction tube through a needle valve into one of two main plenum ducts. There are two plenum ducts extending the length of the wing span: a high-pressure duct for the lower surface, and a low-pressure duct for the upper surface. These ducts lead to the suction pump, which is discussed in Section 4.3.5.3. The schematic of the entire suction system is shown in Figure 13. Dimensions of the slots and metering holes must be selected to provide as uniform suction flow as possible to all slots with low pressure losses. The needle valves will be used to maintain



Figure 12. Slot and Ducting Cross Section



Figure 13. Suction System Schematic

the proper discharge environment for the upstream slot metering holes and provide proper flow metering downstream to match the local pressures within the plenum ducts.

To provide the cleaning and anti-icing capability, two slots have been added on the upper surface forward of the first suction slot solely dedicated to emitting the cleaning/de-icing fluid. On the lower surface, the first five slots have the capability both for cleaning and suction. At low altitudes these seven slots emit the cleaning/de-icing fluid to keep the slots open and the wing surface clean. Upon reaching a certain altitude, the cleaning system will be turned off and high-pressure air from the aircraft's environmental control system will be directed through the cleaning/suction slot geometries. This airflow will remove the cleaning fluid from the slot ducting surfaces to prevent damage to the valves and instrumentation. The cleaning system is discussed in more detail in Section 4.3.5.5.

Ducting Design - The leading-edge metering system configuration has already been illustrated in Figure 12. Table 3 shows typical slot and metering geometry dimensions used in the performance calculations for this particular study. These dimensions were arrived at through the parameter guidelines discussed in Section 6.3.2.1 of Reference 5 and also in Reference 18. However, there are indications that the very low Reynolds number characteristics of the leading-edge slots, together with a very favorable ratio of metering hole spacing to slot duct depth permits some relaxation of the criteria without any penalties to performance.

After entering the slot, flow passes through metering orifices which lead to a collector duct. The flow from these ducts is metered into a suction tube. The spacing of the holes exiting the collector duct is primarily dictated by the requirement to maintain a uniform pressure along the collector duct. The diameters of the metering holes are primarily determined by the requirement to control the pressure within the collector duct to a predetermined level, while matching the required flow to the local pressures within the appropriate suction tube.

Connecting the suction tube to one of the two plenum ducts are a series of lines across the span of the wing, each containing a cockpit-controlled needle valve. This configuration provides in-flight capability for chordwise and spanwise suction flow profile adjustment. This valve is the last metering of the flow before the flow reaches the plenum duct, which has no metering devices, so it is very critical to set the needle valves correctly. Ideally

TYPICAL NOMINAL DIMENSIONS							
		PLENUM	SLOT DUCT	METERING	COLLECTOR DUCT METERING		
SURFACE	E x/c	DUCT	SPACING (IN)	DIAM (IN)	SPACING (IN)	DIAM (IN)	
UPPER	0.017	HP	0.500	0.053	2.000	0.075	
	0.046	НР	0.500	0.072	2.000	0.095	
	0.100	НР	0.500	0.087	2.000	0.113	
LOWER	0.019	LP	0.500	0.056	2.000	0.048	
	0.052	LP	0.500	0.076	2.000	0.064	
	0.087	LP	0.500	0.091	2.000	0.095	

TABLE 3. LEADING EDGE METERING SYSTEM

the flow from all the slots will pass through the needle valves and enter the plenum duct at the correct pressure to ensure even flow to the suction pump. Instrumentation will measure the flow through each needle valve, and these instruments will help ensure that neither too much or too little suction is applied. If too much suction is applied, the boundary layer will become too thin with a corresponding loss of performance because of the increased sensitivity of the boundary layer to given surface imperfections that will result in increased external drag on transition. If too little suction is applied, air could enter the slot at one point, travel spanwise, and exit the same slot, tripping the boundary layer.

#### 4.3.5.3 Suction Units

The suction system for the baseline configuration incorporates two interchangeable fuselage-mounted suction units, each powered by an independent gas turbine power unit. Each unit includes flow and pressure ratio capacity sufficient to pump half of the flow from each surface and discharge the total pumped flow at the freestream flight velocity of Mach 0.77 at 37,000 ft altitude. Since the various laminarized surfaces have different surface pressures, it is necessary to design the suction pump to accommodate the various levels of inlet pressure while discharging all of the flow at the same pressure level.

Suction Requirements - The suction requirements and external aerodynamics of the wing airfoil are consistent with the baseline airfoil developed for this aircraft. These include wing surface  $C_p$  distribution, distributed suction requirements, and boundary layer characteristics for both the upper and lower surfaces.

The laminarized surfaces are as follows:

Wing upper	2126 $ft^2$
Wing lower	2074 ft <sup>2</sup>
Horizontal tail - each surface	$383 \text{ ft}^2$
*Vertical tail - total	675 ft <sup>2</sup>
A laminarized surface is the total area over which laminar boundary-layer flow exists, and consists of the slotted surface forward of the front spar and the area aft of the front spar to where the boundary layer becomes turbulent. The laminarized wing areas are the total for the airplane and include adjustments for 50 percent nominal chord laminarization and airfoil surface curvature. The (\*) figures are measurements for the empennage. There will be no active suction in the empennage on the revised HLFC baseline configuration, but the capability exists if a performance benefit study warrants its addition.

Suction Pump Characteristics - The most practical suction pump configuration for meeting the suction requirements of the baseline aircraft is a compact axial flow compressor which incorporates a high-pressure compressor pumping the total flow with additional lower flow boost units integrally located on the inlet to raise the pressure of the low-pressure flows to the inlet pressure of the high-pressure compressor.

A rudimentary suction unit design was completed for the purpose of establishing conceptual size, weight, and general layout of the suction unit. While this analysis obviously lacks the refinements of an optimized design, it is reasonably accurate for satisfying the present requirements and serves to illustrate some of the required considerations. The suction pump for this unit is shown in Figure 14, which illustrates the unit partially sectioned. The suction pump consists of a forward frame, a two-stage low-pressure or boost element, a mid-frame, a four-stage high-pressure element, and a scroll The forward frame serves as the attachment for the aircraft suction diffusor. system low-pressure duct and houses boost element variable inlet guide vanes. These vanes provide a control for matching the boost element flow conditions under varying flight suction requirements. The two-stage boost element is sized to meet upper wing and empennage suction flow and pressure ratio The two stages operate at a modest pressure ratio compatible requirements. with the distorted inlet conditions that will undoubtedly exist with the suction flow. The mid-frame serves as the transition duct for the boost element exhaust flow to the inlet of the high pressure element. It also provides the introduction of the high-pressure suction flow into the highpressure compressor. Variable inlet guide vanes are required in the high-

pressure suction flow into the high-pressure compressor. Variable inlet guide vanes are required in the high-pressure suction flow entry path for operation in conjunction with the boost element variable inlet guide vanes to assure a proper match between the boost and high-pressure elements.

The high-pressure element is a four-stage unit of moderate stage loading. A three-stage unit would require stage loadings that are high but consistent with foreseeable practice for conventional engine compressors. However, the anticipated inlet distortions and mismatch to which this unit will be subjected dictate the use of a more conservative four-stage configuration. Both the boost and high-pressure elements operate on a common shaft.

The exhaust diffuser collects the discharge flow of the suction pump and turns it through  $90^{\circ}$ , while reducing the flow velocity to 0.3 Mach and allowing the passage of the suction pump drive shaft axially through the center of the scroll. The flow thus exits the scroll in a round duct at a right angle to the axis of the suction pump. The diffusor/scroll also provides for a



Figure 14. Suction Pump

rigid mounting between the suction pump and drive unit. This includes a mounting for the drive shaft housing as well as an external truss structure to maintain shaft alignment and absorption of the torque between the suction pump and the power unit.

The suction pumps are driven by independent power units provided with ram inlets exhausting at essentially freestream velocity. The independent drive was adopted because it has no impact on the primary propulsion units and can therefore be independently sized. In previous studies, alternative systems were considered and include geared, bleed, and bleed/burn systems. The penalties of the more complex systems led to their elimination. A conventional but advanced technology shaft engine was adopted for this study. The total suction unit weight was evaluated at 536 lb; this figure includes both the suction pump and the power unit.

The performance characteristics of the suction pump for the baseline HLFC transport are provided in the following:

Power at cruise altitude	200 H.P.
Mass flow at cruise altitude	300 Lb/Min
Pump speed	50,000 RPM
Pump pressure ratio	4.0
Pump inlet pressure	4.1 psia
Pump inlet temperature	460 <sup>0</sup> R
Cruise altitude	31,685 ft
Mission fuel	2577.8 Lb
Two suction pumps are required for each	HLFC transport.

4.3.5.4 Controls

Control of the LFC suction system presents a number of complex and unique problems. The required suction flow levels and distributions for reliable laminarization are subject to the effects of production tolerance and deterioration, in addition to the variable flight conditions. The needle valves and excess capacity of the suction pump are required to negate the effects of production tolerances and deterioration, as well as the limited variations in flight conditions. It is apparent that sufficient range is not likely to

exist to absorb all of these influences over the entire flight spectrum and a control system to accommodate these variables would become extremely complex. In the interest of simplifying the control system, thereby improving the reliability and reducing the cost and maintenance, active suction is applied only during the cruise portion of the mission and at higher altitudes during climb and descent. This approach will allow the cleaning/de-icing system to function on the ground and at lower altitudes, in order to eliminate the contamination incurred during operation in those conditions and prevent damage to the suction system.

With this approach, the major control of the suction flow becomes that of optimizing the suction requirements between start cruise and end cruise. An appreciable change in both level and distribution of wing surface  $C_p$  values occurs between these conditions, particularly in the differentials between the upper and lower surfaces. The internal suction system pressures are dictated by these  $C_p$  values. The suction pump uses variable inlet guide vanes in both the low pressure and high pressure inlets. These vanes adjust the duct suction pressures to the varying upper and lower wing surface  $C_p$  values while maintaining desired suction flows and an acceptable match between the primary and boost elements of the suction pump.

However, this does not provide discrete control to accommodate the change in the chordwise  $C_p$  distributions. The suction system is designed to minimize sensitivity to this change through correct selection of metering holes and their spacing. To further ensure that laminar flow is maintained throughout changing conditions, variable needle valves are installed in the lines between the suction tubes and the main plenum ducts. These valves are controlled from the cockpit, and instrumentation will be present to display the amount of suction flow through each slot and the spanwise slot flow distribution. An automatic control system will monitor the suction flow and alter the needle valves as required to maintain prescribed suction levels.

The remaining control problems are primarily operational in nature and consist of:

(1) Suction unit starting at both sea level static and altitude.

- (2) Unit failure in cruise.
- (3) Atmospheric conditions at cruise.
- (4) Sea level static system checkout.

Starting the units at altitude will present some problems because the pressures at the suction pump inlet are appreciably below ambient. In the shutdown condition, a significant pressure ratio exists across the suction pump. This pressure ratio exceeds the capabilities of the suction pump until rotational speeds near design are achieved. This means that the suction pump would be stalled throughout the start range until near design speeds are attained during the start up. This is unacceptable due to power requirements and potential damage to the pump. To avoid this problem, valves are provided in the ducting system near the pump inlets to isolate the suction ducting and vent the pump inlet to ambient air during the start cycle, as shown on Figure When the suction unit reaches a prescribed rotor speed, the vent valve 15. will slowly close while the isolation valve slowly opens according to a pre-This operation may be carried out either by an automatic scribed schedule. system operated by a "start-run" switch or manually by the flight engineer.



Figure 15. Wing Suction System Schematic

In the event of an inflight suction unit failure, instrumentation at the suction pump inlet and discharge will immediately sense the failure and shut the unit down while simultaneously closing the isolation valves to that unit. After the isolation valves have closed, the valves located in the low- and high-pressure suction plenum ducts near the wing mid-semispan, shown in Figure 14, will also close, allowing only inboard wing suction.

In Figure 15, there is an allowance for ducting back to the empennage. This figure includes the empennage duct to show how it would tie into the ducting network. In the empennage itself, the suction systems would be very similar to those in the wings. In the event of an inflight suction unit failure (the situation mentioned above), the empennage valve will close simultaneously, eliminating empennage suction.

In the event of slot blockage, such as the incidence of rain and ice crystals in the cruise mode and subsequent failure of the slot cleaning/deicing system, immediate shutdown of the suction system would be required to prevent pump stall as a result of airflow starvation. This would be accomplished through sensing an abrupt increase in pump pressure ratio, signaling interference with the suction flow ingestion, and automatically shutting the system down. Provision could be made for automatic re-start, or re-start could be the responsibility of the flight engineer. An incremental increase in primary propulsion engine thrust could be automatically accomplished to compensate for the temporary delaminarization.

A pre-flight suction system checkout must be accomplished at sea level static conditions prior to initiation of the flight. This may be accomplished by the flight engineer and would consist of a normal start with the suction unit rotor speed limited to a low value to minimize ingestion of contaminants to the suction system and prevent excessive noise in the terminal area. This start would duplicate the cruise start and valving sequence except for the reduced rotor speed. Since all wing surface  $C_p$  values are zero under static conditions, the high rotor speeds are not required. When the suction unit reaches the prescribed speed, suction system pressures and flows, pump pressure ratio, and pump and power unit operational parameters (i.e., oil pressure, turbine temperature, fuel flow, etc.) may be compared to prescribed

limits. An adverse atmospheric condition would be simulated by a signal selected by the flight engineer to actuate the automatic shut-down sequence. It is expected that this ground check may be normally accomplished in a total time of less than 4 minutes.

#### 4.3.5.5 Leading Edge Region Cleaning

Since the earliest consideration of applying laminar flow control to an operational aircraft, the potential problems attending leading-edge roughness due to insect contamination and ice accumulation have been a continuing concern. The insect alleviation and anti-icing systems designed for this LFC aircraft will provide protection from wing-surface slot contamination due to insects at low altitudes and a method of de-icing the leading edge at all altitudes of operation. The cleaning/de-icing systems will emit a fluid through the wing-surface slots which will clean the wing surface and prevent icing, and then purge the system of this liquid so that suction may be safely started. The flow of this fluid will be controlled and monitored from the cockpit.

Cleaning/De-Icing System - The cleaning/de-icing system, Figure 16, will use selected slots around the leading edge to discharge a small flow of liquid onto the surface. This liquid forms a protective film over the surface to prevent insect accretion and prevent/remove ice buildup. The design requirements for this liquid flow have been demonstrated to provide a liquid film sufficient to prevent accretion in a high-density insect environment. The liquid used is a 60 percent propylene glycolmethyl ether, PGME/40 percent All components used in the system will be suitable for use water mixture. with the PGME liquid, and all components containing the PGME liquid mixture will be located in a well-ventilated area with sufficient drainage provision to prevent entrapment of any liquid leakage. The system will be designed to prevent a flammable mixture of PGME and air from forming in the vicinity of any ignition source in the event of any system leaks.

The cleaning/de-icing system, illustrated schematically in Figure 15 interfaces with the suction system, the purge system, and the nitrogen pressurization system. The major components of the system are the liquid



Figure 16. Cleaning/Anti-Icing System

supply tank and the fluid distribution system. This system will deliver the PGME mixture through the six 3-way values at the interface with the suction system to the seven cleaning/anti-icing slots. These slots (two dedicated cleaning slots and five dual-purpose slots) will be located near the leading edge. Liquid flow control will be provided by adjustment of the supply tank nitrogen pressurization system pressure. Flow distribution will be regulated by adjustable throttling values located upstream of each 3-way value.

The supply tanks will be installed so that liquid is supplied from the bottom of the tank through the single port located near one end of the tank. The two-port connector at the other end of the tank will provide for pressurization/venting and for liquid return/servicing overflow as illustrated in

Figure 16. The cleaning/anti-icing system will interface with the nitrogen pressurization system upstream of the pressure regulator. This nitrogen pressure regulator will be controlled from the cockpit and will connect to the nitrogen pressurization shutoff valve. Downstream of the shutoff valve, the vent/pressurization line will connect to an overboard vent through parallel lines.

A port on the tank connects through the liquid shutoff valve and filter to the flowmeter. The line between the liquid filter and flowmeter is

connected to the remaining port near the top of the supply tank through a fluid return line containing the liquid vent shutoff valve. A tank fill and drain line tees into the fluid supply line between the tank outlet and the liquid shutoff valve. This line provides for servicing of the tank with the PGME/water solution for tank draining, and contains a manual shutoff valve. The fluid return line likewise connects through a tee to a manual shutoff valve to provide an overflow for tank servicing. This connection is made between the liquid vent shutoff valve and the tank. For both manual shutoff valves described above, provision is made for draining PGME fluid clear of the Liquid is plumbed from the flowmeter to a manifold plenum located aircraft. in the wing leading edge area. The manifold is provided with ports for connecting six slot cleaning lines. These six slot lines are routed from the manifold to liquid flow adjustment valves also located in the wing root area. Each valve is connected to corresponding slot suction line at the 3-way suction/cleaning selection valve located in the wing root. The 3-way valves provide a mechanical interlock to avoid inadvertent delivery of cleaning liquid to the needle valves. All valves are remotely controlled from the cockpit.

**Purge System -** The air purge system (Figure 17) will be designed to remove liquid from the cleaning/anti-icing ducting and to clear all slots of liquid before the initiation of suction. This is necessary to prevent contamination of the suction system with residual cleaning liquid. Due to the numerous points in the system where liquid may be entrapped, the system is designed so the cleaning/anti-icing system may be vented to draw as much liquid as possible back into the tanks and then purge the residual liquid out through the slots. This system interfaces with the suction and cleaning/antiicing systems.

The remotely operated values in this system are controlled from the aircraft cockpit. Electrical control interconnections are made to prevent either the suction or the purge value from being energized to the open position unless the other value is fully closed.

A high-pressure gaseous nitrogen supply is used to provide pressurization for the liquid reservoirs of the cleaning/de-icing systems, and instrumenta-



Figure 17. Purge System Schematic

tion purge. The system also provides pneumatic operation of the purge system shutoff valves and pressure regulator. The nitrogen source provides nitrogen at a regulated pressure of about 350 psig. The system configuration is shown schematically in figure 18. To provide protection from excessive regulated pressure, a line is teed into the nitrogen line downstream of the pressurization shutoff valve and connects to an overboard vent through a pressure relief valve.

## 4.3.6 Aircraft Systems

The normal aircraft systems presumed to be used in the study aircraft are those generally accepted by industry as being viable candidates for improvement or upgrading during the next decade. Examples of such improvement may be further miniaturization of electronic systems, higher pressure hydraulic systems to reduce hydraulic actuator sizes, and the major changes involving fly-by-wire flight control systems incorporating active controls.



Figure 18. Nitrogen Pressurization System

#### 5.0 BASELINE CONFIGURATION DEVELOPMENT

The plan developed for the realization of contract objectives requires the development of study baseline aircraft to be used as vehicles for the evaluation of alternative LFC system concepts during subsequent study phases. This section summarizes the analyses conducted in the process of developing the baseline configurations. The baseline configurations consist of advanced technology turbulent flow aircraft, as well as hybrid LFC aircraft, all sized to perform the mission characteristics described in Section 4.2. As mentioned previously, the Lockheed GASP computer program has been used to size and define all aircraft in this study.

#### 5.1 TURBULENT FLOW AIRCRAFT SELECTION

Parametric data for turbulent flow aircraft are presented in Figure 19 for wing sweep angles varying from  $25^{\circ}$  to  $40^{\circ}$  and at a cruise Mach number of 0.77. The data in Figure 19 summarize the output of the GASP and include mission characteristics; weights; wing data; miscellaneous data such as lift-to-drag ratio, engine thrust, and HLFC data when appropriate. These data are arranged in columns starting with a reference configuration with wing sweep of  $25^{\circ}$  followed by Options 1 through 3 for wing sweep angles of  $30^{\circ}$ ,  $35^{\circ}$ , and  $40^{\circ}$ , respectively. In columns D-1 through D-3 the percentage change in each aircraft design parameter as compared to that for the reference configuration is displayed.

Parametric data for turbulent flow aircraft presented in Figure 19 show a slight superiority of the Option 1,  $30^{\circ}$  sweep configuration based on an overall comparison of minimum fuel burned, maximum lift-to-drag ratio, L/D, and minimum gross weight. Accordingly, the Option 1 configuration was selected as the baseline turbulent flow aircraft. A general arrangement drawing is presented in Figure 20 with a listing of pertinent design and aerodynamic parameters. These parameters include a take off gross weight of 616,125 lbs, lift to drag ratio of 26, thrust per engine of 30,195 lbs, a wing aspect ratio of 13.54, wing span of 255.9 feet, and a critical field length of 7,558 feet.

COMPARISON - PERCLAT CHANCL FRUM MASLLIAF PERCEART-CE. II UPTION II OPTION 2 II LPTION 1 I D - 1 II D - 2 II D ANDUA - LS ANDUA - NH 4.500.00 II 132,500.00 II 132,500.00 II 132,500.00 II 0.00 II 0	19-804-1986 TUF	BULENT BAS	SE	LINE SWE	EP	(25, 30,	35,	& 40 DE	GR	EES) S	TU	DY		
Image: Constraint of the image: Constraint of th	************************	CONFARISON - 1	PERC	ENT CHANGE F	HUH	BASELINE			••••	•••••	••••	••••	••••	•••••
PATLCAD - LA         132,300.00         132,3	**********************	I REFERENCE	11	UPTION I	11	OPTION 2	11	CPTION 3	11	n - 1	11	D - 2	11	p = 1
Statutor Rabius - HM         Statutor (Statutor)         Statutor (Statutor)         Statutor (Statutor)         Statutor)         Statutor (Statutor)         Statutor)         S	PAYLOAD + LA	1 132.500.00		132,500.00		137,500.00	11	132,500.00		9.00		0.00		0.04
BYEED - N       0,77       0,77       0,77       0,77       0,77       0,00       0,00       0,00       0,00       1       0,00       <	RANGL OF RADIUS - NH	6,500.00	11	6,500.00	÷1	4,500.00	11	6,500.00	-11	0.00	11	0.00	11	0.00
LEBUWARCE - MAG       1       1       32,115.00       1       32,05.00       1       31,96.00       4.40       1       4.40         CTL - FT       4.401.00       1       7,57.50       8,10.00       1       7,14.00       1       1.00       1       22.15       1       34.         ALD-POINT (FL - YT       5.421.00       1       5.514.00       1       5.714.00       1       1.00       1       27.15       1       34.         ALD-POINT (FL - YT       5.421.00       1       5.514.00       1       6.67.00       1       1.1.00       1       27.15       1       34.         ALD-POINT (FL - YT       131,050.00       1       212,65.00       1       126,77.00.00       1       -1.21       -1.33       1       -1.         STRUCTURAL WEIGHT       131,050.00       122,65.00       1       126,752.00       1       126,070.00       1-2.27       1       -1.33       1       -1.         STRUCTURAL WEIGHT       131,050.00       122,52.00       1       126,070.00       126,070.00       126,070.00       1-2.27       1       -1.33       1       -1.33       1       -1.33       1       -1.33       1       -1.33       1	SPEED - N	0.77	11	0,77	11	0.77	- 11	0.77	11	0.00	11	0.00	11	0.00
ALTITUDE - FT       10,001.00       10,11,00       10,2005.00       10,100.00       11,000.00       11,001.00       12,11,100       11,001.00       11,001.00       11,001.00       11,001.00       11,001.00       12,111.10       1,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00       11,011.00       12,011.00 <td>ENDURANCE - HRS</td> <td>1</td> <td>11</td> <td></td> <td>11</td> <td></td> <td>- 11</td> <td></td> <td>4.4</td> <td>5.H.H</td> <td></td> <td>ERR</td> <td>11</td> <td>F.N.M</td>	ENDURANCE - HRS	1	11		11		- 11		4.4	5.H.H		ERR	11	F.N.M
CFL - FT       6,003.00       1       7,227.20       1       5,227.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,237.00       1       7,137.00       1       1.11       1	ALTITUDE - PT	1 30,681.00		32,119.00		12,005.00	- 11	31,960.00		4.60		27 15	- 11	34 47
ALD-FOLMT CFL = 11       244,186,00       616,135,00       614,534,00       617,780,00       11 = 1,27       1 =	CFL - FT	1 6,801.00		1,337.30		5 427 00	- 11	> 201.00		1.21	- 11	1.76	- 11	
GB026 WEIGHT - LB       624,186.00       1       614,135.00       1       614,134.00       1       617,700.00       1       -1.33       1       -1.4         STRUCTUNAL WEIGHT       131,098.00       1       128,023.00       1       126,223.00       1       22,22.00       1       -2.34       1       -0.23       1       -3.1       -0.23       1       -3.1       1       -0.23       1       -3.1       1       -0.24       1       -0.24       1       -0.24       1       -0.24       1       -0.24       1       -0.25       1       1       1	MID-FUINT CFL + /1	3/463494												
STRUCTUNAL WELGNT       131,009.00       122,023.00       122,025.00       124,225.00       -2.34       -2.35       1.23       1.25       2.23       2.23       1.23	GROSS WEIGHT - LB	1 624,106.00	11	616,125.00		614,534.00	-11	617,780.00		+1.27	11	-1,53	11	-1.01
Sinucrunal Bilert       124,972.00       135,625.00       125,735.00       136,070.00       1      1.35       1      0.85       1				128 093 00	- 11	135 825 00	- 11	124 262.00	11	-2.14		02	- 11	+1.48
BISTLAN & LOUID:       23,345.00       1       23,252.00       1       23,224.00       1       23,345.00       1       -0.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       -1.41       1       1       1.11       1       1.11       1       1.11       1       1.11       1       1.11       1.11       1.11	STRUCTURAL BEIGHT	1 101,079.00		35.425.00		14.759.00	- 11	16.070.00		+1.43	- 11	-4.46	- 11	0.00
OPERATING EQUIP.       5,327.00       1       5,225.00	AVSTANS & FOULD	23.345.00		23.253.00	- 11	23.249.00	- 11	23,334.00		-0.39	ii.	-0.41	- 11	+0.03
DPERATING GIGNT       199,2464.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       199,218.00       1       120,21.50.00       1       -1.11       1       -1.73       1       -1.75       1       -1.60       11       -1.60       11       0.00       1       294,286.00       1       294,286.00       1       294,286.00       1       294,286.00       1       -1.60       10       0.00       1       394,286       0.00       1       31.30       0.00       1       304,286.00       1       31.0       -1.60       1       0.00	OPENATING EQUIP.	\$,352.00	ii	5,317.00	-ii	5,325.00	- 11	5,342,00	11	-0.45	11	·v.50	- 11	-0.18
ZEND FUEL WAIGHT       122,566.00       11       322,586.00       11       323,510.00       11       -1.11       11       -1.73       11       -1.         L.F. CLEMAR FLUED       295,725.00       1       291,401.00       11       291,325.00       11       291,325.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       123,500.00       11       10.00       11       0.00       11	OPERATING WEIGHT	1 195,866.00	11	192,218.00	11	190,158.00	11	191,010.00	11	-1.84	- 11	-4.91	- 11	-2.47
L.C. CLEAM FLUID 1 0.00 11 0.00 11 0.00 11 0.00 11 -1.00 11 -1.01 11 -0.00 11 0.00 11 132,500.00 11 132,500.00 11 132,500.00 11 -1.01 11 -1.00 11 -0.00 11 -	ZERG FUEL WEIGHT	1 328,366.00	11	324,718.00	- 11	322,658.00	11	323,510.00		-1.11		-1.73	11	-1.47
FUL       275,725.00       1       275,725.00       1       275,725.00       1       275,725.00       1       127,500.00       1       127,500.00       1       0.00       1 <td< td=""><td>L.F. CLEAN FLUID</td><td>1 0.00</td><td></td><td>0.00</td><td>11</td><td>0.00</td><td></td><td>0.00</td><td></td><td></td><td>- 11</td><td></td><td>- !!</td><td></td></td<>	L.F. CLEAN FLUID	1 0.00		0.00	11	0.00		0.00			- 11		- !!	
PARLUAD UBACYUL LUADD         122,300.00	FUEL	1 295,729.00		291,401,00		291,869.00		294,266.00		-1.40	- 11	-1.30	- 11	-0.47
INCONTACTOR       Image: Second	PATLUAD Neceni Load	1 428.228.00		423.901.00	- 11	424.349.00	- 11	426.768.00		-1.41	- 11	-4.90	- 11	+0.14
sing DATA       I       II       III       II       III       IIII       IIII       IIII       IIII       IIII       III       IIII       <														
AMEA - SQ FT       3,134.08       4,433.39       4,478.44       4,479.50       -5.85       1-12.86       1-12.         MLICHT - LB       61,521.00       58,778.00       38,930.00       57,247.00       -4.13       1       -7.46       1       -8.35       -7.16       1       -7.46       1       -8.35       -7.74       1       -8.35       -7.16       1       -9.35       -9.33       1       3.91.64       1       -9.35       1       3.46       1       2.35       1       3.24.70       1       3.46       1       2.35       1       3.46       1       2	WING DATA	!	!!						н				11	
wL1C+T - LB       e1,521.00       36,970.00       36,930.00       1       37,207.00       -4.13       1       -7.46       1       -8.         wL1C+T - LB       e1,521.00       136,970.00       137,207.00       -4.13       1       -7.46       1       -8.         wL1C+T - LB/SQ FT       11.07       11.07       12.19       11.271       12.71       12.71       12.71       12.70       1       -4.13       1       -7.46       1       -8.         ASPECT RATIO       13.03       11.54       11.471       12.71       12.78       1       1.42       1       6.12       1       5.         ASPECT RATIO       13.03       11.54       11.471       12.471       12.78       1       1.46       1.471       1.476       1.471       1.471       1.471       1.471       1.471       4.41<	ANTA - 50 FP	8.136.08	11	4.835.19	- 11	4.478.44		4.479.30	- 11	-5.85	- 11		- 11	-12 75
WEIGHT - LW/SQ FT       11.07       11.07       12.19       12.19       12.71       11       11       12.71       11       12.72       11       12.71       11       12.72       11       12.72       11       12.72       11       12.72       11       12.72 <td>4854 - 44 FI 881687 - 18</td> <td>61.521.00</td> <td></td> <td>58.978.00</td> <td>- 11</td> <td>\$6,930.00</td> <td>- 11</td> <td>\$7.287.00</td> <td></td> <td>-4.13</td> <td>- 11</td> <td>+7.44</td> <td>- 11</td> <td>-6.88</td>	4854 - 44 FI 881687 - 18	61.521.00		58.978.00	- 11	\$6,930.00	- 11	\$7.287.00		-4.13	- 11	+7.44	- 11	-6.88
ABFCCT NATION       13.03       1       13.03       1       13.44       11       13.67       11       13.78       1       3.91       11       4.91       11       5.78         NASIC SUEEP - DEG       25.00       11       10.00       135.00       11       40.00       1       20.00       11       0.00       140.00       130.00       140.00       130.00       140.00       11       140.00       1	WEIGHT - LB/SG FT	11.97	ii.	12.19	- 11	12.71	- 11	12.70	ΞĒ	1.02	- 11	6.12	- 11	A.70
ABSIC SWEEP - DEG       1       25.00       1       30.00       1       40.00       1       20.00       1       40.00       1	ASPECT RATIG	1 13.03	ii.	13.54	- 11	11.67	11	11.78	-11	3.91	11	4.91	11	5.15
BAT SWEEP - DLG       11.32       11.32       12.5.3       11.39.46       11.44.23       11.34.46       11.27.34       11.41.45         LGADING - LWSG PT       128.466       11.24.42       11.30.01       11.34.46       11.47.23       11.41.45       11.5.44       11.27.34       11.41.45         VUEL VOL. RATIO       1.00       1.00       11       1.00       11       1.00       11       1.00       11       0.00       11       12.46       11       12.42       11       14	RASIC SWEEP - DEG	1 25.00	11	30.00	11	35.00	- 11	40.00	-11	20.00	11	40.00	- 11	eJ.CU
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	BAT SWEEP - DEG	1 31.32		35.53	11	39.66		44.23	11	13.44	11	27.34	- 11	41.21
FVBL VOL. MATE       1.00 11       1.00 11       1.00 11       1.00 11       1.00 11       0.00 11	LOADING - LU/SQ PT	1 110-00		124.42		110.01		114.66		4.43		7.50		13,44
C.F. LØ/ÅPAN PT         0.00 <th0< th="">         0.00</th0<>	FUEL VOL. MATIC	258.44	11	255.01		251.24		248.41		-1.07	- 11	-2.87		0.00 -1 ^7
HAC $FT$ 24.04       1       22.08       1       22.24       1       21.83       1 $-4.82$ 1 $-7.46$ 1 $-y$ T/C       S       1       12.26       1       13.45       1       14.62       1       21.83       1 $-4.82$ 1 $-7.46$ 1 $-y$ T/C       S       1       12.26       1       13.45       1       14.62       1       15.48       1       10.03       11       19.24       1       24.68         MIGCLLANGUAG       1       1       1       1       11	C.F LB/SPAN FT	0.00		0.00	- 11	0.00	- 11	0,00	- 11	LHR	- 11	L.R.L	- 11	- 2, 91 E 14 a
trz = 6         1         12.26         11         13.49         11         14.62         11         15.48         11         10.03         11         19.24         11         24.           NISCLLLANEUUS         1         11	HAC - FT	24.04	ii.	22.88	-ii	22.24	11	21.83	- 11	-4.82	-H	-7.40	- 11	-9.19
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	t/c - 1	12.26	11	13.49	11	14.62	11	15.48	11	10.03	- 64	19.24	- 11	46.26
L/D         1         2         5         2         1         0.07         1         -0.77         1         -1.		i i					11				11			********
L/D         25.97         1         25.97         1         25.97         1         25.92         1         0.07         1 $-0.77$ $-1.77$		i	ii.		-ii		-ii		11		- 11		- 11	
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	1/0	1 25.97	11	25.99	11	25.77	11	25.62	11	0.07	11	-0.77	- 11	-1.34
CHUISK SFC       I       0.56 II       0.56 II       0.56 II       0.56 II       0.00 III       0.00 II       0.00 II	NL/D	1 19.99	11	20.01	11	19.84	11	19.72	11	0.07	- 6.8	-0.77	-11	+1.34
CL NAI T.U. I 2.73 II 2.60 II 2.46 II 7.30 II -4.76 II -5.64 II -1.5 CHUISE CL I 0.50 II 0.52 II 0.54 II 0.56 II 4.6.6 II 4.53 II 12, THRUSTYENGINE - LB I 30,661.00 II 30,195.00 II 30,299.00 II 30,599.00 II -1.55 II -1.27 II 40, THRUSTYENGINE - LB I 30,661.00 II 30,195.00 II 30,299.00 II -1.55 II -1.27 II 40, THRUSTYENGINE - S0 FT I 473.23 II 499.52 II 407.00 II 374.13 II -7.12 II -13,99 II -20.	CHUISE SFC	0.56	11	0.56	11	0.56		0.56		0.00		0.00		0.00
CRUISE CL       1       0.50       11       0.52       11       0.56       11       1.58       11       1.58       11       1.58       11       1.6       11       1.6       11       1.6       11       1.6       11       1.6       11       1.6       11       1.7       11       1.7       11       0.19       11       0.19       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10       11       0.10<	CL HAR T.U.	1 2.73	11	2.60		2.44		2.30		•4.76		-9.89	11	-15,75
THUGINANGIA - LE ( 2001-00 11 2010-01 2010-01 2010-01 2010-01 - 120 11 - 120 11 - 120 11 - 120 11 - 120 11 - 01	CRUISE CL	1 30 441 50		30 195 00	- 11	30 389 00		70 548 00		4.J4 -1 54		0.53		17.10
YENT ANEA - SQ FT 1 473.22 11 439.52 11 407.00 11 374.13 11 -7.12 11 -13.99 11 -20.	TRAUST/ENGINE - LB Phonet/Delicat	f 30'eet-00		30,193,00		0.19		0,19	- 11	+0.30	-11	-1.27	-11	-0.26
	THRUGST WE ZON'S	473.23	ii.	439.52	- íí	407.00	- 11	374.11		-7.12		-13.90	- 11	• 20 v4
NUNIA ANEM - AM FE E - 949-14 [E - 919-19 II - 947-29 II - 994-997 II - 91-19 II - 91-19 II - 91-19	HUNIZ ANEA - SO FT	424.12	ii	410.04	ii	429.56	ii	442.07	- ii	-1.70		U.80	- 11	3 74



19	-104-1986														
11		REFERENCE	-	UPTION 1	11	UPTION 2	11	UPTION 3	11	0 • L	11	0 - 2	11	0 - 1	. !!
1 11	SCHLLANEOUS (CON'T)	!	!!		!!		11				!!		!!		
1	POWER SETTING	0.88 4.375.96	Ϊ.	0.88 4.119.77	- ii	0.00	H.	0.00 3.010.55	H	-0.11	H	-0.11	- 11	-0.22	ij.
ij	TUTAL WING AREA	5,136.08	ii -	4,835.39	ii	4,615.29	ii.	4,479.50	ii	-5.85	Ξ.	+14.13 H.00	- H	-12.70	ii
ii	TOTAL/RASIC L.E. SUCTION - & C	1 1.17	ii H	1.17	ii II	1.17	ii II	1.17	- ii - ii	0.00	11	4.00		0.00	-ii H
11	L.F.THANSITION - & C ENG LUC - & MAC	1	11		11		11								11
	FUSELAGE WT/SG FT	4.06		4.05	••••	4.05		4.05		-0.24	11	-0.24		-0.24	• 11
11	************************		11				11	**********		********					1
		1	!!		Н		ii.								
H			ij.		H.		H.								ł
11 11	NG WT. EQUATION	13.00	<u></u>	13.00	<u></u>	13.00	<u></u>	13.00							:
BUTE				*********	••••		••••		****						
1.	REFERENCE - TURBULENT A	INCHAFT, 25 NAS	IC SW	LEP											
2.	OFTION 1 & TURBULENT AL OFTION 2 & TURBULENT AL	INCRAFT, 30 BAS Inchaft, 35 BAS	IC SW	LEP											



CRIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY



\*SEE FIGURE 3

Figure 20. Turbulent Flow Baseline Design Concept

Other features of the aircraft include nose loading capability only, landing gear flotation for hard surface runways, full span wing fuel tanks, no leading edge high lift devices, 25 percent chord trailing edge flaps, accommodations for 3 pilots, one loadmaster, and two bunks for the long range mission.

#### 5.2 HLFC GROUNDRULES

The ground rules for the conduct of the 21 parametric sizing studies for hybrid LFC aircraft are listed in figure 21 for the baseline configurations. Highlights of these groundrules include provisions for active suction on the wing and empennage from the leading edge to 15 percent of the chord and activation of the HLFC system only at initial cruise altitude. Turbulent flow is assumed to occur during 6 percent of cruise flight time to assure mission completion should atmospheric conditions preclude the use of HLFC for short periods during cruise. The 12 percent excess cruise thrust provides the capability to maintain cruise altitude and/or speed with the HLFC system inactive. A low wing, aft fuselage mounted engine configuration similar to that of the TAFAD study constitutes the baseline aircraft. Included in the

sizing program is a limiting transition Reynolds number based on the distance from the wing leading edge to the desired percent chord for laminar flow. This function prevents unrealistic parametric optimizations of HLFC configurations in the sizing process.

# 5.3 HLFC AIRCRAFT SELECTION

Initial parametric sizing data for the HLFC aircraft are presented in Figure 22 in the same general format as that for the turbulent flow aircraft in Figure 19 but with the addition of HLFC peculiar data. These HLFC peculiar data include weight of the leading edge cleaning fluid (Figure 22A), chordwise extent of leading edge suction, chordwise location of transition point from laminar to turbulent flow, and all other system weight additions (Figure 22B).

- WING & EMPENNAGE ACTIVE SUCTION = 15% CHORD
- WING FRONT AND REAR BEAM @ 15 & 65 % CHORD
- HLFC ACTIVATED ONLY UPON REACHING INITIAL CRUISE ALTITUDE
- TURBULENT FLOW = 6% CRUISE TIME
- 12% MINIMUM EXCESS CRUISE THRUST AVAILABLE
- WING T.E. FLAPS = 25% WING CHORD
- INDEPENDENT HLFC SUCTION POWER SYSTEM
- ACCOMMODATIONS = 3 PILOTS, 1 LOADMASTER, AND 2 BUNKS

Figure 21A. HLFC Aircraft Ground Rules

- LOW-WING CONFIGURATION
- P&W STF-686 AFT FUSELAGE MOUNTED ENGINES
- NOSE LOADING CAPABILITY ONLY
- HARD SURFACE LANDING GEAR
- AERO SURFACE L.E. HOT AIR ANTI-ICE SYSTEM DELETED
- FULL SPAN WING FUEL TANKS
- L.E. DEVICE DELETED

Figure 21B. Concluded

# ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

1A-WDA-1ARP	HLFC SW	/EE	EP & ENG	INE		)N	STUDY						
			FNT CHANGE F						••••••	••••		••••	•••••••
							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
	KEPERENCE				UPILUN 4				U • 1		u • 1	**	
PAYLUAD - LB	1 132.500.00	11	132,500.00	11	137,500.00	11	132,500.00	11	0.00	11	u.00	11	u.00
HANGE OF HADIUS - NM	6.500.00	11	6,500.00	11	6,500.00	11	6,500.00	11	0.00	- EE	v.00	ii.	0.00
SPEED + H	0.77	11	0.77	11	0.77	11	0.77	11	0.00	11	u.00	11	0.03
ENDURANCE - HRS		11		11		11		11	LHH	11	LHF	11	FKH
ALTITUDE - PT	32,119.00	11	31,605.00	11	30,462.00	11	31,357.00	11	-1.35	11	->.15	11	-2.37
CFL - FT	1 7,557.00	11	8,267.00	E F	9,713.00	11	8,408.00	11	9.39	- 11	24.52	11	11.20
NID-POINT CFL - FT	1 5,516.00	11	2,200.00	11	2,100.00	11	2,107.00	11	-60.11	11	-00.69	11	-00.33
GNOSS WEIGHT - LB	1 616.125.00		594,548.00	11	585.144.00		592,945.00	11	+3.50	11	->.02	11	- 1.70
	t	11		11		11		11		- ÈÈ		11	LHP
STRUCTURAL WEIGHT	120,023.00	11	141,036.00	11	135,941.00	11	140,401.00	11	10.10	- 64	0.16	11	9.6
PROPULSION SYSTEM	35,625.00	11	34,731,00	11	33,905.00	11	34,393.00	11	-2.50	11	-4.52	- 11	-1.4
SYSTEMS & EGUIP.	1 23,253.00	11	23,636.00	- 11	23,308.00	11	23,572.00	11	1.04	- 11	v.23	11	1.3
OPERATING EQUIP.	5,317.00	11	5,015.00	11	4,994.00	11	5,009.00	11	-2.67	11	-0.07		->.7
UPERATING WEIGHT	192,218.00	11	204,418.00	11	198,14 <b>8.</b> 00	11	203,375.00	11	6.34	11	3.06	-11	5.8
ZERU FUEL WEICHS	1 324,718.00	11	336,918.00	11	330,648.00	11	335,875.00	11	3.75	11	1.#2	11	1.4
L.E. CLEAN FLUID	1 0.00	- 14	4,285.00	11	3,787.00	11	4,223.00	11		- 11		11	
FUEL	1 291,401.00		253,330.00	11	250,686.00	11	252,828,00	11	-11.00		-13.97	• •	-13.4
PAYLUAD	1 132,500.00	11	132,500.00		132,500.00	11	132,500,00		0.00	11	0.00	11	3.0
USEFUL LOAD	1 423,901.00	 	383,830.00		383,186.00		385,328.00		-8,98		-9.60		'U.é-
ING DATA	1	11		11		11		11		н		11	
	1					11				- 11		11	
ANEA - SQ FT	1 4,835,39		4,867.83		4,497.80		4,844.00	11	0.67	11	-6.95	11	0.1
WEIGHT - LB	1 58,978.00		67,765.00		65,510.00		09.453.00		10.20	11	11.07	11	17.7
WEIGHT - LB/SG FT	1 12.19		14.33		14.30		14.33	11	17.50		19,41	11	17.5
ASPECT NATIU	1 11.54		13.46		14.18	11	13.35	11	2.10		4.72		3.0
BANIC SHEEP - UEG	1 35.53		20.00		23.00	11	20.00	- 11	- 33.33	- 11	-10.00		-11.1
LOADING - LAVED FT	124 42	11	114 40		176 69	11	114 17	- 11	-19.03		-13,30		-14.0
FUEL VOL AATIO	1 1 00	11	1.00		1.00	11	1.00	- 11	0.00	- 11			
SPAN + FT	255.91		259.74	- 11	252.56	11	260.00	-11	1.49	- 11	+1.10		0.0
C.F. LAZSPAN FT	0.00		14.49	- 11	14.99	11	16.24	- 11	E la M	- 11		- 11	1.3
NAC - FT	22.88	÷i.	22.64	- i i	22.89	ii.	22.5*	-ii	-0.47	- 11	0.04	- 11	-1.1
t/c - 1	1 13.49	ii.	11.74	11	12.67	ii.	11.02	-11	-12.97	- 11	-0.07	- 11	-12.1
				****					*******				
	i	ii		ii.		11		ii		ii			
L/D	1 25.99	11	30.91	14	30.7#	11	30,92	11	18.93	11	10.43	- ii	18.90
NL/D	1 20.01	11	23.00	11	23,70	11	23.80	11	18.93	11	10.43	11	14.9
Chuise SFC	1 0,56	11	0.57	11	0.57	11	0.57	11	2.45	11	1.35	- +i	4.0
CL HAX T.U.	1 2.50	11	2.53	11	2.44	11	2,53	11	-2.09	11	-0.15	11	-2.6
CRUISE CL	1 0.52	11	0.49	11	0.49	11	0.48	- 11	-0.27	11	->.70	- 11	-7.0
THRUST/ENGINE - LB	1 30,195.00	11	27,321.00		25,999,00	11	10,930.00	11	-9.51	- 01	-13.69	11	+10.7
THRUST/WEIGHT	0.19		0.10	11	0.17		0.10		-0.23	- 11	-7.33	- H I	-1.5
VERT ANEA + 50 PT	1 439.52	11	567.50	11	530,30	11	547.00	11	29.11	- 11	20.66	11	24.4
			630										

# Figure 22A. Parametric Sizing Data for HLFC Aircraft; M=0.77, Initial Concepts

The comparison of parametric data for HLFC configurations presented in Figure 22, i.e., Options 1 - 3, shows mixed results. First, a comparison of HLFC Options 1 and 2 for wing sweep effects with the same engine location shows slightly higher lift to drag ratio for the Option 1 case but slightly lower gross weight and fuel burned for the Option 2 case. Option 1 was deemed superior because it was felt that less leading edge cross flow effects would be encountered for the lower wing sweep of Option 1,  $20^{\circ}$ , as compared to the Option 2 higher wing sweep case,  $25^{\circ}$ . The comparison of data for HLFC Option 1 and Option 3 for the same wing sweep geometry but with the engines moved forward 5.6 feet on the fuselage shows identical lift-to-drag ratio for both cases and essentially negligible but lower gross weight and fuel burned for Option 3. The HLFC Option 1 was deemed superior because it was felt that more difficulties in maintaining laminar flow would be encountered for Option 3

	REFERENCE	•1	OPTION 1		UF110H 3	11	OPTION 3				1. <b>-</b> 2		р • ) ••••••
(INCALLANEOUS (CUN'T)	1	- ()		11		11		41		11		- 01	
	i	11		11		11		14		11		11	
PUBER SETTING	1 0.88	11	0.77	11	0,77	11	0.77	11	-11.59	11	-11.47	11	-11.47
BASIC WING ANEA	1 4,119.77		4,149.11	11	3,501.17	11	4,122,00		0.71	11	-13.07	11	0.05
TUTAL WING AREA	4,035.39		4,067.03		4,497.00		4,644,00		6.67				0.11
BAT AREA - & TOTAL	1 14.79		14.74	11	20.37	8	14.90		-0.23	11	37.70		0.11
TUTAL/BASIC	1 1.11	- 11	1.17	- 11	1.13	11	15.00		-0.04	11	1.00		v
L.E. SUCTION + & C	!	- 11	50.00		50.00		50.00			- 11		- 11	
C.P. THANSITIUN - C C	1		100.00	- 11	100.00		75.00	-ii		- ii	ENK		EMR
ENGLUL - S HAL	4.05		4.21		4.20	ii -	4.20	÷ii.	1.79	ii	1.59	ii	4.17
					**********			11	E KA	11	Fur		LAN
	i	ii –		11		11		11	ÉNN	11	FHP	11	ERM
	i	11		44		11		11	End	-11	LRR	11	Las
	i	EL CONTRACTOR		4.0		н.		E E	LHR	11	6. M M	11	ENN
	i	H		44		11		- E I -	<b>LNH</b>	11	ENH	11	F N N
	1			11		11			E HR		E PR		F NH
ING WT. EQUATION	13.00	11	13.00	11	13.00	11	13.00					**	
ILSI , RACENTRA TURBULENT J , OPTION 1 & NLFC , OPTION 2 & NLFC SVEEP , OPTION 3 & NLFC SVEEP , OPTION 3 & NLFC OPTION	AINCNAFT BAGELIA AINCRAFT, 20 SENSITIVITY, 25 4 1, ENGINE LOCA	ME BASIC TION B	25 BAT - 30 BAT - 75 & MAC	-									
ILSI . BACKINGA TUPBULENT J . OPJIDN 3 = NLFC . OPJIDN 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPJIDN 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPJIDN 3 = NLFC SPTICH	AINCHAFT GAGELIA AINCRAFT, 20 SENSITIVITY, 25 4 3, ENGINE LOCA	ME BASIC	• 25 BAT 6 30 BAT 75 & NAC	5151	EN WEIGHT A	PDIT	1025	•••					
ILSI . BO-BOILGA TUPBULENT / . OPJION 1 = NLFC . OPJION 2 = NLFC SWEEP . OPJION 3 = NLFC SPTION 	AINCHAFT BASELIA AINCHAFT, 20 SENSITIVITY, 25 4 3, ENGINE LOCA	ME BASIC TION 6	- 4 25 DAT 6 30 BAT 75 & MAC	SY51	LH WEIGHT A	DD1T	1Uas	••••				•••	
LES . BENERAL TUPBULENT : . OPTION : = NLFC . OPTION : = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION : = NLFC OPTION . TPUCTURE WING - LB	AINCHAFT BASELIA AINCHAFT, 20 BENAITUTT, 23 4 3, ENGINE LOCA 1, 0.00	BASIC BASIC TION 6	- 4 25 DAT - 30 BAT 75 & MAC HLFC 	5¥51	510.00	11 11	1025	•••• ••• ••	BASL	 11 11	-iy.21	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	- 9.70
ILSI . CPJION 1 = NLFC . OPJION 2 = NLFC SWEEP . OPJION 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPJION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPJION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPJION - L3 . MONIZ - L3	AINCHAFT BASELS AINCAAFT 20 BENAITVIT, 25 4 3, ENGINE LOCA	BASIC BASIC TION 6	- 25 DAT - 30 BAT 75 & MAC HLFC  568.00 91.00	5¥51 11 11	510.00	11 11 11	1025 564,00 86,00		BASL WASL		-iu.21 -3,29	• • • • •	-0,7U -3,4V
LAS . BORDENIAS TURBULENT / . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC SPTION	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITATIT, 25 4 3, ENGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	NE. BASIC TIDN 0 11 11	- 4 25 DAT - 30 BAT - 75 & MAC 	SYS1	510.00 88.00 75.00	11 11 11	1045 564,00 86,00 77,00	 	SASL WASL WASE		-iu.21 -1,29 -6.25	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	- a , 70 - 3 , 49 - 4 , 73
LES . BE-BECHCAS TUPBULENT / . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC STEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION 	AIHCHAFT BASELLA AIHCHAFT 20 SEMBITIVITY, 35 43, ENGINE LOCA 1 6 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00	ME. BASIC TIDN 0 11 11 11	- • 25 BAT - 30 BAT 75 • HAC 	SYS1 11 11 11 11	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00	11 11 11 11	1025 564,00 86,00 727,00	 11 11 14 14 11	845L #45L #45E #45E		-iu.2i -J.29 -6.25 -U.93		- G , 70 - 5 , 49 - J , 75 + 1 , 62
LES . CPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = HLFC . OPTION 3 = MLFC . OPTION 3 = MLFC OPTION TRUCTURE WING - LB WOMIZ - LB YERT - LB TOTAL - LW	ALHCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITIVIT, 23 4 3, ENGINE LOCA 6 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME BASIC BASIC TIDN 0 11 11 11 11 11	5 25 DAT 5 30 BAT 75 & MAC MLFC 91.00 80.00 739.00	5¥51 11 11 11 11 11	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00	DD1T	1025 564,00 86,00 77,00 727,00		SASL WASL WASE WASE		-iu.2i -j,29 -b.25 -u.93		- G. 7U - 5. 49 - 3. 75 - 1. 62
LES . LOWIDE A NURC SUEP . OPIION 3 = NLFC . OPIION 3 = NLFC SUEEP . OPIION 3 = NLFC OPIION . OPIION 3 = NLFC OPIION . OPIION SISTEM . OPIION SISTEM	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCAAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 43, ENGINE LOCA 1 1 0.00 0.00 0.00	ME MASIC BASIC TIDN 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	5 25 BAT 5 30 BAT 75 5 MAC HLFC S58.00 91.00 80.00 739.00 537.00	5¥51 11 11 11 11 11	110.00 80.00 75.00 973.00		1045 664.00 86.00 77.00 721.00		SASL WASL WASE WASE		-10.21 -1.29 -6.25 -8.93		- G., 7U - 5., 49 - J., 75 - 1., 62
ILSI . CPTION 1 = NLFC . OPTION 2 = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPTION 2 = NLFC . OPTION 2 = NLFC	AIHCHAFT BASELLA AIHCAAFT, 20 SEMBITIVITT, 25 a., ENGINE LOCA 1 6 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME	4 25 BAT 5 30 BAT 75 8 MAC 91.00 91.00 537.00 537.00	SYS1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00 •73.00 •73.00	DD1T	1045 564.00 17.00 721.00 534.00 944.00	       	845L 845L 845E 845E 845E 845E		-10.21 -3.29 -6.25 -0.93 -0.37 -2.65		- <i>G</i> , 7 <i>U</i> - 3, 4 <i>Y</i> - <i>J</i> , 75 - 1, - <i>Z</i> - 0, 55
LES . BACKER AL TURBULENT / . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION . OPTION SYSTEM ENGINES - LS DUCTING - LS . DUCTING - LS	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCAAFT, 20 AEMAITHYIT, 23 4 3, EMGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME MASIC BASIC TION 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	- • 25 BAT - 30 BAT 75 • MAC 	SYS1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	510.00 80.00 75.00 873.00 535.00 926.00 633.00		1045 864.00 77.00 727.00 534.00 949.00 642.00		843L 843L 843E 843E 843E 843E 843E		-iu.2i -3.25 -8.25 -4.93 -0.37 -2.62 -0.45		- G. 7U - 5. 49 - 3. 75 - 1. 62 - 0. 55 - 0. 21
LES . BE-BECICA TUPBULENT / . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC STEEP . OPTION STSTEM ENGINES - LB NLST - LB . STSTL	AINCHAFT BACELL AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITIVITY, 25 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME BASIC TION 6 	- • 25 BAT - 30 BAT 75 & MAC 	5¥51 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00 \$35.00 \$35.00 \$34.00 \$124.00		10k5 564,00 86,00 77,00 727,00 534,00 949,00 642,00 2,145,00	*** ** ** **	8436 WASE WASE WASE WASE WASE WASE		-iu.2i -3.29 -6.25 -4.93 -0.37 -2.62 -0.43 -1.34		-0,70 -5,49 -3,73 -1,02 -0,55 -0,23 -0,60
LESI . BE-BECHAA TUPBULENT : . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC SHEEP . OPTION 3 = NLFC OFTION . OPTION 5755 . DUCTING - LB . DUCTING - LB . TUTAL - LB . TUTAL - LB	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 43, EMGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME BASIC TIDN B 	- • 25 BAT - 30 BAT 75 & HAC HLFC HLFC HLFC HLFC  HLFC 	5¥51 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	SID.00 88.00 75.00 673.00 535.00 926.00 2,124.00	DD1T 14 14 14 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	1045 564.00 77.00 727.00 534.00 643.00 2.145.00	*** ** ** ** **	BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		-10.21 -1,29 -0,25 -0,37 -2,62 -0,45 -1,34		-0,70 -5,49 -3,75 -1,62 -0,55 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41
YES . BACKING TO A UNBULENT I . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP . OPTION STATEM ENGINES - LB NISC - LB NISC - LB . SUCTION STATEM	AIHCHAFT BASELLA AIHCHAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 43, EHGINE LOCA 1 1 0.00 1 0 0.00 1 0 0.00 1 0 0.00 1 0 0.00 1 0 0 0 0	ME BASIC TIDN Ø 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	- • 25 BAT - 30 BAT 75 & MAC WLFC WLFC      	S¥51 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00 •73.00 535.00 926.00 663.00 2,124.00	1100 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	1045 86.00 77.00 727.00 534.00 949.00 662.00 2,145.00	31 11 14 11 14 11 11 11	SASL DASL DASE DASE DASE DASE DASE DASE		-iu.21 -3,29 -8,25 -4,93 -0,37 -2,62 -0,45 -1,34		-0,70 -3,47 -3,75 -1,62 -0,55 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41
LEANING SYSTEM System - LB	ALHCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITIVIT, 23 43, ENGINE LOCA 40, 00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	ME BASIC TIDN 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	5 8 8 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 4 0 8 1 0 8 1 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 0	SYS1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	SI0.00 88.00 75.00 93.00 53.00 53.00 2,124.00 331.00	DD11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	1045 564.00 17.00 77.00 54.00 642.00 2,145.00 309.00	*** *** *** *** *** ***	BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE	6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1	-10.21 -2.29 -6.25 -0.37 -2.62 -0.45 -1.35	8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1	- G, 70 - 5, 49 - 4, 75 - 1, 75 - 1, 75 - 1, 75 - 1, 75 - 1, 75 - 0, 23 - 0, 23 - 0, 24 - 0, 60 - 0, 41 - 1, 60
VAL SANCE CAR TURBULENT / OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION TRUCTURE WING - LB HONIZ - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB UCTION SYSTEM ENGINES - LB DUCTING - LB NUTAL - LB LEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TRAPPED FLUID - LB	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCAAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 4 3, EMGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME	5 5 8 . 00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 0 5 1.00 9 5 1.00 0 6 6 6 .00 2, 1 5 4 .00 3 7 5 .00 5 8 9 .00	5¥51 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	SID.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	DD11 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 1	1045- 564,00 94,00 777,00 534,00 949,00 662,00 2,145,00 369,00 540,00		8454 8454 8456 8456 8456 8456 8456 8456		-10.21 -1.29 -0.29 -0.37 -0.62 -0.45 -1.39		-0,70 -5,49 -5,49 -1,52 -1,52 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41 -1,50
LASI . BARNELICA TUPBULENT / . OPTION 3 = MLFC . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC OPTION TPUCTUPAL WING - LB WOMIZ - LB VERT - LB VERT - LB UCTION SYSTEM EWGINES - LB HISC - LB HISC - LB TUTAL - LB LEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LU TRAPPED FLUID - LB	AINCHAFT BACELL AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITIVITY, 23 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME BASIC TIDN 6  11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	5 8 4 0 8 AT 5 8 4 AC 5 8 4 AC 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 1.00 9 3 9,00 5 3 7,00 5 3 7,00 5 4,00 3 7 5,00 4,28 3,00	53755 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	S10.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00 926.00 431.00 2,124.00 331.00 3,787.00	1100 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	1045- 564.00 86.00 77.00 727.00 54.00 642.00 2,145.00 345.00 546.00 4.223.00		8454 9454 9455 9455 9455 9455 9455 9455		-10,21 -3,29 -6,25 -0,37 -2,62 -0,37 -2,62 -0,45 -1,37 -1,1,54 -11,52		-0,70 -3,49 -3,49 -1,62 -0,55 -0,21 -0,60 -0,60 -0,61 -1,52 -1,54
VSI . BACKERSA TUPBULENT / . OPTION 1 = MLFC . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = LB . OPTION 3 = STATUM . OPTION 3 = MLFC . OPTION . OPT	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 3, ENGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME	• 25 DAT • 30 BAT 75 • 8 MAC 91.00 91.00 93.00 • 337.00 951.00 • 666.00 2.154.00 375.00 549.00 5.249.00	\$155           \$1	SID.00 SB.00 75.00 535.00 978.00 2,124.00 331.00 5,17.00 4,530.00 5,17.00 3,17.00 4,530.00 5,180.00 5,190.00 5,1	DD11 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 1	1045 564.00 77.00 737.00 534.00 662.00 2.145.00 3.05.00 5.07.00 5.173.00		8454 8454 8455 8456 8456 8456 8456 8456		-iu.21 -2.29 -6.25 -4.93 -0.37 -2.62 -0.45 -1.35 -1.35 -1.35 -1.55 -1.15		-0,70 -5,49 -1,55 -1,62 -0,55 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41 -1,60 -1,52 -1,44 -1,60
YESI . BACKING THE THE SUBJERT I . OPTION 3 = NLFC . OPTION 3 = NLFC SUBEP . OPTION STOTAL . LB . DUCTING LB . DUCTING - LB . DUCTING - LB . DUCTING - LB . DUCTING - LB . DUCTING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB . LANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB . TAMPRO FLUID - LB . NLSION :LUID - LB . NLSION :LUID - LB . DUCTING - LB	AINCHAFT BASEL AINCAAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 43, ENGINE LOCA 	ME BASIC BASIC TIDH 0     	- 25 DAT - 30 BAT 75 & HAC 5 BH. A0 9 1.00 BU.00 7 39.00 7 39.00 5 37.00 9 51.00 - 66.00 2,154.00 3 75.00 - 549.00 - 4,25.00 - 245.00 - 245.	<b>SYS</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b>	510.00 88.00 75.00 •73.00 •73.00 •73.00 24.00 •63.00 2,124.00 331.00 521.00 3,787.00 4,539.00 7,436.00	14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 1	1045- 564.00 8.00 77.00 727.00 534.00 642.00 642.00 540.00 540.00 540.00 540.00 5172.00 5.172.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		-10,21 -1,29 -0,25 -0,37 -2,62 -0,45 -1,30 -1,54 -1,30 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,54 -1,55		-0,70 -3,47 -3,47 -1,73 -1,92 -0,21 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41 -1,60 -1,52 -1,44 -1,44
LASI . BACHERICA TUPBULENT / . OPTION 1 = MLFC . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 3 = MLFC SWEEP . OPTION 2 = MLFC SWE	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCRAFT, 20 SEMBITIVIT, 23 43, ENGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.00	ME MASIC BASIC TION 0     	• 25 DAT • 30 BAT 75 • MAC 564.00 91.00 80.00 739.00 537.00 951.00 • 666.00 2.154.00 375.00 549.00 5,249.00 #,142.00	SYS1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	SI0.00 80.00 75.00 633.00 535.00 946.00 2,124.00 331.00 521.00 4,939.00 7,436.00		10k5- 564,00 8,00 77,00 727,00 54,00 643,00 2,145,00 3,145,00 3,145,00 5,172,00 4,044,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		-10.21 -2.29 -0.25 -0.93 -0.45 -1.35 -1.35 -11.54 -11.62 -11.02		-0,70 -5,49 -3,75 -1,02 -0,21 -0,60 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41 -1,52 -1,44 -1,52 -1,44
VAL SANCTORAL TURBULENT / OPTION 3 = NLFC OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP OPTION 3 = NLFC SWEEP TOUCTURAL HONIZ - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB NUCTION SYSTEM ENGINES - LB NUCTION SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TUTAL - LB LEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TAMPPED FLUID - LB NIASION HLUID - LB TUTAL - LB UTAL DELTA W7 LB	AINCHAFT BASELLA AINCAAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 43, EMGINE LOCA 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ME BASIC TION 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	• 25 DAT 6 30 BAT 75 & HAEC 568.00 91.00 91.00 537.00 951.00 666.00 2,154.00 375.00 589.00 4,285.00 8,142.00	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	S10.00 9.00 75.00 93.00 935.00 926.00 2,124.00 331.00 3,787.00 7,436.00		1045- 544,00 77,00 727,00 534,00 949,00 642,00 642,00 540,00 345,00 345,00 345,00 345,00 345,00 4,223,00 6,172,00 4,044,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		-10.21 -1.29 -0.25 -0.37 -2.62 -0.45 -1.30 -1.30 -1.35 -1.35 -1.45 -1.45 -1.45 -1.45		-0,70 -5,49 -3,75 -1,75 -0,21 -0,60 -0,41 -1,60 -1,52 -1,44 -1,46 -1,20
YESI . BACKING I HARC . OPIION I HARC	AINCHAFT BASEL. AINCRAFT, 20 AEMAITIVIT, 23 4 3, ENGINE LOCA 1 0.00 1 0.000 1 0.00 1 0.	ME BASIC TIDN 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	• 25 DAT 6 30 BAT 75 & HAC 5 BH.00 9 1.00 8 U.00 7 39.00 5 37.00 9 51.00 0 51.00 2,154.00 3 75.00 5 49.00 4,265.00 9,142.00	5 5 Y 51 4 1 4 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	LLN WLIGHT A 510.00 8.00 73.00 535.00 924.00 2,124.00 31.00 3,171.00 4,513.00 7,436.00	14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 1	1045- 564.00 97.00 534.00 945.00 2.145.00 369.00 540.00 4.223.00 5.172.00 4.245.00 4.245.00 4.245.00 4.245.00 4.044.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		-10,21 -1,29 -0,25 -0,37 -2,62 -0,45 -1,30 -1,54 -1,30 -1,54 -1,54 -1,52 -1,54 -1,54 -1,57 -1,54 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,57 -1,29 -0,21 -0,21 -0,21 -0,21 -0,21 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -0,25 -1,29 -0,25 -1,29 -0,25 -1,29 -0,25 -1,29 -0,25 -1,29 -1,20		- G, 70 - 3, 49 - 3, 49 - 4, 75 - 1, 25 - 0, 24 - 0, 60 - 0, 41 - 1, 52 - 1, 44 - 1, 20 - 1, 20

Figure 22B. Concluded

with the engines in close proximity with the wing upper surface than for Option 1. Accordingly, the Option 1 HLFC configuration was selected as the initial baseline HLFC aircraft. Pertinent design and aerodynamic parameters include a takeoff gross weight of 594,548 lbs, lift-to-drag ratio of 30.9, thrust per engine of 27,321 lbs, a wing aspect ratio of 13.86, wing span of 259.7 feet, and a critical field length of 8,267 feet.

Refinements were made in the aerodynamic and structural inputs to the HLFC initial baseline configuration sizing process to include (1) a reduction in duct weights from a previous study (Ref. 15) and (2) a change in laminar flow time loss in cruise flight condition from 10 percent to the desired 6 percent. These input changes to the sizing program resulted in very small changes in the weights and performance of the HLFC revised baseline aircraft. The revised parametric sizing data for the baseline HLFC aircraft is contained in Option 1 of Figure 23. For example, as compared to the initial HLFC

baseline aircraft the revised HLFC baseline aircraft takeoff gross weight is 591,636 lbs, versus 594,548 lbs, the lift-to-drag ratio is 30.8 versus 30.9, thrust per engine is 26,990 lbs, versus 27,231 lbs, and the wing aspect ratio is 13.87 versus 13.86. A general arrangement drawing of the baseline HLFC aircraft is presented in Figure 24, along with other pertinent design and aerodynamic parameters including a wing span of 258.85 feet and a critical field length of 8,383 feet.

#### 5.4 COMPARISON OF TURBULENT AND HLFC AIRCRAFT

The data in Figure 23 enable a comparison to be made between the revised baseline HLFC aircraft (Option 1) and the initial baseline turbulent flow aircraft listed as the reference aircraft in the first column. This comparison shows for the HLFC aircraft a reduction of 13.4 percent in fuel burned, an

11	12-FEB-1987	1986 HLFC CONT	(HACT	STUDY - N	ASA /	AIR FORCE									
!) 11	*********	COMPARISUN - PR	RCE	T CHANGE F	Rox	REFERENCE	•••		••••			*******	••••		10
11	************************	REFERENCE /	1 0	PTION 1		OPTION 2	• • • •	CPTION 3		D - 1		D = 2	+==-	0 - 1	
55 24 24	PAYLDAD - LB Range of Hadius - NM	1 132,500,00 ( 1 6,500,00 )	1 1	32,500,00	••••	132,500.00	11	132,500,00	 11 11	0,00 0,00	i i i i	0.00		0.00	1
     	SPEED - 4 Engurance - Hrs Altitude - Ft	1 0.77 1 1 1 1 32,119.00 1	1	0.77 31,361.00	11	0,80 30,905.00		0,77 36,000,00	11	0.00 Err -2.35	11 11	3,89 ERR +3,77		0.00 ERR 12.08	- 11
11 11 11	CFL - FT MID-POINT CFL - FT	7,557.00     5,516.00	1	8,383.20 2,172.00	11 11	7,357.50 2,244.00	11	6,379,00 2,659,00	:: ::	10,93		-2,63 -59,31	11	-15.58 -51,79	1   1   1
	GECSS BEIGHT - LB	1 616,125.00 I I I 1 128.023.00 I	1 5	91,636.00		637,563.00	11	614,361,00		-3.97		3,47		-0.28 ERR 70 88	
	PROPULSION SYSTEM SYSTEMS & EOUIP, OPERATING COUIP.	1 35,625.00 1 23,253.00 1		34.057.00	H	37,102.00	ii	38,179,00	H	-4.40	ij	4,14	li	7,16	ij
• •	UPERATING SEIGHT ZERO FUEL SEIGHT	1 192,218.00 1 1 324,718.00 1	3	35,146.00	11	220,425.00		221,989,00	H	5,42		14,67	H	15.48	
	FUEL Payload	291,401,00 I 1 132,500,00 I	1 2	4,258,00	H	279,592.00 132,500.00		255,308,00	H	-13,44	11 11	-4,05		-12,38	
	USEFUL LOAD	423,901.00   	:} ] 			412,092,00	+   	347.208.00		-9.24		-2,78		-4,51	
	AREA - SQ FT	i 4,835.39 i	1	4,832.28		5,574.64		5,231,06	H	-0.06		15,28	ij		
	NEIGHT - LB/SO FT Aspect Ratio	12,19 1		14.25	ij	14.09		15,50	ii	16.87	H	15.58	ij	27.79	
li	BASIC SWEEP + DEG PAT SWEEP + DEG LUADING - LB/SG FT	1 30,00 F		25.00	H	25.00		25,00 114,24		-29,63	H.	-29.63 -10,52		-31,33 -29,63 -8,18	- 1 1
11	FUEL VGL. RATID Span - FT C.F LB/SPAN FT	1 1.00 1 1 255.91 1 1 0.00 1	    	1,00 258,85 16,44		1.00 260.30 19.39		1.00 268,86 17,11		0.00 1.14 Err	11.	0.00 1.71 ERR		0.00 5.06 ERR	
	NAC + FT L/C + 8	; 22,88 ; ; 13,49 ;	     	22.60	++ ++	25.27 10.10	11	23,53 10,57	++	-1.22 -12.30	11	10.47		3.85 -21,64	
ļ	MISCELLANEOUS		1	•	H		11		H		11		H	•	ii
	HL/D CRUISE SFC	1 20.01 i 1 20.01 i 1 0.56 i		23.68 0,57		29.51 23.60 0.59		31,90 24,56 0,56		10,35 18,35 2,85	**	13.54 17.96 5.35		22.73 22.73 1.42	
# 1 # 1 	CL MAX 1.0. Cruise Cl Thrust/engine - la	1 2.00 1 1 0.52 1 1 30.195.00 1	      	2,53 0,48 26,990,00	11	2.53 0.41 30.231.00	11	2,53 0,58 32.000.00	井	-2.69 -7.60 -10.61	H	-2,69 -21,67 0,11	11	-2.69 10.26 5.97	11
ii H	THRUST/WEIGHT VERT AREA + SO FT	1 0.19 1 1 439,52 1	1	0.18	ii	0.18	ii ii	0,20 624,30	ii	-6,91 28,10	ii.	-3,24	ii	6.28	

Figure 23A. Parametric Sizing Data for HLFC Aircraft; Speed and Altitude Changes

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

# ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

***************************************	REPERENCE	11 0	MALION 1	11	OPTION 3	11	OPTION 3	11	D = 1	11	0 - 2		0 - 1
ISCELLANEOUS (CON'T)	·*						······	11		11		11	
	i	11		11		11		11		11		11	
POSER SETTING	1 0,88		0.78		0.78	11	0.76	-11	-11,36		-10.79		-12,95
BASIC WING AREA	4,119,77			11	6,875,84		6,481,72	- 11	+0.04	- 11	15.20	- 11	
TUTAL BIRG AREA	1 14.79		14.77	- 11	12.17	- 11	14.70	- 11	-0.16		-17.72	- 11	+0.45
TOTAL/BASIC	1.17	- 11	1.17	- 11	1.11	- 11	1,17	ii.	-0.02	-ii	-2,98	- i i	+0.11
L.E. SUCTION - & C	1	11	15,00	4.8	15.00	- 11 -	15,00	11				- 11	
L.F.TRANSITION - & C	1	11	50.00	11	50.00		50,00			-11			
ENG LOC - & MAC	!		100.00	- !!	100.00		100,00		1 14	-11	6 34	- 11	2 A 38
FUSELAGE WT/SQ FT	•••••••••••	*******	•••••		••••••••		•••••				•••••		
ING WT. EQUATION	1 13,00	11	13,00	11	13,00	()	13.00		*******	11		41	
······································				****			•••••	****					
. BATANANAL = TURBULENT	AIRCRAFT LINE, M=0,77												
. BATERONA = TUPBULENT . OPTION 1 = HLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = HLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = HLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = HLFC BASE	AIRCRAFT LINE, ME0,77 LINE, ME0.80 LINE, NE0.77, HE3	6,000 F1	HLFC	: s15'	TEN WEIGHT /	DDIT	ICNS						
. BARAMANA = TURBULENT . OPTION 1 = HLFC BASEL . OPTION 2 = HLFC BASEL . OPTION 3 = HLFC BASEL . OPTION 3 = HLFC BASEL 	AIRCBAFT JTHE, H=0,77 JTHE, H=0.80 JTHE, H=0,77, H=3 	6,000 F1	HLF(	513	TEN WEIGHT /	DDIT	IQNS						
. BATEMAN = TURBULENT . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = NLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE TRUCTURE WING - LB	AIRCBAFT LTHE, N=0.77 LINE, N=0.80 LTME, N=0.77, N=3 LTME, N=0.77, N=3 LTME, N=0.77, N=3	6,000 F1	#LFC	513 11	TEN WEIGHT /	DDIT	ICN3			11		11	9,03
. RAYGHAMAS = TUPBULENT . DPTION 3 = MLFC SASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE	AIRCRAFT LINE, M=0,77 LINE, M=0.80 LINE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	563.00 91.00	513 11 11	TEM WEIGHT / 657.00 111.00		10x3		BASE BASE	6 E 9 J 1 1	16.69 21.97	11	9,03 4,39
. RAFEMENTS TURBULENT . OPTION 1 = HLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = HLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = HLFC BASE . TRUCTURE . VING - LB . NORIZ - 1.5 . VERT - LB	AIRCBAFT LTHE, M=0.77 LIME, M=0.80 LIME, M=0.77, M=3	6,000 F1	543,00 \$1,00 \$0,00	: STS          	TEN WEIGHT / 457,00 111,00 90,00	NDDIT	10N3 614.00 95.00 88.00	     	BASE BASE BASE	11 11	14.69 21.97 12.50		9,03 4,39 10,00
. References = TURBULENT . DPTION 1 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE	AIRCRAFT THE, M=0.77 INE, M=0.80 INE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	563,00 51,00 80,00 734,00	STS'	TEM WEIGHT / 657,00 111,00 90,00 858,00	100IT	10%5 614,00 95,00 86,00 797,00	11 11 11	845£ 845£ 845£ 845£ 845£		14,69 21,57 12,50 14,69		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,39
. RAFAGAMANA = TURBULENT . OPTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 3 = HIFC SASE . TURCTURE VING - LB VERT - LB VERT - LB UCTION SAVETE	AIRCRAFT LTHE, M=0.77 LTHE, M=0.80 LTHE, M=0.77, M=3	6,000 F1	543.00 51.00 80.00 734.00	STS 11 47 11 11 11 11 11	457.00 111.00 90.00 458.00		10x3 614,00 95,00 88,00 797,00		8455 8455 8455 8455 8455		14.69 21.97 12.50 34.09		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,58
. BAYSMANNAS = TUPBULENT . DPTION 1 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE . TEUCYURE WING - LB WORIZ - LB TOTAL - LB UCTION SYSTEM EMGINES - LB	AIRCRAFT ITHE, M=0.77 ITHE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	543.00 \$1.00 \$0.00 734.00	STS 11 47 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	457,00 111,00 90,00 458,00 563,00	DDIT	10N3 95,00 88,00 797,00 546,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14,69 21,97 12,50 14,09 3,03		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,50
.Reference - TUPBULENT . OPTION 1 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 2 = MLFC BASE . OPTION 3 = MLFC BASE	AIRCRAFT ITHE, M=0.77 ITHE, M=0.80 ITHE, M=0.77, M=3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	6,000 F1	543.00 \$1.00 \$0.00 734.00 \$34.00	STS 11 47 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	TEM WEIGHT / 657.00 111.00 90.00 858.00 543.00 578.00	100IT	10x5 95,00 88,00 797,00 546,00 591,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14.69 21.97 12.50 14.09 5.03 1.58		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,58 1,84 3,86
.BARAGES - TUPBULENT . DFIION 1 = HLFC SASE . OFIION 2 = HLFC SASE . OFIION 3 = HLFC SASE . OFIION 2 = HLFC SASE . OFIION 2 = HLFC SASE . OFIION 2 = LB . OFILO SYSTEM ENGINES - LB . DUCTING - LB . USC LB	AIRCRAFT LTHE, M=0.77 LTHE, M=0.80 LTHE, N=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	563,00 90.00 734.00 536.00 536.00 545.00	STS 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	TEM WEIGHT / 657.00 111.00 90.00 858.00 543.00 543.00 578.00	10011 11 11 11 11	10x3 95.00 88.00 797.00 546.00 59.00 677.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14.69 31.97 12.50 14.09 5.03 1.58 4.96		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,59 1,84 3,86 1,80
. RAVATION : TUPBULENT . D7110W : NLFC 5ASE . O7110W 2 = NLF . O7110W 2 = N	AIRCRAFT ITHE, M=0.77 ITHE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	543,00 91,00 90,00 734,00 536,00 549,00 645,00 6,770,00	STS () () () () () () () () () ()	457.00 111.00 90.00 458.00 543.00 543.00 540.00 1,039.00		614.00 95.00 88.00 797.00 546.00 59.00 677.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14.69 21.97 12.97 14.09 14.09 5.03 1.58 4.96 2.09		9,03 4,19 10,00 8,50 1,84 3,66 1,60 2,40
. REFERENCES TUPBULENT . DFIION 3 = MLFC BASE . OFTION 3 = MLFC BASE . OFTION 3 = MLFC BASE . TPUCTURE . JNKG - LB MCRII - LB . TOTAL - LB . UCTION SYSTEM ENGINES - LB . TOTAL - LB . LB . LEANING SYSTEM	AIRCRAFT THE, M=0.77 INE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	543,00 91,00 60,00 734,00 536,00 536,00 65,00 65,00	STS 1 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	TUN WEIGHT / 657.00 11.00 00 858.00 543.00 578.00 1.838.00 1.838.00		10x3 614.00 8.00 797.00 546.00 571.00 1.014.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		16,69 21,97 13,30 16,69 5,03 1,58 4,58 4,2,69		9,05 4,19 10,00 8,39 1,84 3,86 1,80 2,40
. RAYGAMANA = TUPBULENT . OPTION 3 = NHFC SASE . OPTION 3 = NHFC SASE . OPTION 3 = NHFC SASE . TUCTURE . TUCTURE . TOTAL - LB . LEANING SYSTEM . SYSTEM - LB	AIRCRAFT LTHE, M=0.77 LTHE, M=0.80 LTHE, M=0.77, M=3 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00 i 0.00	6,000 F1	543.00 91.00 80.00 734.00 536.00 545.00 455.00 455.00 373.00	STS 14 47 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	457.00 111.00 90.00 363.00 543.00 1,020 498.00 1,020 402.00	DDIT ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ +	10H3		SASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14.69 21.97 12.50 14.89 5.03 1.58 4.96 3.89	   	9,03 6,39 10,00 8,39 1,60 3,66 3,66 3,66 8,04
. RAVANAMA = TUPBULENT . DPTION 3 = HLFC SASE . OPTION 2 = L8 . OPTION SYSTEM ENGINES - L8 . OUCTING SYSTEM . STSTEM - L8 . STSTEM - STSTEM	AIRCRAFT THE, M=0.77 INE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	543,00 51,00 60,00 734,00 536,00 549,00 645,00 1,770,00 373,00 54,00	STS 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	TEM WEIGHT / 457.00 111.00 90.00 858.00 358.00 378.00 442.00 442.00 442.00	10011 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	10#3 95,00 86,00 797,00 544,00 591,00 677,00 1,014,00 403,00 632,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		16,69 21,97 12,50 16,69 5,03 1,58 4,96 3,89 18,49 24,43		9,03 4,39 10,00 8,38 1,86 3,86 1,60 2,48 8,04 8,02
. RAYGAMMAL = TUPBULENT . OPTION 1 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 2 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OPTION 2 = IS . OPTION 2 = IS . OPTION 2 = IS . OPTION SYSTEM EWGINES - LS UCTION SYSTEM ISC - LS . OPTION SYSTEM STATEM - LS TRAPED FLUID - LS . STATEM - LS . SASE . SASE	AIRCRAFT ITHE, H=0.77 ITHE, H=0.77, H=3 I 0.00 I 0	6,000 F1	543,00 9,00 60,00 734,00 534,00 645,00 ,770,00 373,00 546,00 4,255,00	ST3 1 4 4 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	TEM WEIGHT / 457.00 11.00 90.00 543.00 543.00 1.039.00 442.00 5.044.00 5.044.00 5.044.00		10x3 95,00 88,00 797,00 546,00 591,00 677,00 1,014,00 43,00 4,00,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14,69 21,97 13,30 15,89 5,03 1,58 4,96 3,89 10,49 10,49 10,49		9,03 9,03 10,00 8,30 1,86 3,86 3,86 3,86 3,86 3,86 3,86 3,86 3
.BARAGES TUPBULENT . OPTION 1 = HLFC SASE . OPTION 2	AIRCRAFT ITHE, M=0.77 ITHE, M=0.77, M=3 .INE, M=0.77, M=3 .INE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	543.00 543.00 80.00 734.00 549.00 549.00 645.00 1,770.00 373.00 546.00 1,258.00 1,258.00 1,258.00		457.00 111.00 90.00 363.00 543.00 1.030.00 1.030.00 4.02.00 4.02.00 6.103.00	100111 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	614.00 95.00 86.00 797.00 546.00 571.00 677.00 1.014.00 4.00.00 5.642.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		16,69 21,97 12,50 16,89 3,03 1,58 4,96 3,89 18,49 18,49 18,49 18,55		9,03 4,00 8,39 1,86 3,66 3,66 3,66 3,66 8,00 8,00 8,01 4,14
. BARAGES - TUPBULENT . OFTION 1 = HIFC SASE . OFTION 2 = HIFC SASE . OFTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OFTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OFTION 2 = HIFC SASE . OFTIO	AIRCRAFT THE, M=0.77 INE, M=0.77, M=3 	6,000 F1	S63.00 54.00 53.00 534.00 534.00 534.00 534.00 345.00 546.00 373.00 546.00 546.00 373.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 546.00 545.00 546.00	5 575 1 1 4 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	TLW WEIGHT / 457.00 11.00 90.00 358.00 363.00 1.039.00 442.00 694.00 5.049.00 4.02.00 4.02.00 0.183.00 0.083.00 0.183.00	SDDIT 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	10x3 \$,00 \$,00 797,00 \$44,00 \$7,00 1,014,00 403,00 4,00,00 5,442,00 \$,233,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		16,69 11,57 12,57 14,69 5,03 1,58 4,96 3,89 18,40 18,40 18,57 18,57 13,03 13,03		9,03 4,19 10,00 8,39 1,44 1,60 2,48 8,00 8,07 8,07 4,07 4,07 4,07 4,07
. RAVALANCE = TUPBULENT . DTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OTION 2 = HIFC SASE . OTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OTION 3 = HIFC SASE . OTION 2 = HIFC SASE . OTION 2 = LS . OTION 2 = LS . OTION SYSTEM ENGINES - LS . DUCTING - LS . DUCTING - LS . LS . LANING SYSTEM STSTEM - LS . LS . LS . LS . DTAL - LS . D	AIRCRAFT THE, M=0.77 INE, M=0.77, M=3 	4,000 F1	543,00 9,00 734,00 534,00 534,00 534,00 453,00 ,770,00 373,00 546,00 ,256,00 ,217,00	1         1         4         4         1 <td< td=""><td>457,00           11,00           90,00           358,00           358,00           363,00           364,00           378,00           442,00           642,00           442,00           6,185,00           8,882,00</td><td>ADDIT</td><td>10x3 414.00 95.00 84.00 544.00 51.00 677.00 1.014.00 403.00 633.00 5.442.00 8.253.00</td><td></td><td>BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE</td><td></td><td>14,69 21,57 12,50 14,69 5,03 1,58 4,96 3,69 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,97 14,57 14,57 14,57 14,03</td><td></td><td>9,03 4,19 10,00 8,39 1,84 1,86 1,80 2,48 8,00 8,00 8,01 4,02 4,17 - 8,14</td></td<>	457,00           11,00           90,00           358,00           358,00           363,00           364,00           378,00           442,00           642,00           442,00           6,185,00           8,882,00	ADDIT	10x3 414.00 95.00 84.00 544.00 51.00 677.00 1.014.00 403.00 633.00 5.442.00 8.253.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		14,69 21,57 12,50 14,69 5,03 1,58 4,96 3,69 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,96 14,97 14,57 14,57 14,57 14,03		9,03 4,19 10,00 8,39 1,84 1,86 1,80 2,48 8,00 8,00 8,01 4,02 4,17 - 8,14







increase of 18.4 percent in lift-to-drag ratio, a reduction of 10.6 percent in engine thrust, and a reduction of 4.0 percent in takeoff gross weight. The data also shows a 5.4 percent increase in the operating weight empty of the HLFC aircraft over that for the turbulent flow aircraft. This increase in operating weight for the HLFC aircraft is due primarily to the 7,721 pounds of HLFC peculiar structural weight additions and also to the 53 percent increase in horizontal tail area as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft.

Examination of the turbulent flow and HLFC aircraft parameters indicates that the tail volume coefficients for both configurations are reasonable. However, the approximately 50 percent larger horizontal tail volume coefficient for the fuselage-mounted engines configuration results from the requirement for a substantially greater center of gravity range, 37 percent MAC, as compared with that for the wing mounted engine configuration of 26 percent as shown in Figure 25.



Figure 25. Horizontal Tail Sizing Chart

Aft fuselage mounted engine configurations exhibit wider center of gravity travel because the wing (and its fuel) are displaced aft with respect to the centroid of the payload compartment. This effect is discussed on page 299, Figure 8-10, of Reference 19.

The aft engine system, because of the rearward shift of weight, results in nose wheel lift-off being much more critical for this configuration than for the wing mounted engine configuration, as also shown in Figure 25.

#### 5.5 HLFC AIRCRAFT DEFINITION

#### 5.5.1 Configuration Design

The baseline LFC configuration shown in Figure 24 is a wide-body transport configuration designed to carry a 132,500 pound payload at a range of 6500 nm at M = 0.77 with adequate fuel to account for adverse winds, intermittent LFC disruptions due to atmospheric conditions at cruise altitude, and normal international fuel reserves. A typical payload-range curve is given in Figure 26.

A typical arrangement of 38x108 cargo pallets is shown in Figure 27. The cargo compartment is 19.5' wide, 13.5' high and 110.75' long. In addition to cargo, various vehicles and other equipment may be accommodated in the cargo compartment (See Figure 28).

Two suction pumps are required for the HLFC transport aircraft. A general arrangement of the suction system which is required for the HLFC Transport is shown in Figure 29.

The power unit which is required to drive the suction pump is mounted behind the suction pump. A drive shaft couples the power unit and suction pump together. This arrangement is used to minimize the size and weight of the ducting necessary to laminarize the leading edge. An S-shaped inlet duct provides air to the power unit. The power unit and the suction pump both exhaust through ducts in the side of the pod used to house the suction system. The arrangement of the suction pumps and ducts is shown in Figures 30A and 30B.

HLFC PAYLOAD - RANGE

----







Figure 27. HLFC Concept Cargo Pallets Arrangement



Figure 28. HLFC Concept Arrangement of Vehicles



Figure 29. Suction Pump/System General Arrangement



Figure 30A. HLFC Concept Suction Systems Arrangement



Figure 30B. Concluded

All of the configurations investigated in this study are fuel volume critical because of the large unrefueled range requirement, and therefore use both wing and center section fuel. Since fuel volume sizes the wing, wing size and aircraft weight and drag could be reduced if fuel volume could be obtained elsewhere, as for example, under the fuselage cabin floor.

# 5.5.1.1 Leading Edge

LFC suction capability is provided only in the leading edge of the wing. The leading edge is removable and it contains a system of chordwise slots with subsurface compartments which are used to control the pressure gradients inside the leading edge (Figure 31).

The leading edge is fabricated in two sections. The upper section is a fixed nose panel and the lower section is removable to provide access for maintenance and adjustment of the LFC suction and slot cleaning equipment. Two full length diaphragms provide substructure support. These members



Figure 31. Leading Edge Design Concept

provide support for the upper and lower panels and form the boundaries of the upper and lower surface ducts. All leading edge components are of sandwich construction and feature graphite/epoxy sheets and a corrosion resistant aluminum honeycomb core. The suction slots are cut into the thin guage outer titanium skin which is bonded to the outer panel face sheet. This titanium skin also provides environmental protection for the structure.

# 5.5.1.2 Fuel Tanks

An auxiliary fuel tank and two main fuel tanks in each wing are the basis for the fuel system (See Figure 32). In addition, an auxiliary fuel tank is located in the center wing box within the fuselage. The main tanks are used to supply fuel to the main engines. The fuel for the LFC suction pump power units will be supplied from the auxiliary center tanks. Fuel transfer between the auxiliary and main fuel tanks is accomplished as required.



Figure 32. Fuel Tank Arrangement

Access doors in the lower surface of the wing are provided for inspection, maintenance, and repair of the wing structure. All components including boost pumps, fuel probes, and fuel level control valves are removable from the exterior of the lower wing surface. Single point ground pressure fueling is accomplished from the main landing gear wheel well.

5.5.1.3 Empennage

The Empennage is a T tail arrangement as shown in Figure 33.

Construction of the tail is similar to the wing with the exception that the leading edges of the horizontal and vertical tails do not have the slots or plumbing for LFC suction.

The horizontal tail incorporates elevators as part of the trailing edge. A double hinged rudder is attached to the aft spar of the vertical tail. The elevator and rudder are part of the FBW (fly by wire) control system.



Figure 33. Empennage General Arrangement

#### 5.5.1.4 Landing Gear

A two wheel nose gear and a two strut twelve wheel main gear (Figure 34) comprise the landing gear system.

The main landing gear is fuselage mounted. Each strut retracts into the fuselage. The gear rotates about a longitudinal axis  $90^{\circ}$  from fully retracted to fully extended. A total of six wheels is mounted on each strut. The wheels are arranged in three pairs of two on each strut. No form of directional steering or swivelling is employed on the main gears.

The nose gear retracts forward into the belly of the aircraft. Nosewheel steering operated by a handwheel controlled by the pilot is provided.



Figure 34. Main Landing Gear

#### 5.5.1.5 High Lift Systems

The high lift system consists of single slot, hinged, full span flaps (Figure 35). The outboard portion of the flaps are provided by drooping the ailerons. Control of the hydro-mechanically operated flaps is accomplished by a single pilot input. Systems to prevent asymmetrical flap operation and flap position indication are also provided.

Secondary flaps of 9.5% chord are built into the entire span of the main flaps. These secondary flaps are used along with the primary flaps in the high lift mode or separately as part of the active control system. The onboard fly-by-wire computer system actuates the secondary flaps in the active control mode by means of electro-hydraulic servo units.



Figure 35. Wing Trailing Edge Design

#### 5.5.2 HLFC Wing Aerodynamics Design

Since 1974, a number of automated design and analysis methods have been developed by Lockheed for wings having extensive regions of laminar flow. These methods are applicable to Natural Laminar Flow (NLF), Laminar Flow Control (LFC), and Hybrid Laminar Flow Control (HLFC) wing design. The design methodologies are depicted in block diagram form in Figure 36. Aerodynamics effort in this contract was concentrated on use of these available HLFC design methods to develop an initial baseline HLFC wing configuration which is close to the final parametric wing defined in the sizing and optimization studies. This objective was achieved, however some additional refinement of wing geometry and applied suction would be required to develop a true "production" configuration with near-minimal suction. The resulting final configuration might then require resizing to finalize the baseline. A summary of the aerodynamic design and derivation of necessary inputs to the suction system design is provided in the sections that follow.





58 -

5.5.2.1 Parametric Sizing of Aircraft Including Suction Requirements and Suction System

As previously outlined in Reference 2 and repeated herein, the HLFC system is characterized in the parametric sizing code with the following inputs:

(1) Type of HLFC suction power

Option 1: Independently-powered suction units (used in this contract)

Option 2: Suction units integrated with primary propulsion

Option 3: Suction units integrated with other aircraft systems

(2) Number and location of HLFC suction units

- (3) Parametric geometric description of LFC glove and suction ducts
- (4) Parametric suction external pressures and suction distributions
- (5) Extent of laminar flow provided by extent of HLFC suction
- (6) Parametric incremental costs of HLFC systems (omitted in this study)

#### 5.5.2.2 Determination of Baseline Wing Detailed External Contours

Baseline configuration parametric code outputs were used as a starting place for detailed design of the baseline wing external contours (and surface pressures). The detailed design starting point baseline wing geometry derived from parametric studies is illustrated in Figure 37. As previously explained in Reference 2, the subsequent aerodynamic design followed the procedure outlined in Figure 38.



Figure 37. Areas of HLFC and Wing Laminarization



Figure 38. Aerodynamic Design Procedure for LFC and TF Wings

Using the above-mentioned methods, the baseline wing geometry was derived with a typical airfoil shape as illustrated in Figure 39. The shape corresponds to that used at the wing control station at 0.350 nondimensional semispan position. Wing section chordline incidences and thickness ratios at the fuselage side, break station, and tip are indicated below:

Position	Incidence (degrees)	Thickness (t/c)
Side of Fuselage	0.75	0.130
Wing Break Station	1.25	0.118
Wing Tip	-0.25	0.118

# 5.5.2.3 Baseline Wing Surface Pressure Results

Figure 40 illustrates a typical surface pressure result on the derived baseline wing geometry. This pressure distribution shape is for the 0.488 nondimensional wing station and is the result of viscous three-dimensional



Figure 39. Typical Airfoil Section on Baseline HLFC Wing

flow computations at the basic design point at start-cruise conditions. Surface pressure results from this station and others over the semispan of the wing were used to determine wing boundary layer and boundary layer stability results. Discussion of these results is provided in the sections that follow.

## 5.5.2.4 Baseline Suction and Boundary Layer Stability Results

Using the wing surface pressure results described above, a suction distribution was developed using the parametric description as the starting point. Changes to airfoil pressures and suction were made to produce better results from the boundary layer and boundary layer stability predictions. The suction distribution from these design iterations, shown in Figure 41, is similar in shape and total suction mass flow to that used in parametric studies, Additional design work is warranted to arrive at an "optimum" wing design. Any additional work is, however, outside the time and cost constraints of the current contract.



REPRESENTATIVE WING Cp DISTRIBUTION FROM WING STATION 7 = 0.488

Figure 40. Representative Wing C Distribution from Wing Station  $\eta$ = 0.488

The data in Figure 42 shows the amount of flow required to be suctioned off the boundary layer to maintain laminarized flow on each wing. This flow is typical for the baseline airfoil operating at Mach 0.77 and 37,000 feet altitude. The suction pump used on the aircraft has the capacity to pump 150 percent of the flow of both wings, so there should be no difficulty in operating the pump at off-point conditions and still maintain laminarized flow.

Results of boundary layer crossflow stability calculations using the SALLY code are shown in Figure 43. Note that results indicate that transition is likely to occur near midchord position for both the upper and lower



Figure 41. Mass Flow Suction Level

TOTAL SUC	TION FLOW REQUIRED FOR ONE WING	SUCTION FLOW
SECTION 1.	UPPER SURFACE, FROM WING ROOT TO Y/b = .35	17.66 LB/MIN
SECTION 2.	UPPER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .35 TO Y/b = .56	13.43 LB/MIN
SECTION 3.	UPPER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .56 TO Y/b = .78	15.36 LB/MIN
SECTION 4.	UPPER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .78 TO WING TIP	12.04 LB/MIN
SECTION 1.	LOWER SURFACE, FROM WING ROOT TO Y/b = .35	13.08 LB/MIN
SECTION 2.	LOWER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .35 TO Y/b = .56	11.02 LB/MIN
SECTION 3.	LOWER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .56 TO Y/b = .78	11.36 LB/MIN
SECTION 4.	LOWER SURFACE, FROM Y/b = .78 TO WING TIP	11.56 LB/MIN
	TOTAL SUCTION FLOW FOR ONE WING =	105.51 LB/MIN


surfaces with active suction no farther aft than 15 percent chord. Further design refinement should improve the initial baseline results illustrated. Tollmien-Schlichting instability calculations do not pick up instability on either the upper or the lower surface back to 50 percent chord.

The basic transition N Factor level is compatible with levels demonstrated to be adequate from earlier Lockheed LFC work for NASA as outlined in Reference 12. Based on this work and other Lockheed experience, analysis work was concentrated on crossflow stability verification. For the configurations of this study, the Tollmien-Schlichten stability mode was much less critical than crossflow and was not examined at great length. The leading-edge attachment line momentum thickness Reynolds number,  $R_{\Theta_{a.l.}}$ , was also not studied at great length since the configurations of the study have leading-edge radii, pressure gradients, and sweep similar to previously-studied wings and should have similar, satisfactory leading-edge contamination characteristics.



CROSSFLOW DISTURBANCE N FACTOR, WING STATION 71\*.488



The Gaster bump, leading-edge notch, and initiation of suction nearer the leading edge provide several proven means of avoiding unsatisfactory characteristics should more detailed design indicate that a problem exists. The resulting effects of any such changes on aircraft weights would be very small should they be necessary.

### 5.5.2.5 Possible Future Wing Refinements

The initial baseline wing can probably be further refined to reduce the likelihood of transition forward of 50 percent chord with some changes to (a) geometries and resultant pressure, (b) suction levels and distributions, and (c) suction surface configuration. Data from the wing external aerodynamics design were used in baseline suction surface determination, internal HLFC geometry design, and verification of suction powerplant size required. Details of this part of the HLFC design are contained in Section 4.4.5 of this report.

### 6.0 CONFIGURATION SENSITIVITY STUDIES

Sensitivity studies relative to performance and configuration parameters are reviewed in this section for both hybrid LFC and turbulent flow aircraft.

### 6.1 HLFC AIRCRAFT SENSITIVITY STUDIES

### 6.1.1 Increase of Cruise Speed or Altitude

Preliminary sensitivity studies were performed on the baseline HLFC aircraft (Option 1, Figure 23) to include the effects on performance of (1) increasing the cruise Mach number from 0.77 to 0.80 (Option 2, Figure 23) and (2) increasing the initial cruise altitude from 32,361 feet to 36,000 feet (Option 3, Figure 23).

As compared to the HLFC aircraft at M = 0.77 cruise speed, the HLFC aircraft at M = 0.80 shows an increase in fuel burned of 10.9 percent, a reduction in lift-to-drag ratio of 4.1 percent, an increase in engine thrust of 12 percent, an increase in gross weight of 7.8 percent, and a reduction in ML/D of 0.3 of one percent.

The effects of an increase in initial cruise altitude from 31,361 feet to 36,000 feet at M = 0.77 cruise speed shows an increase in fuel burned of 1.2 percent, an increase in lift-to-drag ratio of 3.7 percent, an increase in engine thrust of 18.6 percent, and an increase in gross weight of 3.8 percent.

Neither of the two options appears to be beneficial to the performance of the HLFC aircraft. Of the two, the increase in initial cruise altitude to 36,000 feet has the smaller degradation in the overall aircraft performance.

### 6.1.2 Elimination of HLFC on Empennage

The effects on performance of deleting HLFC from the empennage of the HLFC aircraft is provided in the data for Option 4 in Figure 44. As compared to the baseline turbulent flow aircraft, the HLFC aircraft with no HLFC on the

empennage shows a reduction in fuel burned of 13.7 percent, an increase in lift-to-drag ratio of 18.2 percent, a decrease in engine thrust of 11.9 percent, and a decrease in gross weight of 4.2 percent. Except for the insignificant reduction in lift-to-drag ratio, these improvements in performance as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft are slightly better than those for the baseline HLFC aircraft. It appears from these data that elimination of HLFC from the empennage has a favorable overall effect on HLFC aircraft performance and reduces the complexity of the systems as well.

### 6.1.3 Elimination of HLFC on Lower Wing Surface

The effects on HLFC aircraft performance of deleting HLFC on the lower surface of the wing is provided in the data for Option 5 in Figure 44. As compared to the baseline turbulent flow aircraft, the HLFC aircraft with no

		••••••	*****			*******	****	*******		
1 <b>2 - 7 L 0 -</b> 1 <b>7 U</b> 7	1986 HLFC CONTR	ACT STULT - NAS	A/AIR FORCE							
		Cing furnet fin	 		******	********			****	,
	I BASELINE IT	OPTION 1 4	OPTIGN 4	II OPTION	5 11	D - 1	11	0 = 2	11	0 + 1
		************	************		******	********	****		****	
PAYLOAD - LB	1 132,500.00 11	132,500.00 (	1 132,500.00	11 132,500	.00 11	9.00		0.00	11	0.00
RANGE OF RADIUS - NA	0.30	8,300.00 I	1 0,300.00	11 8,300	77 11	0.00	- 11	0.00	- 11	0.00
ENDURANCE - MRS		••••		- ii	ii ii	ERP	- 11	Č.		2.0.0
ALTITUDE - FT	1 32,119.00 11	31,341.00 1	1 31,496,00	11 31,067	. oo ii	-2.35	ii	-1,93	- 11	-0.78
CFL - FT	1 7,557.00 11	8,383,20 1	1 8,327,10	11 8,173	30 11	10,93		10,19	11	6,12
NID-POINT CFL - FT	1 5,516,00 11	2,172.00 1	1 2,168.00	11 2,245	.00 11	-60,62	11	-60,69		-59,30
CANER WEICHT - LA	1 414.125.00 11	591.436.00 1	1 389.970.00	11 412.531	.00	-1.97	11	*******		-0
			1				- 11			ER
ATRUCTURAL WEIGHT	1 128,023.00 11	139,985.00 1	1 140,477.00	11 143,021	.00 11	9.34	- 11	9,72	11	11,71
PROPULSION SYSTEM	1 35,625.00 11	34,057,00 1	1 33,826.00	11 35,238	.00 11	-4.40	- 1.1	-5,04	11	-1.01
AYSTERS & LOUIP.	1 23,253.00 11	23,598,00 1	1 23,370,00	11 23,915	.00 11	1.48		0,50	11	2,44
OPERATING LOUIP.	1 102 310 00 11	202 444 00 1	1 202 472 00	11 203 308	00 11	-2,84		-2.7		-0.03
SENG FUEL WEIGHT	1 324.718.00 11	335.146.00	1 335.172.00	11 339.000	.00 11	3.21	- 11	3.21		
L.E. CLEAN FLUIP	0.00 11	4,258.00	1 3,290.00	11 4,460	00 11		- ii		ii	
FUEL	1 291,401.00 11	252,216,00 1	1 251,490.00	11 260,264	00 11	-13,44	11	-13,69	11	•7.93
PAYLUAD	1 132,500.00 11	132,500.00	1 132,500,00	11 132,500	00 11	0.00		0,00		0.00
UBEFUL LOAD	1 423,901.00 11	384,716,00	1 303,990.00	11 400,764	.00 11	+9,24		-9,41		-5,45
WING OATA	1 11		1	11						
	i ii	i	i	ii			- 11			
AREA - SO FT	i 4,835,39 ii	4,832.28	1 4,037,28	ii 5,047	.59 11	-0.04	11	0.03	11	4.38
WEIGHT - LA	1 58,978.00 11	68,888.00	1 69,615.00	11 71,114	.00 11	16.80		10.03		20.57
SEIGHT - LE/SU FT	1 12-19 11	14.25 (	1 14.39	11 13		16.87		17.90	- 11	15.50
ASSIC SWEP - DEC	1 30.00 11	29.00	1 20.00	11 20		-11.11		-11.11	- 11	
BAT SWEEP . DEC	1 35.53 11	25.00	1 25.00	11 25	00 11	-29.43	- 11	-29.43	ii	-29.43
LOADING - LB/SU FT	1 124,42 11	119.19	1 114.83	11 118	13 11	-4.20	11	-4,49	11	-5,01
FUEL VOL, AATIO	1 1.00 11	1.00	1 1,00	11 1	.00 11	0.00	11	0.00	4.4	8,00
SPAN - FT	255.91 11	250.05	1 260.26	11 263		1,14		1.49		3,10
C.F LH/AFAH F1 MAC - F7	1 22.44	22.40	1 22.94	11 21	12 11	-1.22		LAN AL	- 22	
1/c - 1	1 13.49 11	11.03	1 51.00	li ii	.55 ii	-12.30		+12.52		+13.44
		*************	***********			*******				
*ISCFLLANEOUS	1 11	1	1	11	- H		11			
1.45	1 24 44 11	10.14	1 10 10		. !!					
#L/D	20.01	23.48	1 21.45	11 22		10,33		10.17		17.50
CPUIST SEC	0.56 11	0.57	0.57	ii <b>i</b>	56 11	2.05		2.47		1.50
CL PAR T.O.	1 2,60 11	2.53	1 2.53	-ii - ž	.si ii	+2,69	ii.	+2.49	11	-2.69
CHUISE CL	1 0,57 11	0.48	1 0.48	11 0	.49 .11	-7,60	11	+7,72	11	-6.27
THRUST/ENGINE - LP	1 30,195,00 11	26,990.00	24,597.00	11 28,270	.00 11	-10,61		-11,91		-6.31
178031/WEIGHI 9584 4854 4 50 54	1 430.57 ()	543.03				-6,91		•0,01		-5.82

### Figure 44A. Sensitivity Data

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY OF POOR QUALITY

	12-941-1647				_										
11	***************************************	PASELINE	+++	OFTION 1	11	DPTION 4	11	OPTION 5	11	D - 1	11	D - 3		D - 3	11
11	************************	•••••	•••••	***********		*********	••••			********		********		*******	
	MIRCELLANFLOR (CON.4)										11				
- 11		6.88	- 11	0.78	- 11	0.70		0.82		+11.36	ii.	-14.90		-6.36	11
- 11		4.119.77	- 11	4.118.31	11	4.112.51	- iii	4.307.37	ii.	-0.03	ii.	-9.17	- 11	4.55	ii -
- 11	SOTAL MING AREA	4.835.39	ii	4.832.20		4.837.28	ii.	5,647.59	ii.	-0.06	ii.	0.03	- 11	4,30	ii -
- 11	BAT AREA + & TOTAL I	14.79	11	14.77	ii.	14.98	11	34,66	11	-0,16	11	1,23	11	-0,91	11
- 11	TOIAL/BASIC	1.17	11	1.17	11	1.17	11	1,17	11	-0.02	11	0.21		-0,15	11
- 11	L.E. SUCTION - & C I		11	15,00	11	15.00	11	15,00	11		11		11		TE.
- 11	L.F.TRANSITION - & C I		11	50.00	11	\$0.00	44	50,00	11		11				11
- 11	ENG LOC - & MAC I			100.00	11	100,00		300,00		ENN		EBP		E B R	
- 11	PUSELAGE WT/80 PT I	4,05	11	4,20	.11	4,20		4,22		3,74		3,12		4,44	
	***********************************			************								********			
	WING WT. EQUATION I	13.00	11	13.00	11	13.00	11	13.00	11		11	-	11		11
- 11										*******		*******	****		11
		***********			••••	**********				********		********		*********	****
	OTLEI							•							
	2. OFTION 1 - MLFC BASELIN 3. OFTION 4 - MLFC 4. OFTION 5 - MLFC	NO NEFC ON NO NEFC ON NO NEFC ON	ENPE LOVE	KN. 8 SURF.											
				HLTC	875	TEN WEIGHT A	DDIT	1085		********					
	*****	************		WLFC	876	TEN WEIGHT A	DDIT	1085		•••••		********		*********	
	STRUCTURE		••••	WLFC	878 	TEN WEIGHT A	DD11	10N5		BASE	:::	0.17	++	-47.69	<u></u> !!
	\$TRUCTURE   UING - LB   UNN - LB	â, 60 0, 60		563.00	875 	TEN WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00	DD11	295.00 97.00		BASE	+1	0.17 ~100.00	+1	-47.69	11 11 11
	STRUCTURE UING - LB WORIZ - LB YENT - LR	8,90 0,00 0,00		563.00 91.00 80.00	875 11 11	TEN WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00 0.00	DD11	295.00 97.00 81.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE		0.17 -100.00 -100.00	+1 +1 +1	-47,60 6,59 3,75	
•••• ••• ••• ••• •••	\$TRUCTURE   I     NING - LB   I     WOR1Z - LB   I     YERT - LR   I     TOTAL - LB   I	8,90 0,00 0,00 0,00		563.00 91.00 80.00 734.00	878 11 11 11	TEN WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00 0.00 564.00	DD11	295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		0.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16	+ 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1	-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28	
	STRUCTURE NING - LB NORIZ - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LB	8,90 0,00 0,00 0,00 6,00		563.00 91.00 80.00 734.00	878 	TEN WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00 0.00 564.00	DD11 11 11 11	295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		0.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28	
	STRUCTURE NING - LB NOR12 - LB VERT - LR TOTAL - LB SUCTION SYSTEM	8,96 0,00 0,00 0,00		563.00 91.60 80.00 734.00	878 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	TER WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00 0.00 564.00		295,00 97,00 83,00 475,00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		0.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB Nonis - Lb Vent - LA Total - Lb Buction System Trailes - Lb	\$,80 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00		563,00 91,00 80,00 734,00 534,00	818 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61	TEN WEIGHT A 564.00 0.00 564.60 402.00	DD11 11 11 11 11	295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB NOR12 - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LR BUCTION STATEN FREINES - LB DUCTING - LB	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		563.00 91.00 80.00 734.00 536.00		TEN NEIGHT A 544.00 0.00 544.60 402.00 500.00	DDJT 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 474.00 581.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		6.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -12.12		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10	
	STRUCTURE   NING - LB   NOR12 - L	0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00		563.00 91.00 80.00 734.00 534.00 569.00 465.00	875	TEN WEIGHT A 544.00 0.00 544.00 482.00 300.00 594.00		295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 476.00 591.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -12.12 -10.07 -10.73		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10 -11,12	
	STRUCTURE NING - LB NORIZ - LB VERI - LR TOTAL - LB BUCTION SYATEN FRCINES - LB DUCTING - LB FIGC - LB TOTAL - LB	8,90 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00			875	TEN WEIGHT A 0.00 0.00 364.00 482.00 300.00 396.00 1,380.00		295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 581.00 591.00 1,648.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		0.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -12.12 -10.07 -10.73		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10 -11,12 -6,89	
	STRUCTURE NING - LB NOR12 - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LA SUCTION STATEN FREIMES - LB DUCTING - LB MIRC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING ATATEM	8,96 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0		563.00 91.60 80.00 734.00 534.00 554.00 665.00 1,770.00	816 11 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	TEN WEIGHT A 544.00 0.00 544.00 482.00 300.00 596.00 1,580.00		295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 475.00 591.00 1,648.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -12.12 -10.07 -10.73		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10 -11,12 -6,89	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB NORIZ - LB VERT - LR Total - LB Buction System Tacimes - LB Ducting - LB Total - LB Total - LB Cleaning System System - LB	8,90 6,00 6,00 6,00 8,00 8,00 8,00 8,00		MLFC 563.00 91.00 80.00 734.00 554.00 554.00 465.00 1,770.00 373.00	816 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	TER NEIGHT A 564.60 0.00 0.00 544.00 482.00 596.00 1,580.00 288.00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		<pre></pre>		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10 -11,12 -6,89 4,55	
	STRUCTURE HING - LB HORIT - LB YEAT - LR TOTAL - LB SUCTION SYSTEM HEGINES - LB DUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING STATEM SYSTEM - LB THAPPED FLUIT - LM	8,90 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00		543.00 91.00 91.00 536.00 536.00 545.00 465.00 1,770.00 373.00	816 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	TER WEIGHT A 644.60 6.00 6.00 364.00 482.00 396.00 1,580.00 1,580.00 452.00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -10.73 -22.76 -22.66		-47.68 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 6.60	
	STRUCTURE BING - LB NOR12 - LB YENT - LR TOTAL - LA SUCTION STATEN FREIMES - LB MISC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING STATEM SYSTEM - LB TARPPED FLUIT - LH MISSION FLUID - LB			MLFC \$43,00 \$1,00 \$0,00 534,00 \$59,00 \$45,00 1,770,00 373,00 373,00 \$4,210,00 4,210,00		TER WEIGHT A 544.00 0.00 544.00 482.00 300.00 595.00 1,580.00 286.00 026.00 1,20.00 1,20.00		208.00 208.00 03.00 475.00 475.00 476.00 381.00 1.648.00 390.00 613.00 4.660.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100.00 -100.00 -23.16 -10.07 -12.12 -10.07 -10.73 -22.76 -22.76 -22.73		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 2,10 -11,12 -6,89 4,55 4,55 4,55	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WONG - LB WONT - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LB BUCTION SYSTEM FRGINES - LB DUCTING - LB MIBC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TMAPPED FLUIP - LM MIBSION FLUID - LB TOTAL - LB			\$3.00 \$1.0 \$0.0 \$34.00 \$34.00 \$34.00 \$34.00 \$34.00 \$35.00 \$45.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$50.00 \$373.00 \$370		TER WEIGHT A 544.00 6.00 6.00 544.00 482.00 594.00 1,580.00 286.00 286.00 4.20.00 4.20.00 4.00.00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		0,17 -100,00 -33,16 -10,07 -12,12 -10,07 -10,73 -22,76 -22,76 -22,73 -22,75		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 6.60 6.74 4.71	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WORIT - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LB SUCTION SYSTEM FRCINES - LB DUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TWSFED FLUID - LB TOTAL - LB			MLFC \$43,00 \$1,00 \$0,00 536,00 545,00 465,00 1,770,00 373,00 373,00 545,00 4,256,00 4,256,00 1,710,00		TER WEIGHT A 644,60 6,00 6,00 564,00 482,00 596,00 596,00 1,380,00 288,00 4,32,00 1,280,00 4,200,00 4,200,00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 •.100,000 -33,16 -10,07 -12,12 -10,07 -10,73 -22,76 -22,76 -22,73 -22,75 -22,75 -22,75 -22,75 -22,76 -22,776 -22,76 -22,76 -22,776 -22,776 -22,776 -22,776 -22,776 -22,776 -22,776 -22,7		-47.40 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 4.60 4.71 -71	88 68 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 8
	STRUCTURE BING - LB WOR12 - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LB SUCTION SYATEN FREIMES - LB DUCTING - LB MIBC - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TARPPED FLUID - LH MISSION FLUID - LH TOTAL - LB	8,96 6,00 6,00 6,00 6,00 6,00 6,00 6,00 6		343.00 91.00 93.00 90.00 734.00 534.00 534.00 545.00 545.00 373.00 545.00 545.00 545.00 5,217.00		TER WEIGHT A 544.00 6.00 6.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 1,300.00 286.00 1,300.00 286.00 4.030.00 6.174.00		1085- 295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 591.00 1,648.00 390.00 613.00 5,463.00 7,596.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		<pre></pre>		-47,60 6,59 3,75 -35,28 -11,19 -11,12 -6,89 4,55 4,60 4,74 4,71 -1,74	88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WORIT - LB YEAT - LB SUCTION SYSTEM FACINES - LB DUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB THAPPED FLUIT - LH MISSION FLUID - LH MISSION FLUID - LH TOTAL - LB TUTAL DELTA WT LB			\$43.00     \$1.0     \$0,00     \$0,00     \$36.00     \$50,00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$36.00     \$45.00     \$45.00     \$21.00     \$7,721.00		TER WEIGHT A 544.60 6.00 6.00 300.00 396.00 1,580.60 286.00 452.00 1,280.00 6,174.60		1085- 295.00 97.00 83.00 475.00 476.00 591.00 1.640.00 4.60.00 4.60.00 7.596.00		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17     -100,000     -100,000     -23,16     -10,07     -10,07     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78     -22,78		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 4.60 4.71 -1.74	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WORIT - LB YERT - LR TOTAL - LB BUCTION SYSTEM FREINES - LB DUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL DELTA WT, - LB	8,90 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00		MLFC \$43,00 \$0,00 \$0,00 \$36,00 \$50,00 \$45,00 \$45,00 \$73,00 \$73,00 \$73,00 \$73,00 \$73,00 \$7,723,00		TER WEIGHT A 844,00 0,00 0,00 364,00 402,00 396,00 1,380,00 1,380,00 288,00 4,030,00 6,174,00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		<pre></pre>		-67.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 6.60 4.74 -1.74	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WORJ - LB VENT - LA JUCTION SYSTEN TRCINES - LB DUCTING - LB WISC - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB TMAPPED FLUIP - LH HISSION FLUID - LB TOTAL - LB	6.90 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00		MLFC \$43.00 \$1.00 \$0.00 734.00 \$34.00 \$465.00 1,770.00 373.00 \$45.00	BY6     11     01	TER WEIGHT A 544.00 6.00 6.00 544.00 482.00 594.00 1,580.00 288.00 4.200.00 4.200.00 4.174.00 0.174.00		1085		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 •.180,000 •.100,000 23,16 12,12 10,07 10,73 22,78 22,78 22,78 22,75 22,75 22,75 22,003 D - 2		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.24 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 6.60 4.74 4.71 -1.74	
	STRUCTURE WING - LB WORIT - LB VERT - LR TOTAL - LB BUCTION SYSTEM FRGINES - LB DUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING SYSTEM SYSTEM - LB THAPPED FLUIT - LN MISSION FLUID - LN TOTAL - LB	8.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		MLFC \$43.00 \$1.0 \$0.00 536.00 545.00 465.00 1,770.00 373.00 373.00 560.00 4,250.00 7,721.00 0PT10H 1		TER WEIGHT A 544.00 6.00 6.00 300.00 300.00 1,580.00 1,580.00 286.00 423.00 1,280.00 6.174.00 0PTIDN 4		1085- 295.00 97.00 475.00 475.00 476.00 501.00 1.640.00 390.00 613.00 4.460.00 7.506.00 DPTIDM 5		BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE BASE		•.17 -100,000 -100,000 -23,16 -10,07 -12,12 -10,07 -10,07 -10,07 -10,73 -22,76 -22,75 -22,75 -22,75 -22,03 -22,75 -22,03		-47.60 6.59 3.75 -35.28 -11.19 2.10 -11.12 -6.89 4.55 6.60 4.74 -1.74 D -3	

Figure 44B. Concluded

HLFC on the lower wing surface shows a decrease in fuel burned of 7.9 percent, an increase in lift-to-drag ratio of 12.5 percent, a decrease in engine thrust of 6.4 percent, and a decrease in gross weight of 0.6 percent. These improvements in performance are considerably less than those shown for the baseline HLFC aircraft as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft, showing 41 percent more fuel burned, 32 percent lower lift-to-drag ratio, and 40 percent higher thrust required. It appears from these data that elimination of the HLFC from the lower wing surface has an overall unfavorable effect on the performance of the HLFC aircraft.

### 6.1.4 Reduction of Aspect Ratio to 10

Sizing runs were made in order to determine the effects of a reduction in wing aspect ratio from the baseline values of over 13 to a more moderate aspect ratio of 10. The sizing data presented in Figure 45 include the HLFC baseline aircraft for aspect ratio 13.87 and aspect ratio 10 data for the HLFC aircraft and a turbulent flow aircraft.

Results indicate that the HLFC concept with aspect ratio 10 compared to the HLFC baseline has a 2.9 percent higher gross weight, 11.5 percent more fuel burned, 12.2 percent decrease in L/D, and 11.7 percent more engine thrust. In addition, the aspect ratio 10 HLFC aircraft has a reduction in wing span from 258.85 feet to 219.35 feet, or 15.3 percent, as compared to the baseline HLFC aircraft. The wing span comparison is shown in Figure 46. Comparing the turbulent flow and HLFC aspect ratio 10 runs in Figure 45 shows that the HLFC configuration has a 4.1 percent reduction in gross weight, 12.1 percent less fuel burned, 15.1 percent higher L/D, and a 9 percent reduction in engine thrust. These differences between the aspect ratio 10 aircraft are slightly smaller, yet very similar to the differences found between the higher aspect ratio turbulent and HLFC baseline aircraft reported in Section 5.4.

		**************	**************				**********		
01-ALT-1987	1988 NLFC CONT	BACT STUDT - NA	BATAIR PORCE						
*******************************	COMPARISON - PE	ACENT CHANGE FR	OR BASELIDE		•d= <b>=</b> =••	********			******
************************	I BASEL INE I	I OPTION L	IL OPTION 2	11		(1-8)/8	11 (1-2)/3	11	9 + 3
PATLOAD - LB	1 132,500,00 1	1 132.500.00	112.500.00			4.44	11 8.88	11	E <b>L</b> Â
RANGE or BADIUS - BR	4,540,00 1	6,500,00	6,500.00	ii	ii	4,44	11 0,00	- 11	C.M
APEED - R	1 0,77 1	1 4,77	4.77	11		4,44	11 0,00		E AA
	1 10 100 00 1		1 30 641 00				11 6110	- !!	C RA
	0.383.28	8.147.44	7.223.50	11		2.41	11 12.76		798
MID-POINT CFL - FT	1 2,172,00 1	2,825,66	5,322.00		ii	14,25	11 -52,56	ii	End.
		**************		********	*********				
ANNO METCHI - Ch	3471030744	( <b>465</b> 1847946	11 839943 <i>8</i> 98			4.74	11 -9414	- 11	E RA
STRUCTURAL BEIGHT	i 130,905,00 i	1 124,756.00	115,112.00	ii		-10.88	ii 0.30		gad
PROPULAION STATER	i 34,057,00 j	37,057,08	1 38,840,00	11	ii	8,81	11 -4.49	ii	C.R.S
STATENS & COUIP.	1 23,596,46 1	1 23,737,44	11 23,090.06	11	11	0.31	11 2,40	44	200
OPERATING LOUIP.	1 3,006,00 1	1 5,236.00	5,549.00			4,59	11 -9,64		
TERO PUEL VELCHT		1 170,700,00		11					
L.E. CIEAN FLUID	A.258.08	4.488.68				-3134	11 4.39		
FUEL	252.214.04	281.268.08	370.094.08	- 11		11.52	11 -12.13		
PATLOAD	1 132.500.00	132.500.00	1 132.500.00			0.00			204
USEFUL LOAD	1 384,716,00 1	413,768,08	1- 452,594,00	ii	. ii	7.55	11 -0,50	ii	ERO
94 <u>0494</u> 949466666666666666666666 M192 Alti	***************************************		***************************************		**********	*********		*****	******
		1							
ABEA - 89 FT	i 4,832,28 i	i 4.811.49	4.746.11	11		+0.43	11 1.34		t a R
WEIGHT - LB	1 48,848,00 1	1 52,714,00	45,414.00	11	ii	-23.48	11 14.07	- ii -	214
VEIGHT - LO/SQ FT	1 14,26 (	1 10,96	11 9,57	11	ii	+23,15	11 14.49	ii	ERA
ASPECT RATIO	1 13.47 1	1 10.00	11 10.00	11		-27,90	11 0,00	- 11 -	ESA A
SAGIC SUEEP - DEG	1 20.00 1	1 20,00	1 30.00	11		0,00	11 -33,33	11	E RR
BAT BEEEP + DEG	1 25.00 1	1 23,44	1 37,33	11		0,00	11 -33,43	11	ERA
FUEL DOL AATIO	1 119.19	1 233-11	139.41			3.29	11 -5.74		EAR
	258.65	1 219.34				<b>7.70</b>			
C.P. 1.8/8718 77	1 14.45	20.47	1 0.44			24.44			201
MAC . PT	1 22.60	25.15	26.38	11		11.34	11 -4.47		228
t/0 - 3	1 11,61	i ii.ii	11 12.19	ii		4,85	11 -10.90	ii	CAR
**************************************	•========================== !	***********************************	, <b>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </b>	*********	*********** 1 1	********			
	i i	i	ii	ii			ii –		
L/D	1. 30.76 1	1 27.02	1 23.40	11	ii	-12,16	11 15.00	ii	E BR
#L/B	1 23,49 1	1 20.41	1 24.25	11		-12,14	11 -14,20	11	586
CHUISE SPC	F 0.50 1	1 0.57	1 0.57			-0,52	11 1.24	11	ERR
CL HAI T.O.	1 . 3,33 1	1 2.33	2.47			-7,91	11 -5.67		688
CHUIDE CL Theney/floing a th	14.000.00		<b>9,52</b>			-9.63	11 17.4		E DA
		1 8.24				11.72	11 47,98		
VERT ANEA - 30 FT	1 363.63	403.43	644-11			. 7.51	1 10.07		

Figure 45A. Sizing Data for Aspect Ratio 10 Aircraft

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

	I BASELINE	IL OPTION 1	II OPTIGE 3	44	11 (1-	8376	(1-2)/2	11 0 + 3
LACELLABEOUS (CON'T)		,	**************************************	••==== <b>•••••</b> •••••		•••••••		11 
		!!	!!	11		!		!!
POWER SETTING	1 4.110.21	11 4.382.88	11 4.043.70				4.39	
TOTAL HING AREA	4.832.26	4,811,49	41 4,746.11	ii	- ii -	4,43 1	1 1,30	11 884
BAT AREA - & TOTAL	1 14,70	11 0.91	11 14.00	11	- 11 +1	9,71 1	-39.41	11 888
TOTAL/BASIC	! .1.17	11 1.10	11 1.17	11	! •	eree i		ii me
L.C. PRAMAITION + S.C.	3 80.00	11 30.00	11 50.00	11			i	
ENG LOC - & MAC	1 100,00	1 100,00	11 100,00	ii	ii	i	i	ii
FUBELAGE UT/80 77	4,21	4,33	11 4.04	 		0,50	i 4,19	11 E22
	1 11.44		11 12.88	************				
		*****	***********				*********	
	****************		***************					
. BABELINE + HLFC BABELI	NE, 840,77							
. BASELINE = HLFC BASELE . OPTION 1 = HLFC	NE, 8=0.77 AB=10							
L. BASELINE = HLFC BASELI L. OPTION 1 = HLFC L. OPTION 2 = TURBULENT -	NE, R=0,77 AB=10 AB=10							
. BASELINE = MLFC BASELI . Option 1 = MLFC . Option 2 = Turbulent	NE, M40,77 AB=10 AB=10	NLFC SYTER W	LIGHT ADDITIONS					
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . Option 1 = MLFC . Option 2 = TURBULENT	NE, R=0.77 AR=10 AR=10	HLFC SYTER H	LIGHT ADDITIONS		••••			
. BABELINE = HUFC BABELI . Option 1 = HUFC . Option 2 = Turbulent 	HE, R=0.77 AR=10 AR=10	HLFC SYTER 0	GIGNT ADDITIONS					11 CPA
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	NE, M=0,77 AB=10 AB=10  ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !	HLFC SYTER W 11 11 534,00 11 84,00	LIGNT ADDITIONS			1 1,24 1,30		11 11 11 CPA
. BASELINE = HLFC BASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TRUCTURE VING - LB MORIE - LB TERT - LB	NE, M=0,77 AR=10 AP=10 	HLFC SYTER W 1 1 1 1 3 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ElGMT ADDITIONS			1 1.24 3.30 7.50 6		
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TAUCTURE HING - LB HORIZ - LB TOTAL - LB	NE, M=0,77 AR=10 AR=10 	HLFC SYTER W 1 534,00 1 64,00 1 64,00 1 64,00 1 736,00	ElGNT ADDITIONS 1 1 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 1 0.00			1.24   3.30   7.50   9.54		40 40 40 40 40 40 40 1
. BARELINE = HLFC PARELE . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	HE, M=0.77 AR=10 AR=10 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	HLFC STTER W 11 556.00 11 88.00 11 88.00 11 730.00 11 730.00 11	EIGNT ADDITIONS 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00	11 11 11 11 11 11 11		1.24 3.30 7.50 6.54		
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TAUCTURE NING - LB WGRI - LB VEAT - LB TOTAL - LB WCTION STATEN ESGENES - LB	HE, M=0,77 AR=10 AP=10 	NLFC STTER W 11 11 13 13 14 15 16 16 16 11 11 11 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	ELGNT ADDITIONS			1.24 3.30 7.50 6.54 1 6.93		1 1 2 2 3 4 2 3 4 2 3 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TRUCTURE VING - LA VERT - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LA ENGINES - LA BUCTION STATEM ENGINES - LA BUCTING - LA	NE, M=0,77 AR=10 AP=10             -	NLFC SYTER W 11 556.00 11 556.00 11 56.00 11 36.00 11 36.00 11 31.00 11 541.00 11 40.00	ELGNT ADDITIONS 1 1 1 1 1 0.80 1 0.90 1 1 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			1.24 3.30 7.50 6.54 3.10 1 6.93 3.10		400 12 400 12 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT	NE, M=0,77 AB=10 AP=10 I I I I I I I I I I I I I	HLPC STTEN W 11 536,00 11 88,00 11 88,00 11 730,00 11 541,00 11 490,00 11 470,00 11 470,00 11 1,703,00	EIGWT ADDITIONS 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00 1 0.00			1.24 3.30 7.50 6.54 1 3.15 1 3.15 0.75	   CAR   CAR   CAA   CAA   CAA   CAA   CAA   CAA	400 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT	HE, M=0,77 AR=10 AP=10 1 563.00 1 00,00 1 1 514.00 1 514.00 1 514.00 1 1 514.00 1 1 514.00 1 1,770.00	NLFC SYTER W 11 13 14 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	CIGNT ADDITIONS	11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		1.24   3.30   7.50   0.54   1 0.75   3.10   0.75   3.47	CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR	443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14 443 14
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TRUCTURE UING - LB WORIZ - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB	HE, M=0, 77 AR=10 AP=10 1 543,60 1 543,60 1 544,60 1 544,60 1 544,60 1 544,60 1 1,770,00	HLFC SYTER W 11 554,00 11 554,00 11 55,00 11 56,00 11 541,00 14 494,00 14 494,00 14 494,00 14 1705,00 11 1,705,00	CIGNT ADDITIGNS			1.24 1 3.30 1 7.80 4 9.54 1 1 0.93 1 3.16 1 0.75 1 3.47 1 1 3.47 1 1 3.47 1	I CAR C ZAR C ZAR I CAR I CAR I CAR I CAR I CAR I CAR I CAR	
. BABELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	NE, M=0,77 AB=10 AP=10 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	HLPC STTEM W 1 556.00 1 88.00 1 88.00 1 36.00 1 341.00 1 496.00 1 470.00 1 1.705.00 1 39.00 1 39.00	EIGWT ADDITIONS	11 14 14 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		1,24 1 3,30 f 3,30 f 0,54 i 3,10 f 3,10 f 3,10 f 3,10 f 0,73 i 3,47 i 8,34 i	CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR	
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	HE, M=0,77 AB=10 AB=10	NLFC STTER W 11 13 14 15 15 16 16 17 16 16 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	CIGNT ADDITIONS	H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H		1.24 1 3.30 1 7.50 1 9.54 1 1 9.54 1 1 9.53 1 3.10 1 1 9.73 1 3.47 1 2 4 5.26 1 5.29 1	I CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR CRR	1     403
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	HE, M=0, 77 AB=10 AB=10 1 543,00 1 543,00 1 543,00 1 544,00 1 5554,00 1 5554,00 1 5554,00 1 555555555555555555555555555555555	NLFC SYTER W 11 13 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	CIGNT ADDITIONS	11 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14		1.24   3.36   7.86   1 3.18   3.18   1 3.18   1 3.18   1 3.47   1 5.29   5.36   5.36   5.42   5.42   1	CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR	
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT 	HE, M=0, 77 AB=10 AB=10 1 543,00 1 543,00 1 543,00 1 544,000 1 544,0000 1 544,0000 1 544,0000 1 544,00000000000000000000000000000000000	NLFC STTER W 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 4 3 4 3 4 3 4 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 5 6 6 1 5 5 6 6 1 5 5 6 6 1 5 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 1 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	EIGHT ADDITIONS			1.24   3.30   7.80   1.31   3.10   3.10   1.3.10   1.3.10   1.3.47   1.3.47   1.3.45   1.3.45   1.3.45   1.3.42   1.3.41		
. BASELINE = HUFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HUFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT . OPTION	NE, M=0,77 AB=10 AP=10 1 1 1 1 1 3 4 1 3 4 4 4 4 5 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	HLPC SITEN W 1 556.00 1 85.00 1 85.00 1 36.00 1 341.00 1 470.00 1 470.00 1 370.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 4.70.00 1 5.300.00 1	EIGWT ADDITIONS			1.24   3.30   3.30   0.54   1.310   1.	CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR	
. BASELINE = HLFC PASELI . OPTION 1 = HLFC . OPTION 2 = TURBULENT TAUCTURE NING - LB NORIX - LB VERT - LB TOTAL - LB ACTION STATEM ENGINES - LB RIGC - LB RIGC - LB RIGC - LB RIGC - LB TOTAL - LB LEANING STATEM STATA - LB TRAPED FLUID - LB TRAPED FLUID - LB TBTAL - LB	HE, M=0, 77 AB=10 AB=10 1 543.00 1 00.00 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	HLFC STTEN W 11 13 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	EIGHT ADDITIONS			1.24   3.30   9.54   0.93   3.16   0.75   3.46   5.29   5.29   5.43   5.43   3.45   3.42   2.77   1	CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR	







### 6.1.5 High Wing HLFC Configuration

Sizing runs for hybrid LFC transports for the more conventional arrangement of high wings with the engines mounted on the wings were made in order to provide the data for an assessment of the wing-mounted versus the fuselagemounted engine arrangement of the hybrid LFC baseline configuration. In order to account for the interference of the pylon-mounted engines under the high wing configuration, it was decided that there would be a loss of laminar flow on the lower wing surface in a streamwise direction with an area of loss consisting of the maximum width of the engine at the wing leading edge plus a  $7^{\circ}$  increase in area over the wing surface to the trailing edge. A plan view of this loss in laminar flow is shown in Figure 47. No upper surface loss of laminar flow is assumed for these sizing runs.



Figure 47. Plan View of Laminar Flow Area Loss for Wing Mounted Engine Configuration; Lower Wing Surface Sizing data for the high wing configurations are given in Figure 48 for a cruise Mach number of 0.77. It should be noted that the high wing turbulent flow aircraft used for reference here has  $20^{\circ}$  of wing sweep as contrasted to  $30^{\circ}$  wing sweep for the previously reported turbulent flow baseline aircraft. As noted in Figure 48, the sizing runs consist of a reference turbulent flow aircraft, an HLFC aircraft with laminar flow on both upper and lower surfaces, and an HLFC aircraft with laminar flow on the upper surface only.

The results of Figure 48 indicate that the HLFC high wing aircraft with laminar flow on both upper and lower surfaces as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft has 10.4 percent lower gross weight, 19.6 percent lower fuel burned, 18.1 percent increase in L/D, 15.3 percent decrease in engine thrust, and 4.8 percent reduction in wing span. These results for the HLFC configuration are the best overall performance data obtained for an HLFC aircraft in

05-Jun-1907	1986 NLFC CONT	NACT STUDT - RA	SA/AIR FORCE					
***************************************		CHANGE 7808 20			********	*******	•••••	
***********************	I TURBULENT I	I OPTION 1	11 071104 2	11	•••••••••••• {	(1-1)/1	11 (1-1)/1	11 9 - 3
						 A.AA		
PATLURD - LD Rance an Rabius - Du	6.300.00	4.500.00	4.568.08			8.48	11 9.00	ii
	6.17	6.77	0.77	ii	ii	0.00	11 9.00	ii
ENDUPANCE - NRS	i i	i	11	11	ii	-	11	ii
ALTITUDE . FT	i 32,306,00 i	1 31,950,00	11 12.005.00	11		-1.10	11 -0.93	11
CFL + FT	1 4,271,60 1	1 0,153,00	11 0,172.00	11		30,01	11 39,31	11
#10-PO1#1 CFL - FT	1 5,363,00 1	1 \$,035.00	11 5,120.00	11		-6,12	11 -4.53	11
		1 \$70.734.00	11 509.287.00	11	11	-10,39	11 -7.48	11
			11	ii			11	ii
STRUCTURAL WEIGHT	i 130,474,00 i	1 131,311,00	11 133,549.00	11	ii	-8.17	11 -7.56	11
PROPULSION ATSTEP	1 36,337,00 1	1 33,231,00	11 34,140.00	11		-0,55	11 -4.85	11
SISTEPS & EQUIP,	1 33,575,00 1	23,043,00	11 23,294.00	11		-2,24	11 -1.19	11
OPERATING EQUIP.	1 5,392.00 1	1 4,922.60	11 5,640,00	11		-8,72	11 -4,53	44
OPENATING SEIGHT	1 203,778,00 1	1 192,396,90	11 196,023,00	11		-5,53	11 • 1.01	11
READ FUEL WEIGHT	1 336,278,08 1	1 325,006.00	11 320,523,00	11		•1,15	ii -1.11	H
L.E. CLEAN FLUID	1 0,00 1	1 3,879.00	4,077.00			- 10 00		
FUEL	1 302,003.00	1 241,433,00	11 280,073.07	11		-17.75		
PATLOND	1 132,300.00 (	1 132,300,00				-11.43	11 010.14	
VALTUL LUAD		1 3/4,333,00						
NING DATA	1	1	11	14	11		11	11
	i	i	ii	- ii	ii		H	- 11
AREA - 80 FT	i 8.326.00 i	4,725,00	11 4,904.00	11		+14.58	11 -11.36	11
WEIGHT . LD	40,000.00	62,711,00	11 64,157.00	11	- H	-1,90	11 -6,78	41
WEIGHT + 18/86 PT	1 12.32 1	1 13.27	11 13.00	11	11	7.72	11 4.17	11
ASPECT PATID	1 13.49 1	1 13.86	11 13.00	11		5,65	11 3.60	11
PARIC ANEEP - DEG	1 20.00 1	1 20,00	11 20.00	11		0,00	11 0,00	**
BAT SHEEP - DEG	1 26.02 1	1 25,00	11 25.00	• •		-6,78		
LUADING - LB/80 FT	1 117,55 1	1 117,60	11 117.01	H		4,49	!! <b>!!!!</b>	!!
FUEL VOL. BATIO	1 1.00 1	1.00	11 1.00			4,46		
BPAN + FT	200,95	215,92	11 200,75			*4,84		
C.F LU/SPAN FT		1 13.14	11 17.42	11				
HAC + PT								
	1 11.14	1 11177			**			
RIACELLANCONS	4 4	1	11	11	11		11	11
	i	i	ii	ii	ii		11	ii
L/D	i 26.24 i	1 30.99	11 29.52	11	ii	10.10	11 13,50	ii
HL/D	i 20,20 i	23, 96	11 11.71	ii .	ti	10,10	11 12,50	11
CRUISE AFC	i 0,34 i	1 0.30	11 0.87	11	11	1.95	11 1.06	11
CL BAI T.O.	1 2.77	1 2,45	11 3.44	11	11	-11.85	11 -11.91	44
CRUIST CL	1 0,40 1	1 0,49	11 0.49	11		2.71	11 2.50	- 11
THRUST/ENGINE + LB	1 31,410,00	1 26,263,00	11 27,844.88	,H		-15,31	11 -13,70	11
THÁUA3/BEIGHT	1 0.17	11 0.10	11 0.18	1.4		-5.45	11 • • • • •	
VERT AREA - SO FT	1 506,86	453,50	11 444.55	- H	11	-10,53	11 -7.96	
MARTT ANEX - 84 PT	1 449.94 1	1 367.99	11 381.91			-14.71		

Figure 48A. Sizing Data for High Wing Turbulent Flow and HLFC Aircraft; Sweepback 20°

	•••••	*************			*-*			************	*******		******		*********
	05-JUN-1907				*				*******		*****		
- 11		TURBULENT	11	OPTION 1		OFTIGE 2		11	(1+1)/1		(2-1)/1	11	
ii			••••	********					*******		********		
11	HISCELLANFOUS (CON'T)											!!	11
	1										-4 44		11
	POWER SETTING								-14.44		411.34		
	BABIC VING ANEA	4,700,00		4.775.44		4. 884.48			-14.88	- 11	-11.36		
	TUTAL BIRG AREA I	14.80		14.75		14.78	- 11	ii	-0.25	ii	-4.13	ii -	
- 11		1.17		1.17		1.17	- 11	ii	-0,06	- 11	-4.42	11	ii
- 11	L.E. AUCTION + & C	15.00	ii	15,00	- 11	15.00	11	11		- 11			ii
- 11	L.F.TRANSITION - & C	\$0,00	11	\$0,00	11	30,00							11
11	ENG LOC - & MAC	1	11		11								-11
- 11	FUSLLAGE 47/80 FT	4,07	• •	4,19	11	4,20			1.77		2,12	••	
- 11	***************************************	***********	****										
			••••	13.08		11.44	11	11	•••••	11		11	
	WING WI. CONNIDE												
								*************			********		
	016.81												
	7. DAILOR 5 & MPLC WI ATHO	a the appendance											
•••				NLFC STATER	4C 1	CHT ADDITIONS							11
•••				NLFC SYSTER	•€1				******				•••••••
	STRUCTIVAR			NLFC STRTER	•===	GNT ADDITIONS					<b>683</b>		    
••••	STPUCTURE 9146 - LB 10412 - LB	• • • • • • •	    	NLFC SYSTER 558,68 52,00	UC1	GNT ABDITIONS 572.00 54.00			 	••••	Ess Ens		       
••••	STPUCTURE BING = LB NOTI = LB TENT = LB	•.•• •.••	         	NLFC SYSTEN 550,60 52,00 64,00	•E1	572.00 54.00 64.00			500 500 500 500		Ens Ens Ens Ens		          
	STPUCTURE SINC - LB NORIZ - LB YENT - LB YENT - LB	•.••	 11 11 11	NLFC SYSTEN 330,00 52,00 64,00 656,03	•E1	572.00 54.00 64.00 64.00			843 863 843 843		Ena Ena Ena Ena		             
••••	STPUCTURE NING - LB NORIZ - LB YEHT - LB YOTAL - LB	0,00 0,00 0,00	+ 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1	NLFC SYSTEN 330,00 57,00 64,00 666,00	UC1	572.00 572.00 54.00 66.00 692.00			843 843 843 843		Ena Ena Ena Ena Ena		11 11 11 11 11 11 11
	STPUCTURE WING - LB Noriz - LB Yent - LB Yent - LB Suction System	•.•• •.•• •.••		NLFC SYSTEN 550,00 52,00 64,00 656,80		GNT ABDITIGH 572.00 54.00 64.00 692.00			Cre Ena Ere Ere				11 11 11 11 11 11
	STPUCTURE VINC - LB NORIZ - LB VENT - LB Tent - LB Suction State Ergius - La			NLFC SYSTER 350.00 64.00 666.00 520.00	•E1	GWT ABDITIGH 572.00 54.00 64.00 692.00 520.00			Era Era Era Era		Ena Ena Ena Ena Ena		)
	STPUCTURE NING - LB NONIZ - LB YENT - LB SUCTION STRTE" ENGING - LB BUCTING - LB			NLFC SYSTER 550,00 57,00 66,00 556,00 531,00		GMT ABDITIGH 577.00 54.00 66.00 692.00 529.00 51.00			EPA EPA EPA EPA EPA EPA				
	STPUCTWRE     WING - LB     WODIZ - LB     YENT - LB     SUCTION STRTE"     ENGINES - LB     DUCTING - LB     PIGLE - LB     PIGLE - LB     PIGLE - LB     PIGLE - LB			NLFC SYSTER 550,40 52,00 64.00 666,00 531,00 644,00 1,733,00		GMT ABDITIGH 572.00 54.00 64.00 692.00 579.00 529.00 541.00 654.00 1.740.00			Era Ena Era Era Era Era Era Era Era Era		CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA		
	STPUCTURE   VINC + LB   NORIZ + LB   YENT + LB   SUCTION STSTE*   Excluses + LB   SUCTION C + LB   RIGC + LB   TOTAL - LB			NLFC SYSTER 550.00 64.00 64.00 64.00 52.00 531.00 531.00 531.00 1,713.00		GMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 672.00 572.00 579.00 510.00 514.00 1,746.00			Epe Ene Ene Ene Ene Ene Ene Ene		CRB CRB CRB CRB CRB CRB CRB CRB CRB		
	SIPUCTURE   NING - LB   WONIZ - LB   YENT - LB   SUCTION SIBTE"   ENGINES - LB   BUCTING - LB   RIAC - LB   TOTAL - LB   CLEANING ANSTER	0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00		NLJC SYSTEN 538,00 52,00 64,00 646,00 530,00 531,00 641,00 1,713,00		GMT ABDITIGH 577.00 54.00 66.00 692.00 579.00 551.00 656.00 1,746.00			Ena Ena Ena Ena Ena Ena Ena				
	STPUCTWRE     bitC = LB     WORT = LB     TOTAL = LB     SUCTION STBTE=     ENGINES = LB     DUCTING = LB     TOTAL = LB     TOTAL = LB     CLEANING SYSTEP     STATL = LB			NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 57,00 64,00 520,00 531,00 531,00 1,713,00 339,00		CMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 522.00 529.00 51.00 554.00 1,746.00							
	STPUCTURE WING = LB NORIZ = LB TENT = LB SUCTING = LB BUCTING = LB RIGC = LB TOTAL = LB CLEANING STSTEP STATL = LB TRAFPE FLUID = LB			NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 97,00 64,00 64,00 531,00 970,00 3,713,00 332,00		GMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 672.00 579.00 510.00 514.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 152.00							
	ATPUCTWRE WING - LB MORIE - LB TTAT - LB TTAT - LB SUCTION STRTE" ENCIPES - LB BUCTION - LB RIAC - LB TTAL - LB CLEANING STRTP STRIP - LB TRAPPED FLUE - LB RIAD - LB TRAPPED FLUE - LB			NLJC SYSTEN 52.00 64.00 656.00 531.00 644.04 1,713.00 33.00 33.00		GMT ABDITIGM 577.00 54.00 64.00 579.00 539.00 51.00 554.00 1,746.00 1392.00 151.00 4.032.00							
	ATPUCTWAE bitc - LB wobit - LB total - LB total - LB social - LB social - LB social - LB social - LB social - LB total - LB total - LB total - LB table - LB total - LB table - LB	 9,40 9,00 9,00 9,00 9,00 9,00 9,00 9,00		NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 57,00 64,00 531,00 531,00 644,00 1,713,00 307,00 307,00 4,731,00		CMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 652.00 577.00 551.00 554.00 1,746.00 153.00 4.022.00 4.022.00							
	STPUCTURE NORIZ - LB NORIZ - LB TENT - LB TOTAL - LB SUCTING STATE= ENGINES - LB NILC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING STATEP STATLM - LB TRAPPE FLUID - LB MISSION FLUID - LB	 0,00 0		NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 57,00 64,00 64,00 551,00 570,00 1,715,00 3,775,00 3,775,00 7,132,00 7,132,00		GMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 652.00 510.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00							
	ATPUCTWRE WING - LA MODIZ - LA TYT - LA TOTAL - LA SUCTION STATE ENCIPES - LA NIGC - LA NIGC - LA TOTAL - LA CLEANING ATSTEP ATATIM - LA TAPPED FLUID - LA TOTAL - LA TOTAL - LA			NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 52,00 640,00 531,00 531,00 444,00 1,713,00 330,00 330,00 331,00 7,132,00		CMT ABDITION 577,00 54.00 6500 579,00 551,00 551,00 550,00 1,740,00 137,00 4,927,00 7,360,00							
	ATPUCTWAE UIAC - LB WOOIZ - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL - LB SUCTION ATATET ENGINES - LB BUCTINC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING AVATEP ATATEM - LB TRAPPED FLUID - LB TIGTAL - LB TOTAL - LB			NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 52,00 64,00 531,00 531,00 531,00 1,713,00 3,070,00 3,070,00 7,133,00		GMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 65.00 572.00 51.00 530.00 1,740.00 153.00 4,922.00 7,360.00					CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA CRA		
	STPUCTURE WIG - LA MOBIL - LB YENT - LB SUCTING STATE= ENGISES - LA BUCTING - LB MIAC - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING STATEP STATLM - LB TRAPPE PLUID - LA MIASION FLUID - LA MIASION FLUID - LA TOTAL - LB			MLJC SYSTEM 550,00 52,00 640,00 551,00 644,00 3,713,00 339,00 7,133,00		GMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 64.00 652.00 514.00 552.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 1,746.00							
	ATPUCTWRE WING - LB WONIZ - LB YEAT - LB SUCTION STRTE ENCINES - LB BUCTION STRTE ENCINES - LB TOTAL - LB TOTAL SELTA WT, - LB	0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,0		NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 61,00 656,00 520,00 551,00 644,00 1,713,00 3,770,00 4,731,00 7,132,00 OPTIGN 1		CMT ABDITION 577,00 54.00 64.00 579,00 51,00 551,00 551,00 1,746,00 353,00 4,527,00 7,360,00 007100 2							
	ATPUCTWAE UINC - LB WONIZ - LB YENT - LB YENT - LB SOCTION ATATET ENGINES - LB BUCTING - LB TOTAL - LB CLEANING AVATER ATATER - LB TRAPPED FLUID - LB MIDATER FLUID - LB TOTAL BELTA WT, - LB			NLJC SYSTEN 550,00 52,00 64,00 531,00 531,00 644,00 1,733,00 332,00 4,731,50 7,132,00 OPTION 1		CMT ABDITION 572.00 54.00 65.00 572.00 579.00 51.00 550.00 1,740.00 133.00 4,932.00 7,360.00 007105 2					CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0 CR0		



this study task. As compared to the HLFC baseline aircraft with fuselagemounted engines, this HLFC high wing aircraft has 3.5 percent lower gross weight, 5.0 percent lower operating weight empty, 4.1 percent lower fuel burned, a slight increase in L/D, 2.7 percent decrease in engine thrust, and 1.1 percent reduction in wing span. In the author's opinion, however, these high wing HLFC results are optimistic because of the assumption of no loss of laminar flow on the wing upper surface for this wing-mounted engine configuration. A general arrangement drawing of the high wing HLFC aircraft is presented in Figure 49.

The results for the HLFC high wing aircraft with laminar flow on the upper surface only, as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft, show 7.5 percent lower gross weight, 14.6 percent lower fuel burned, 12.5 percent higher L/D, 12.8 percent decrease in engine thrust, and 3.1 percent reduction in wing span for the HLFC configuration. As compared to the HLFC baseline

aircraft with fuselage-mounted engines, this HLFC high wing aircraft is slightly inferior in performance with a negligible difference in gross weight, 1.8 percent increase in fuel burned, 4.0 percent reduction in L/D, and a slight increase in engine thrust. As cited previously, the results for the high wing HLFC configurations are considered to be optimistic because of the assumption of no loss in laminar flow on the upper wing surface.

PAYLOAD	132,500 LB
RANGE	6,500 NM*
MACH NO.	0.77
ALTITUDE	31,950 FT
TOGW	570,734 LB
FUEL	241,833 LB
L/D	30.99
SPAN	255.9 FT
AR	13.86
L.E. SWEEP	20 DEG





**\*SEE FIGURE 3** 



## 6.2 TURBULENT FLOW AIRCRAFT SENSITIVITY STUDIES

## 6.2.1 Increase of Altitude to 36,000 Feet

Sizing calculations for additional sensitivity studies of the turbulent flow aircraft were made, and the data are presented in Figure 50. The Option 1 sizing run was performed to determine the effect of increase in initial cruise altitude from 32,119 feet to 36,000 feet. As compared to the lower cruise altitude performance, the increase in initial cruise altitude results in 2.1 percent increase in fuel burned, 6.1 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, 11.7 percent increase in engine thrust, and 1.6 percent increase in gross weight. These results are similar to those for the HLFC aircraft when the initial cruise altitude is increased to 36,000 feet.

61-MAY-1987	1986 HLFC CONTS	ACT STUDY + MAS	ATE FORCE				
******************	***************					*********	**********
	COMPARISON - PER	CENT CHANGE FRO	BASELINE				
	I BASELINE []	OPTION 1 }	OPTION 2	( OPTION 3	11 D = 1	11 P = 2	11 D = 3
FARLOAD - LA	1 132.500.00 //	132,500.00 /	212.000.00	***************************************		<b>68.68</b>	
RANGE of RABIUS - MM	6.500.00 11	6.500.00 1	4.300.00	ii	11 0.00	13 0.00	
SPEED - H	i 0,77 ii	0.77	0,77	ii	11 0.00	11 0,00	II CA
ENDURANCE - NRS	i i		1	- ii	li Enn	ii <b>B</b> AR	ii Kal
ALTITUDE - PT	1 32,119,00 11	36,000,00 1	1 31,148,00	11	11 12.08	11 +3,42	EL BRI
CFL - F1	1 7,557.00 11	6,589,90 1	8,847,40	11	11 -12.00	11 17.00	II SAI
ID-POINT CFL - FT	5,516,00	0,549.00	\$,242.00		11 10.73	]  -4,60	11 680
BOSS WEIGHT - LB	1 616,125,00 11	625,917,00 I	916,333.00	11	11 1.69	11 40,73	
	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•		11	11	II ER
STRUCTURAL WEIGHT	1 120,023.00 11	141,207.00	196,373.00		11 10.30	11 53,39	II ER
PROPULSION STATEM	35,625,00 11	30,240,00 1	48,855.00	11	11 7.34	11 37.14	
SISTERS & EQUIP.	1 23,253,00 11	23,531,00	27,750.00		11 1.20	11 17.30	
OPERAILOG LUVIF.	8,317,000 11	3,487,00 1			11 -0.10	11 44.37	11 ER
TERN FIEL WEICHT		340 353 00 1	483 668 00	11			
L.F. CLEAN FLUID	0.00 1	0.00	0.00	11			
FUEL	291.401.00	245.140.00 1	423.749.00			45.42	
PAYLOAD	1 132,500,00 1	112.500.00	212.000.00		11 0.00	40.00	
USEFUL LOAD	423.901.00	417.660.00 1	635.769.00	ii	-1.47	42.94	ii kii
	***************	************					
ING DATA	1 11	· · ·	1	11	11	11	11
	! !!		!				
AREA + BG FT	4,032,39 11	5,136,30	6,436,75		11 6,22	11 33.12	
WEIGHT - LB	50,970,00 11	70,744.00	94,297.00	11	11 19.20	11 37.67	
VEIGHI - LB/30 FT	1 12.20	13.70	10.03	11	11 75.42	11 20,11	LI EN
ABPELT RATIO	1 13.34 11	14,42	1 13.41	11			
BASIC SPEEP + DEG	1 30,00 11	35,00 1			11 0,00		
LOADING - LA/SO FT	1 124 42 1	118.91	1 18.06				
FUEL VOL. BATIO	1.00 1	1.00	1,00		4,00		11 54
APAN + FT	1 255.91	272.14	293.74		11 4.14	11 14.00	
C.F. LB/SPAN FT	0.00	0.00	0,00	ii	ERM .		
NAC . PT	1 22.00	22.45	26.51	ii	11 .0.11	11 15.94	
t/c - 4	1 13.49 11	12.37	12.95	ii	11 -0.30	11 -3.90	11 58
			**************************************	*************			
o Rate Squad A b	1 11	1		11	11	11	11
L/D	1 25.99	27.57	26.30	ii	11 6.00	11 1.50	ii en
NL/D	1 20.01 11	21.23	20.31	ii	11 6.08	11 1.50	ii zni
CRUISE SPC	1 0,54 11	0,56 1	0.57	11	11 0.00	11 4.19	II KRI
CL MAX T.O.	1 2,40 11	2,60 1	2.54	11	11 0,00	41 +2,31	ii ERI
CRUIAE CL	1 0,53 ()	0,60 1	0.54	11	11 14,81	11 6,64	1) <b>SA</b>
THRUST/ENGINE - LB	1 30,195.00 11	33,719,00 1	43,313,00	11	11 11.67	11 43,44	ii EM
THRUST/WEIGHT	1 0.20 11	0,22	1 0,19	11	11 9,92	11 +3,55	11 68/
VERT AREA + 80 FT	439,52 11	452,59	705.19	H	11 2,97	11 40.45	11 30
		444 10 1	447 41	4.4			

### Figure 50A. Turbulent Flow Aircraft Sizing Data

----- MAGE IS OF FOOR QUALITY

# ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

	Alexave: 447												******		
	***************************************	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		OPTION 1	++++++	0710x 2		OFTION )	••••	D + 1					
. 11	******			********											· ii -
- !!	RISCELLAREOUS (CON'T)	!							- 11						
- 11	POWER AETTING	0.00		0,86		0,95	- 11		- 11	+2.27	н	-0.57		288	
- 11	BASIC WING ABEA	4,119,77	11	4,376,18	11	5,404,13	11		-ti	6,32	-11	33,12	11 -	288	- 11
- !!	TOTAL HING AREA	1 4,835.39	- !!	3,130,30	- 11	8,436,73	- 11 -		- 11	-0.22	- 11	33,12	11.	626	- !!
- 11	TOTAL/BAGIC	1 1.17	- ii	1,17	-ii	1.17	ii -		ii	-0,00	ii	0,00	ii –	1	ii
- !!	L.E. SUCTION - & C	1				•							11		
- 11	ENG LOC + & AAC	i			- 11				- 11	526		gas		gan	
- 11	PROELAGE UT/84 FT	1 4,06		4,47	11	4,24	11		11	6,27	+1	5,00	- 11		. !!
		************		**********	****	***********							******		
	VING WT. COUNTION	1 13,00	11	13,00	11	13.00	11				-11		11		
	······································	****************	*****					***********	****				******		11
	0755 1														
	1. SASELINE - TURSULENT A 2. SPTION 1 - THESULENT	19CBAFT	000 F1												

3. OPTION 2 - 212,000 LB PAYOAD TURBULENT

Figure 50B. Concluded

## 6.2.2 Increase of Payload to 212,000 Pounds

In the study of these advanced technology military transports, it was desired to determine the performance data for a turbulent flow aircraft sized for the payload derived in the TAFAD study resulting from an in-depth mission analysis of the Congressionally Mandated Mobility Study. This study established an optimum payload of 212,000 pounds for rapid deployment.

Figure 50 includes data for the turbulent flow airlifter capable of transporting 212,000 pound payloads over the same global range mission as the baseline. This turbulent flow aircraft, as expected, is very large as compared to the turbulent baseline. The 60 percent increase in payload results in a 48.7 percent increase in gross weight, 45.4 percent more fuel burned, and 44 percent higher thrust per engine as compared to the turbulent baseline aircraft. A general arrangement drawing of the aircraft is presented in Figure 51.

This large aircraft has a gross weight of 916,333 pounds, mission fuel requirement of 423,769 pounds, wing aspect ratio of 13.4, thrust per engine of 43,313 pounds, and a lift-to-drag ratio of 26.4. The wing span of 293.78 feet as compared to 222.8 feet for the C-5 aircraft as shown in Figure 52.





Figure 51. General Arrangement of 212,000 LB Payload Turbulent Flow Aircraft



Figure 52. Comparison of Turbulent Flow 212,000 LB Payload Aircraft With C-5

### 6.2.3 Reduction of Aspect Ratio to 10

A comparison of performance characteristics of the turbulent baseline aircraft and the aspect ratio 10 turbulent aircraft are obtained from the data of Figures 50 and 45, Option 2. The results show that the turbulent flow aircraft with aspect ratio 10, as compared to the turbulent baseline aircraft, has a 1.5 percent increase in gross weight, 9.8 percent more fuel burned, a 9.7 percent decrease in L/D, a 9.7 percent increase in thrust required, and a 14.9 percent reduction in wing span. The difference in wing span of 255.9 feet for the baseline turbulent aircraft and 217.86 feet for the aspect ratio 10 turbulent aircraft is shown in Figure 53.



## Figure 53. Comparison of Turbulent Flow Baseline and Aspect Ratio 10 Aircraft

### 7.0 ASSESSMENT OF HLFC BENEFITS AND SELECTED CONFIGURATIONS

In this preliminary design system study a considerable amount of aircraft sizing data has been generated to establish baseline turbulent flow and hybrid LFC aircraft configurations which perform the global range mission requirements. These results have been discussed in Section 5. In addition, certain sensitivity studies have been made including changes in performance parameters and also changes to the aircraft configuration concept as described in Section 6. It is the purpose of this section of the report to provide an overall assessment of the results of the study including comments on final selected HLFC configurations.

A summary of the significant study results are provided in Figure 54 showing changes in HLFC performance parameters relative to the baseline turbulent flow aircraft. These results have been discussed in more detail previously in Sections 5 and 6. A review of the data in Figure 54 shows that the largest benefits of HLFC in reduction of fuel consumption and with the least increase in aircraft operating weight are obtained with the high wing, engines on wing HLFC configuration. As compared to the turbulent flow baseline aircraft, the high wing HLFC aircraft shows 17 percent reduction in fuel burned, 19.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, an insignificant increase in operating weight, and 7.4 percent reduction in gross weight. The second best HLFC configuration is the low wing, fuselage mounted arrangement with no HLFC on the empennage. This configuration shows 13.7 percent reduction in fuel burned, 18.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, 5.4 percent increase in operating weight, and 4.2 percent reduction in gross weight. This configuration with no HLFC on the empennage is favored over the low wing HLFC initial baseline aircraft because of the reduced complexity of elimination of HLFC peculiar equipment for the empennage. The candidate for the fourth selected configuration was determined from the results of the high wing HLFC with no lower surface laminar flow and the low wing baseline aircraft operated at initial cruise altitude of 36,000 feet. The results show approximately the same percentage reduction in fuel burned, but the considerably lower operating weight and gross weight of the high wing configuration is considered more favorable as compared to the higher altitude operation case. As expected, the

aspect ratio 10 HLFC configuration resulted in reduced operating weight and the benefits in fuel consumption and lift-to-drag ratio were very low as compared to the higher aspect ratio turbulent flow baseline aircraft.

In summary, the final selected HLFC configurations obtained from the parametric sizing studies of M = 0.77 HLFC global range military aircraft are listed below in order of highest priority:

- 1. High wing with wing mounted engines and no HLFC on empennage.
- 2. Low wing with fuselage mounted engines and no HLFC on empennage.
- 3. Low wing with fuselage mounted engines and including HLFC on empennage.
- 4. High wing with wing mounted engines and no HLFC on lower wing surface.
- 5. Low wing with fuselage mounted engines and increased initial cruise altitude to 36,000 feet.

A further assessment of the above selected HLFC configurations is deemed necessary. It should be noted that the performance of the high wing with wing mounted engines configurations is based on the assumption that there is no loss of laminar flow on the upper wing surface. In the author's opinion this

	HLFC BASELINE	NO HLFC ON EMPENNAGE	NO LOWER SURFACE HLFC	ALTITUDE 36,000 FT	ASPECT RATIO 10	HIGH WING Engines on Wing, HLFC	HIGH WING Engines on Wing; No Lower Surface HLFC
WEIGHTS							
OPERATING EMPTY	5.4	5.4	7.9	15.5	- 0.7	0.2	1.9
GROSS	- 4.0	- 4.2	-0.6	- 0.3	-1.1	- 7.4	- 4.4
FUEL CONSUMPTION	-13.4	-13.7	-7.9	-12.4	-3.5	-17.1	-11.9
LIFT TO DRAG RATIO	18.4	18.2	12.5	22.7	4.0	19.2	13.6

CHANGE, PERCENT-RELATIVE TO TURBULENT FLOW BASELINE AIRCRAFT

## Figure 54. Summary of HLFC Aircraft Results Relative to Turbulent Flow Baseline

is an optimistic assumption which cannot be validated at this time for an HLFC aircraft with wing mounted engines. Preliminary flight tests of a natural laminar flow gloved wing section just outboard of the engine on a Boeing 757 aircraft have been made to determine the effects of engine noise on boundary layer transition as reported in Reference 20. These flight test results showed for the conditions of the tests a negligible effect of engine power on transition on the upper surface and small effects on the lower surface. It is felt, however, for conditions involving longer laminar runs such as those for the HLFC configurations of this study that the effects of the engine on laminar boundary layer transition are incomplete. Furthermore, it is expected that engine effects on transition could be more pronounced for the multi-engine arrangements of this study. Further research and development work in this important area is warranted.

In the ranking of selected configurations listed above, the low wing with fuselage mounted engines and including HLFC on the empennage received a high ranking. It is felt, however, that a preferred configuration will not have HLFC on the empennage in order to simplify the design concept and provide a more practical aircraft.

The operation of the HLFC aircraft at 36,000 feet initial cruise altitude provides a notable increase, 3.7 percent, in lift-to-drag ratio as compared to the baseline HLFC aircraft operating at 31,361 feet. This improvement in lift-to-drag ratio, however, is accompanied by an 18 percent increase in engine thrust. This large increase in engine thrust is attributable to the relatively high by pass ratio of 6.97 of the STF-686 engine used in this study. Since operation at higher altitudes is more favorable to the attainment and preservation of laminar flow, additional investigations of high altitude operations with lower by pass ratio engines is warranted.

### 8.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Preliminary design system studies of the application of hybrid laminar flow control to military transports sized to perform global range mission characteristics show significant performance benefits obtained for the hybrid LFC aircraft as compared to counterpart turbulent flow aircraft. The parametric aircraft sizing studies included the development of a considerable data base covering both sensitivity studies of baseline aircraft as well as changes in the overall design concepts of the aircraft configurations. The study results at M = 0.77 show that the largest benefits of HLFC are obtained with a high wing with engines on the wing configuration. As compared to the turbulent flow baseline aircraft, the high wing HLFC aircraft shows 17 percent reduction in fuel burned, 19.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, an insignificant increase in operating weight, and 7.4 reduction in gross weight. For this high wing configuration the performance data are based on the assumption that there is no upper surface loss in laminar flow with engines mounted on the wings. It is felt that this is an optimistic assumption especially for the longer laminar runs for the HLFC conditions of this study and for the multi-engine configurations. The second best HLFC configuration is the low wing, fuselage mounted arrangement with no HLFC on the empennage. This configuration shows 13.7 percent reduction in fuel burned, 18.2 percent increase in lift-to-drag ratio, 5.4 percent increase in operating weight, and 4.2 percent reduction in gross weight as compared to the turbulent flow aircraft.

Sensitivity studies included the determination of the effects on performance of increase in cruise Mach number from 0.77 to 0.80, increase in initial cruise altitude to 36,000 feet, and elimination of HLFC on the lower wing surface. These changes generally resulted in degradation in performance as compared to the baseline aircraft characteristics. As expected, the reduction in aspect ratio from the baseline value of about 13 to a value of 10 resulted in very low improvements in fuel consumption and lift-to-drag ratio.

In view of the superior performance of the high wing with engines mounted on the wing HLFC configuration, it is recommended that further research and

development be conducted to provide the necessary data base for validation of the effects of engine operation on laminar boundary layer transition for flight Reynolds numbers corresponding to large, long range transport aircraft. Operation at higher altitudes of 36,000 feet and above are more favorable to the attainment and preservation of laminar flow. The data in this study show a moderate increase in lift-to-drag ratio for operation at initial cruise altitude of 36,000 feet, but with an attendant large increase in engine thrust for the relatively high by pass ratio engines used in this study. It is recommended that additional studies be made of high altitude operations with lower by pass ratio engines.

All HLFC aircraft in this study have been sized without the use of leading-edge high lift devices on the wings. In view of the favorable effects of leading-edge high lift systems on the airfield performance and the shielding effects for HLFC operations, it is recommended that additional sizing studies be conducted on the two best HLFC configurations of this study with the addition of leading-edge high lift systems.

#### REFERENCES

- Braslow, Albert L. and Ralph J. Muraca, "A Perspective of Laminar-Flow Control," AIAA Paper 78-1528, Los Angeles, CA, August 1978.
- Sturgeon, R.F., et al, "Study of the Application of Advanced Technologies to Laminar-Flow Control Systems for Subsonic Transports," NASA CR 133949, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, May 1976.
- Sturgeon, R.F., "The Development and Evaluation of Advanced Technology Laminar-Flow-Control Subsonic Transport Aircraft," AIAA Paper 79-96, Huntsville, Alabama, January 1978.
- Sturgeon, R.F., "Toward a Laminar-Flow Control Transport," CTOL Transport Technology 1978, NASA Conference Publication 2036, February 28 -March 3, 1978.
- Sturgeon, R.F., et al, "Evaluation of LFC System Concepts for Subsonic Commercial Transport Aircraft," NASA CR 159253, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, Sept. 1980.
- 6. Kramer, J.J., "Planning a New Era in Air Transportation Efficiency," Astronautics and Aeronautics, July/August 1978, pp. 26-28.
- 7. Conner, D.W., "CTOL Concepts and Technology Development," <u>Astronautics</u> and Aeronautics, July/August 1978, pp. 29-37.
- 8. Leonard, R.W., "Airframes and Aerodynamics," <u>Astronautics and Aeronau</u>tics, July/August 1978, pp. 28-46.
- 9. Wagner, Richard D. and Michael C. Fischer, "Developments in the NASA Transport Aircraft Laminar Flow Program," AIAA Paper 83-0090, Reno, Nevada, January 1983.

- 10. Lineberger, L.B., et al., "Development of Laminar Flow Control Wing Surface Composite Structures," NASA CR 172330, prepared by the Lockheed-Georgia Company, May 1984.
- 11. Lineberger, L.B., et al., "Structural Tests and Development of a Laminar Flow Control Wing Surface Composite Chordwise Joint," NASA CR 172462, prepared by the Lockheed-Georgia Company, December 1984.
- 12. Etchberger, F.R., et al., "LFC Leading Edge Glove Flight Aircraft Modification Design, Test Article Development, and Systems Integration," NASA CR 172136, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, Nov. 1983.
- Lange, R.H., "Design Integration of Laminar Flow Control for Transport Aircraft," <u>Journal of Aircraft</u>, Vol. 21, No. 8, August 1984, pp. 612-617.
- 14. Goodyear, M.D., "Application of Superplastically Formed and Diffusion Bonded Aluminum to a Laminar Flow Control Leading Edge," NASA CR 178316, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, July 1987.
- 15. Moore, J.W., et al., "Technology Alternatives for Airlift Deployment," Air Force Wright Aeronautical Laboratory Report AFWAL-TR-85-3001, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, April 1985.
- 16. Anon, "Hybrid Laminar Flow Control Study," NASA CR-165930, prepared by Boeing Commercial Aircraft Company, October 1982.
- 17. Smethers, Rollo G., and John F. Honrath, "Configuration Integration for Large Multi-Purpose Aircraft," Air Force Wright Aeronautical Laboratory Report AFWAL-TR-85-3075, prepared by Lockheed-Georgia Company, September 1985.
- 18. Staff, LFC Engineering Section: "Final Report on LFC Aircraft Design Data, Laminar Flow Control Demonstration Program," NOR 67-136, Northrop Corporation, Norair Division, June 1967.

- 19. Torenbeek, Egbert, "Synthesis of Subsonic Airplane Design", Delft University Press, Holland, 1982, p. 299.
- 20. Anon, "Flight Survey of the 757 Wing Noise Field and Its Effects on Laminar Boundary Layer Transition," NASA CR 178216, 178217, prepared by the Boeing Commercial Airplane Company, March 1987.

#### APPENDIX A

### GENERAL AIRCRAFT SIZING PROGRAM (GASP)

The Lockheed Generalized Aircraft Sizing and Performance (GASP) computer program is used to size and define the aircraft in this study. The methodology of this program is outlined in Figure A-1.

GASP controls the interaction of the program modules provided by the various technical disciplines and the inputs provided for the specific configuration. GASP then generates a component buildup of drag and weight, and integrates these results into total aircraft drag and weight. Propulsion system size is defined by matching cruise thrust requirements or, if required, by mismatching these requirements so as to oversize the engine at cruise to provide additional takeoff thrust. The capability of sizing a configuration with a fixed-size propulsion system is also available. The aircraft size required for the mission is defined by an automated iterative process. GASP has been used in a number of previous studies (References 3, 5, 6, 8, 11, 12,





13, 14, 15) to synthesize aircraft for design variables such as wing loading, aspect ratio, cruise power setting, Mach number, range, payload, and field performance; and to define aircraft optimized to figures of merit such as minimum direct operating cost, gross weight, acquisition cost, fuel usage, and life cycle cost. These studies have encompassed conventional and assault transports as well as loiter/endurance missions. Turbofan and propfan propulsion systems were examined and various advanced materials were evaluated.

The general method of parametric analysis to be used is illustrated in Figure A-2. Aircraft characteristics are generated by GASP for parametric variations of sizing variables. For these data, performance constraints such as one-engine-out climb gradient capability, field length requirements, fuel volume availability, and landing approach speed can be generated and suitable constraints imposed on the resulting configuration. The two carpet plots in Figure A-2 provide a parametric evaluation in which the constraining performance variables are takeoff field length and second-segment climb gradient. These parameters are presented as a function of aspect ratio (AR) and initial cruise power setting (the percent of available cruise thrust required at the initial cruise point) for a given wing loading.

Specific field length and gradient capabilities, as determined from these carpet plots, along with a requirement that the engines have five percent excess available cruise thrust (= 0.95), define the group of acceptable configurations inside the hatched area in the middle section in Figure A-2. If desired, the complete carpet plots of aircraft characteristics such as gross weight and life cycle costs can be generated to show the impact of sizing constraints on the various figures of merit. However, the optimum values of the figures of merit will be defined by the envelope of constraint lines shown in this plot.

Another method of parametric analysis is provided by a numerical optimizer that has been coupled with the sizing program. This provides the capability of automatically selecting aircraft that minimize a given figure of merit while simultaneously meeting a defined set of constraints.



Figure A-2. Typical Parametric Selection Procedure

Input requirements to the GASP program that are of particular significance include: (a) mission definition, (b) design payload and speed, (c) concept and technology definition, and (d) economic ground rules. Other inputs, including atmospheric data, geometric characteristics, and optimizer inputs and constraints are also required.

Installed engine performance data in the form of thrust and SFC are provided by the propulsion organization for both turbofan and propfan installations. For propfans, this requires coupling of a specific turboshaft engine with a specific propeller design. For a given propeller design, an optimum propeller disc loading can be defined for a given altitude (density ratio), cruise Mach number, number of blades, and tip speed. Since the altitude and speed requirements are variable, aircraft are sized for several disc loading combinations.

In addition, routines are incorporated in GASP to calculate the wing scrubbing drag due to the propwash of wing-mounted propellers and to include

C-2

this in the airframe drag buildup. Based on recent NASA/industry studies, our current propfan studies do not include swirl drag penalties; however, a method to incorporate this effect is available if later data indicates this penalty exists.

Concept and technology definitions are required input to the GASP program in terms of weight, performance, and/or cost adjustment factors. The weight, performance, and cost relationships upon which the GASP program operates are based on conventional concept and current technology definitions. Therefore, for each unique concept and/or technology, factors that reflect their influence on weight, performance, and other characteristics will be developed to a degree that is consistent with the conceptual design of each concept/technology integration.

Natoral Approximation	Report Docume	entation Page
1. Report No.	2. Government Accessio	n No. 3. Recipient's Catalog No.
4. Title and Subtitle	rid Laminar Flou	5. Report Date
Control to Global F	ange Military	April 1988
Transport Aircraft		6. Performing Organization Code
7. Author(s)		8. Performing Organization Report No.
Rov H. Lange		LG87ER0145
		10. Work Unit No.
9. Performing Organization Name	and Address	
Lockheed Aeronautic	al Systems Company	11. Contract or Grant No.
86 South Cobb Drive	1	NAS1-18036
Marietta, GA 30063		13. Type of Report and Period Covered
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and	Address	Contractor Report
National Aeronautic	s and Space Administra	tion Sept. 1900 - Sept. 1987
Hampton, VA 23665-	5225	14. Sponsoring Agency Code
15. Supplementary Notes	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Langley Technical M Final Report	onitor: Dal V. Maddalo	n
16. Abstract A Study was control (HLFC) to g	conducted to evaluate to be a series of the	the application of hybrid laminar flow ransport aircraft. The global mission
included the capabi	lity to transport 132,	500 pounds of payload 6,500 nautical
miles, land and del	iver the payload and w	ithout refueling return to 6,500 nautical
miles to a friendly	airbase. The prelimin	nary design studies show significant
performance benefit	s obtained for the HLF(	Caircraft as compared to counterpart
turbulent flow airc	raft The study result	= at M = 0.77 show that the largest
	alt. The study result	s at M = 0.77 show that the targest
benefits of ALFC ar	e obtained with a high	wing with engines on the wing
configuration. As	compared to the turbule	ent flow baseline aircraft, the high wing
HLFC aircraft shows	17 percent reduction :	In fuel burned, 19.2 percent increase in
lift-to-drag ratio,	an insignificant incre	ease in operating weight, and 7.4
reduction in gross	weight.	
17. Key Words (Suggested by Aut	hor(s))	18. Distribution Statement
Drag reduction	L	
Hybrid laminar flow	control	
Long range transport	ts	

19. Security Classif. (of this report)	20. Security Classif. (of this page)	21. No. of pages	22. Price
Unclassified	Unclassified	ł	